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(b) Clause (¥) OL SECTION D514 OL LILUE & UL LHT ULiiou muwwee wvies =

amended to read as follows:
“(8) Under Secretary .of Natural Resources for Water and Under Sec-

retary of Natural Resources for Lands.”

TRANSFERS FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR




i ri r Natural
ILL To redesignate the Department of the Interior as the Department of Na
A8 Resofxrces gnd to transfer certain agencies to and from such Department

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives pf the Um‘vte‘fz Statle‘s
of America in Congress assembled, That this Act may be cited as the “Depart-
ment of Natural Resources Act of 1967,

owave o auc vauct DECLEGRICY 0L TTUE” LICErior autnorized under the l‘ict. en-
titled “An Act making appropriations for the Department of the Interior for

1
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(1) the functions transferred under subgection. (a) of this section to
the Secretary of the Army, and

(2) such personnel, property, records, obligations, commitments, ‘and
unexpended balances of appropriations, allocations, and other funds as
he determines are used with respect to such functions to the Department
of the Army. At the end of the war or the period of national emergency
the President shall transfer such functions back to the Secretary of Natural
Resources, and he shall transfer such personnel, property, records, obliga-
tions, commitments, and unexpended appropriations, allocations, and other
functions back to the Department of Natural Resources.

TRANSFERS FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY ; OCEANOGRAPHIC FUNCTIONS

Sec. 8. The National Oceanographic Data Center in the Department of the
Navy. together with such nonmilitary personnel, property, records, obligations,
commitments, and unexpended balances of appropriations, allocations, and other
funds_as are determined hv the MNiractam af +hn Decans Sa i1 o= 2

I(b) All personnel, property, records, obligations, commitments, and unex-
pended balances of appropriations, allocations, and other funds, which the Direc-
tor of the Bureau of the Budget determines are used primarily with respect to
any function transferred under the provisions of this section, are transferred to
the Department of Natural Resources.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE; AIR POLLUTION CONTROL
FUNCTIONS

SEc. 10. (a) The functions of the Secretary of Health, Education, and Welfare
under the Clean ‘Air ‘Act, as amended (42 U.8.C. 1857 et seq.), the Solid Waste
Disposal Act (42 U.S.C. 3251). and all other air mn ] A ot tA £




pa..rtment of the Army and all such functions of the Secreary of the Army
with respect to or being administered through such Corps are transferred to *
the Secretary of Natural Resources.

(b) All nonmilitary personnel, property, records, obligations, commitments,
and ul_lexpended balances of appropriations, allocations, and other funds, which
the Director of the Bureau of the Budget determines are used primarily with
respect to any function transferred under the provisions of this sectidn are
transferred to the Department of Natural Resources. ’

(e¢) In time of war or such other national emergency as the President de-
termines, he may transfer—

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

ANNUAL REPORT

Sec. 13. The Secretary shall, as soon as-practicable after the end of each
calendar. year, make a report to the President for submission to the Congress
on the activities of the Department during the preceding calendar year.

EFFECTIVE DATE

Sgo. 14. The provisions of this Act shall be effective after ninety days. follow-
ing its date of enactment.

EXHIBIT 2

S. 886—T0 REDESIGNATE THE DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR AS THE DEPARTMENT
oF NATURAL RESOURCES AND To TRANSFER CERTAIN AGENCIES TO AND FROM SUCH
DEPARTMENT

(By Wallace D. Bowman, Specialist in Conservation -and Natural Resources,
Natural Resources Division, October 12, 1967)

8. 886, introduced by Senator Frank E. Moss on February 7, 1967, would
establish in one executive department various federal agencies, bureaus and
commissions dealing with renewable and nonrenewable resources.

Senator Moss made his case for unification in citing the lack of any federal plan
for the development, management and protection of the Nation’s resource endow-
ment. He also pointed out that every resource agency is surrounded by competing

(3) Pérmit’ the Goverilieuy vo cyasnze. wmivarale.ond land for its own
material requirements of our industries;
(4) Provide coordinated administration of farflung resource programs,
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bility at Interior, the bulk of construction is assigned the Corps of Engineers

in the Department of Defense. In addition, the Federal Power Commission is

authorized to grant licenses for the construction of hydroelectric dams on rivers.

If ocean resources are included in this resource category, three other agencies

of government must be added to the list.

Typical conflicts of interest arising in the case of river basin planning would
find the Corps of Engineers (Defense) concerned with many aspects of flood
control and waterway development ; the Soil Conservation Service (Agriculture)
concerned with upland watershed protection ; the Bureau of Sport Fisheries and
Wildlife (Interior) concerned with fish habitat and recreation; and the Federal
Power Commission granting licenses for the construction: of hydroelectric
facilities.

Earlier Proposals
Several earlier proposals contained provisions similar to S..886, .

Secretary Ickes in 1938 suggested that the Interior Department be changed
into ‘a Department of Conservation.

In 1949, a task force of the first Hoover Commission defined the functions of a
proposed Department of Natural Resources, the establishment of which President
Truman supported until 1951. : '

President Eigenhower in Dbig last. lodeet messagn megontedshot tha aratan fuma

S. 886 would create a national Department of Natural Resources, absorbing
the present Department of the Interior—but exclude 'a number of Interior func-
tions that fall outside the natural resources category—and include a number of
resource-related agencies and functions of other Departments.

The Secretary of Interior, to be redesignated Secretary of Natural Resources,
would be assisted by a Deputy Secretary and two Under Secretaries for Water
and Lands. All would be appointed by the President with Senate confirmation.

The proposed agency and functional changes in resources administration are
shown below. :

To Department of Natural Resources from Department of Agriculture:

1. Forest Service. i

2. Watershed Protection and Flood Protection (16 U.S.C. 1001-1008).

3. Construction of certain public works on.rivers and harbors for flood
control, and for other purposes (58 Stat. 887).

To Department of Natural Resources from Department of Defense: Civil work
functions of the Corps of Engineers.!

To Department of Natural Resources from Department of Navy: Functions
relating to National Oceanographic Data Center.

To Department of Natural Resources from National Science Foundation: Funec-
tions relating to sea grant programs (title IT of Marine Resources and Engineer-
ing Development Act, 80 Stat. 998).

To Department of Natural Resources from Department of Health, Education,
and Welfare:

1. Functions under the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857, et seq.).
2. Functions under the Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 U.S.C. 3251).
V.42 ' 1T 'R el o ey . . ——— ———
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In addition to the above, the Federal Power Act would be amended to include
the following: . s .

16 USC 797 (e) . . .
A SRE S FesB Ut ted BoliEP 1 B AR Kb, gomprehensive plan of
—establishment of resources policy through administrative regulations
—dissemination of a vast range of information' to assist agriculture and

other resource industries i
—many kinds of research and development

Next to expenditures for national defense and for the costs of past wars, the
FCST found that activities concerned with natural resources are the largest
category in the Federal budget. Although the study conducted by FCST. was
concerned primarily with Federal research and development activities, its focus
on budgetary and manpower aspects resulted in a detailed analysis of overall
Federal effort in the natural resources field.

Research and development activities are carried out by eight Departments
(Agriculture ; Commerce ; Defense ; Health, Education and Welfare ; Transporta-
tion; Housing and Urban Development; Interior and State). An even larger
number of independent commissions and councils are also involved including
the Atomic Energy Commission; Federal Aviation Agency; Federal Power Com-
mission; National Science Foundation; Tennessee Valley Authority; Marine
Resources and Engineering Development Council; Office of Science and . Tech-
nology; Water Resources Council; Council of Economic Advisers; Bureau of
Budget; Smithsonian Institution; National Academy of Sciences; Appalachian
Regional Commission and Delaware River Basin Commission.

Departments and commissions, or segments thereof, identified by the FCST
as having research and development functions, which_ have apparently been
excluded from transfer under S. 886, are outlined below.? .

Energy Resources (p. 34, FCST report)
Department of Defense .

DLHLLUDULLLALL AuDuitunivir
Mineral Resources (p. 76, ibid)
Department of Defense
Department of Agriculture
Atomic Energy Commission
Department of Commerce (BS)
National Science Foundation
Department of Transportation
Tennessee Valley Authority

1 Research and Development on Natural Resources, Office of Science and Technology,
Bxecutive Office of the President, May 1963. (A separate task force report on water resources
was issued on March 25, 19683, as a Senate Interior Committee print entitled “Federal Water
Resources Research Activities”).

2 Slightly modified to account for reorganization of federal activities since 1963.
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Air Resources (p. 87, ibid)
Department of Agriculture
Department of Commerce {BS, ES)
Department of Defense (AF, A, N)
Department of Health, Education and Welfare
Atomic Energy Commission
Federal Aviation Agency
National Science Foundation
Water Resources (p. 182, Senate Committee Prmt)
Department of A«nculture (CSESS, ERS, SC8)
Department of Commerce
Department of Defense. G emwesvas UL AUPUULUERULLELLEUW
treaties.
S. 886 makes no specific reference to theése aspects of resource pohc and
administration.

FEDERAL SPENDING FOR NATURAL RESOURCES

Senator Ripicorr.- Federal expenditures in the field of natural re-
sources totaled $3.2 billion in fiscal 1966, and are estimated at $3.5
billion for fiscal 1968.

We will also include at this point the analysis of natural resource
spending from the 1968 budget.

(The excerpt from “The Budoet for Fiscal Year 1968” follows:)

EXHIBIT 3

NATURAL RESOURCES

The needs of a growing population and an expanding economy demand care-
ful development and prudent use of our natural resources. The budget recom-
mendations for 1968 are aimed at meeting these demands. They provide for
selected increases in those programs most important for preserving our natural
heritage and promoting the Nation’s economic growth. Payments to the public
for the conservation and development of natural resources are estimated at $3.5
billion in fiscal year 1968, an increase of $288 million aver 10R7

— T s UL
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strative budget funds:
and and water resources:
Corps of Engineers $1, 260
Department of the Interior:
Bureau of Reclamation 327
Power marketing agencies:
Present programs 128
Proposed legislation for revolving funds —~74
Federal Water Pollution Control Administratiol 126
Office of Saline Water:
Present programs
Proposed legislation for desal
Office of Water Resources Research
Bureau of Indian Affairs:
Present programs
Proposed program improvements
Bureau of Land Management and oth
Tennessée Valley Authority
Soil Conservation Service—watershed proj
International Boundary and Water Commission_.
Federal Power Commission and other.

Subtotal, land and water resources
Forest resources:
Forest Service.. . -
Bureau of Land gem
Recreational resources:
Bureau of Outdoor Recreation. 17
National.Park Service and oth 135
Fish and wildlife resources. .. - 130 134

Mineral resources:
chebbeage-riudd

investment in the development of the Nation’s water 4Zlnd poﬂ{%er resgurces. f’%
order to provide for future needs, new water resources projects are to be started
in 1968 and advance planning is to begin for projects to be started in later years.
However, in an effort to help prevent inflationary pressures in the economy,
ongoing Federal construction projects have been slowed down in the current fiscal
year. A small number of new starts is being recommended for 1968.

The budget for 1968 includes $7 million in new obligational authority for the
Corps of Engineers to start construction of nine water resources projects cost-
ing an estimated $150 million in total. Advance planning will be started on 24
projects. In addition, $3 million is included to begin land acquisition for the
Tocks Island Dam and Reservoir project in New Jersey, Pennsylvania, and New
York. The budget.also provides for programs which improve our basic knowledge
about flood hazards and enhance the effectiveness of our flood control efforts,

New obligational authority of $8 million is included for the Bureau of Reclama-
tion to start two projects and to provide loans to finance two new small reclama-
tion projects. Studies and investigations by the Bureau will include special em-
phasis on weather modification research. A thorough review is being made of




alternative solutions to the water problems faced by the States in the Colorado
River Basin, When this review is completed, recommendations will be made to the
Congress,

Legislation pr riously proposed will again be recommended to allow the Bonr ‘
ville, Southeastern, and Southwestern Power Administrations to use revenues
from the sale of bower to finance capital outlays and operating costs. Enactment
of this legislation would place these power marke ing agencies on a basis consist:
ent with other business enterprise activities of the Federal Government while

aining continued control through the appropriation process. Revenues from
the sale of such power are currently deposited in miscellaneous receipts of the

Treasury.
. 4 8 AVLaGaLCU LWUWALU dLLACKINgG the problems of

> During fiscal year 1968; much of the agency’s

effort will be devoted to re ing and approving standards developed by the

Sta under the Water Quality Aect of 1965. The budget includes grants of $203

n in 1968 to assist municipalities in construction of waste treatment plants

Additional funds are recommended for research and demonstration activities
authorized by the Clean Water Restoration Act of 1966.

Legislation will be proposed to permit the Department of the Interior to partici-
pate with the Atomic Energy Commission and the Metropolitan Water District
of Southern California in the construction of a large prototype desalting plant.

Pudlic domain and Indian lands.—The Bureau of Land Management manages
457 million acres of public domain land containing valuable mineral, forest, range,
watershed, recreation, and fish and wildlife resources. In 1968, the Bureau ex-
pects to spend $70 million on the development and use of the resources of these
lands, Total receipts from the management of: all public lands are estimated to
be $626 million in 1968, including $430 million’ from mineral leases (primarily
oil and gas) on the Quter Continental Shelf, which the Department of the Interior
also administers,

Programs to aid American Indians in 1968 will provide for improved schools,
irrigation facilities and roads on Indian reservations, and for expansion ‘of in-
dustrial activities and housing facilities. New obligational authority of $118 mil-
lion is recommended for 1968, including $31 million for construction of 15 new
schools for Indian children. An additional $30 million is proposed to further im-
prove programs for the Indians.

Forest resources.—National forest lands will provide outdoor recreational
activities for an estimated 199 million visitors in 1968. In addition, the Forest

. o

Vi v arvest 197 hillinn haawd fané A 22 ey o wn
uslgé;ﬁ%(%l%gn (I‘B%Itglllka%ﬁi prov13e a basis for comparing expenditures for re-.
forestation and timber stand improvement with other Federal programs which

enhance timber supply.




Recreational resources.—In fiscal year 1968, the Bureau of Outdoor Recreation
expects to complete the first Nationwide Outdoor Recreation Plan, which ‘will
provide a general guide for all outdoor recreational programs in the country.

Receipts of $110 million are estimated to become available to the Land and
Water Conservation Fund in fiscal year 1968, and an advance appropriation of
$32 million is recommended to augment the Fund. Together, these funds will
enable Federal agencies and States to expand their recreation programs to provide
. additional outdoor recreation opportunities. Grants of $65 million will be made

from. the Fund to the States for this purpose and $74 million will be available
for acquisition of recreation lands by the National Park Service, Forest Service,
and the Bureau of Sport Fisheries and Wildlife.

Because of rising land prices, the budget proposes that all of the $32 million
advance appropriation to the Land and Water Conservation Fund be used by
Federal agencies to accelerate land acquisition.

. The 89th Congress enacted legislation to authorize a number of national sea-
shores and other recreation areas. Additional areas are needed, however, in order
to meet the growing recreational requirements of our people. Proposals are under
study and recommendations will be made at a later date for the development of
the North Cascades area in the State of Washington. Proposals are also under
Hntnih Tekaths SUrS AN AAVALLf saenis. A ad Esereation, patnes o (e
ing, marketing assistance, and programs to modernize the American fishing fleet.
A significant advance will be made toward the solution of protein-deficient diets
throughout the world with the construction in 1968 of a pilot plant for manu-
facturing fish protein concentrate. '

Mineral resources.—The Bureau of Mines will continue research to expand
mineral production and utilization, with increased attention to problems of air
pollution and oil shale research. A new research program directed toward major

_ improvements in tunneling technology will be initiated. If successful, this effort
' will be of major benefit to mining, urban transportation, water supply, and other
public services. .

Congressional approval will be sought, within the authority of the Helium Act
Amendments of 1960, for the Secretary of the Interior to enter into long-term
contracts in 1968 for the purchase of an additional 24 billion cubic feet of helium.
This unique resource would otherwise be wasted as.a component of natural gas
being marketed as fuel.




U5, Ol Uldlly, WO 1Ntro ) at dward M. Ken--
nedy of Massachusetts, one of the cosponsors.
We also have a statement prepared by Senator Gale McGee, of Wyo-
ming, which will be inserted at the conclusion of today’s hearing.

RIBICOFF COMMENDS MOSS’ COMMITMENT TO CONSERVATION

We are very delighted to have you, Senator Moss. All of us in the
Senate have the highest respect and regard for you, not only as a dis-
tinguished Senator but as a man very knowledgeable and very dedi-
cated to the whole field of conservation and natural resources.

Frankly, were it not for you, these hearings would not be held. Over

the past 2 years, I have been deeply impressed with your dedication

toward this cause and this objective.
salvorydidd 1 wodiu uOpe LuEL L7 couLa”oe nere at least most of the time.

I appreciate it, too, because I recognize that this is sort of a begin-
ning and informational phase of building a record on which the com-
mittee can then work its will, and I would hope that a full record could
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Reorganization. I hope these hearings signal the beginning of a com-
prehensive congressional examination of our natural resource needs.

NATURAL RESOURCES ARE DISAPPEARING

Despite much public understanding and concern, however, it is
~.Uur cities are 1 desperate need of recreation space. Citizens trav
hundreds of miles to escape the noise and concrete of the city. Att
ance at our national parks continues to break records. The once empty
forests of Yosemite National Park are now filled with so many people
on some weekends that every campsite is filled. And the smoké from
their campfires throws a layer of smog over this beautiful park.
But pollution abatement, and conservation in general, are only part
of the problem. We must have more land and more water for use at the
) N YYY ) P N Y £ oy o~




The effects of this technological revolution on the natural environ-
ment of the United States is, of course, what makes essential the pas-
sage of a bill such as S. 886 which would provide coordination of the
activities of the many Federal agencies having responsibilities in the
natural resource field.

The tremendous pressure which technological progress has exerted
on our environment is widely recognized. Just one aspect—pollution
of water, air and land—has been the subject of numerous books, maga-
zine articles, television programs, editorials and speeches. I believe 1t
is correct to say that Congress has passed more constructive water
legislation in the past 5 years than at any time in our history. Concern
for our natural heritage gave impetus to the program to preserve
and restore natural beauty which has received so much attention both
from the White House and the Congress. )

The scheduling of these hearings at a time when the Committee on
Government Operations has a heavy load of other work demonstrates
your recognition of the importance of this problem. I personally
appreciate the action on the part of the Subcommittee on Kxecutive

mind, let me discuss briefly our existing Federal organization.

Woater resource development is the area of most critical need. In this
field, we have three major departments with primary responsibility;
the Department of Defense; the Department of Agriculture; and the
Department of the Interior. Until recently, there was a fourth—
Health, Education, and Welfare, but last year the President trans-
ferred the Water Pollution Control Administration from HEW to
Interior.

SEVERAL AGENCIES DEAL WITH WATER RESOURCES

The functions of these agencies in the water resource field were ini-
tiated to provide answers to specific problems. The Army Corps of
Engineers began with an appropriation of $75,000 to remove sandbars
and “sawyers, planters, and snags” from the Mississippi and Ohio
Rivers to aid navigation. The Bureau of Reclamation was created in
1902 to reclaim the land of 17 States for agriculture. Their beginnings
came in earlier days of the technological revolution of which I have
spoken, when it appeared unnecessary to pay much heed to resource
destruction. With the passage of the years, and our increase in popu-
lation and wealth, their tasks have necessarily grown in both scope

~z. T n Aaxr Ahostwvnpfanma meansr_oimilor ar idantinal faclra



g and—such matters as soil conservation practices, strip
mining activities, use of the land and water conservation fund, and
the open spaces program under HUD. Involving the Federal Gov-
ernment more completely is another category—the management of the
public domain. Althoug{} located predominately in the West, there is
public domain acreage in every State. It includes national forests, the
lands managed by the Bureau of Land Management—some of which
are forested—wildlife refuges, and units of the national park system.
The national forests and BLM lands are managed for a multiplicity of
purposes, and the wildlife refuges are used for timber harvesting, oil
and gas extraction, and recreation, in addition to their primary
purpose.

There are two large agencies engaged in the management of the
public domain—the Bureau of Land Management in the Department
of the Interior, and the Forest Service in the Department of Agri-
culture.

OVERLAP OF LAND MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

For reasons which I will not go into at this time, their separation
was deliberate. Since the emergence of the modern concept of a na-

tional land reserve, however, their functions haye become almnst idan.
séurdudly “suoula nave responsibility for all major Federal land man-

agement functions, and for the submission of Federal policy recom-
mendations to the President and the Congress,

Parenthetically, it should be noted that coordination is also needed
between land management and water management, since water pro-
duction is to a great degree dependent upon land condition. The head.
waters of many eastern streams are located on the national forests. The
water supply of the West is produced almost entirely on the public
domain, more than half of it on national forest land.

OUTDOOR RECREATION PROGRAM

Most agencies engaged in water development or land management
are engaged also in outdoor recreation. In accordance with the recom.
mendations of the Outdoor Recreation Resources Review Commission,
Congress established the Bureau of Outdoor Recreation to promote as
well as coordinate outdoer recreation resource development. BOR is in
the Department of the Interior. Yet, two non-Interior s loa. +ha
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more recreation seekers than does any agency in the Department of the
Interior.

Tt is perhaps in the field of land management that the citizen is con-
fronted with the greatest inconvenience resulting from two or more
agencies. In the West, many timber operators and livestock men find
themselves negotiating and contracting with both. Often, policies differ
and almost always the differences in the regulations of the two com-
plicate.the operations and waste the time of citizens dealing with them.

BALANCE NEEDS BY COORDINATING. ACTIVITIES

The Engineers have built massive levees 10 CONLALL FULOL, Ll iiand
Okeechobee and constructed 1,400 miles of drainage canals in the name
of flood control. Park Service officials complain bitterly that the Engi-
neers have drained Everglades National Park almost dry in their
offorts to halt wetlands flooding and reclaim glade country for
agriculture.

Flood control advocators have said that reclamation is for people
and Everglades Park is “for the birds.” But I do not believe that is the
question. The park is for people and the farms are for people. The real
question is how shall priorities be established for the best use of limited
Tesources.

SOME AREAS OF CONSERVATION HAVE BEEN OVERLOOKED

One detrimental effect of the multiplicity of agencies is that some
important areas have been permitted to fall between the cracks, so to
speak. An instructive example of this is our mounting concern for
the wetlands. The distinguished chairman of the subcommittee has
this year introduced a bill aimed at the preservation of the Nation’s
estuarian areas and the natural resources of these areas. The estuaries
furnish environme111t£f0r unique and valuable forms of aquatic life

eirl Baa ety i e nmmnndian maa Thov ara naepliarly subiect to
percent of the coastal marshes had been destroyed by 1&1&’). t is iy

belief that, had a natural resources department been in operation,
much more would already have been done to save this unique resource.

e
1 gee exhibit 4, pp. 26-31.
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of 18 species along the coast were said to have dropped nearly 50
percent from 1960 to 1965. '

In the field of oceanography—as with the estuaries—proposals have
been made leading to better resource management. But a department
with responsibility for natural resources would in all probability have
prevented much of the deterioration of the fish life of the Continental

Shelf.

NEW DEPARTMENT WOULD HANDLE MAJOR RESOURCE PROGRAMS

Turning briefly to the provisions of S. 886, the bill in essence sets
up a Department of Natural Resources and assigns to. it all major
Federal responsibilities having to do with water, power, land manage-
ment, wildlife, outdoor recreation, minerals and fuels, ocean resources,
and clean air. ‘

The bill provides for a Secretary of Natural Resources and a
Deputy Secretary. It provides for two Under Secretaries, one for
water and one for land.

The jurisdiction of the Under Secretary for Water includes: the

functions exercised by the Bureau of Reclamation; the civil works
» aurfumite WIZHT a1s0 be created to coordinate efforts of our other

mineral resource agencies in development of the minerals in and under
the ocean.

While I have not provided for further administrative division in
the bill, it would appear logical to divide the responsibility of the
Under Secretary for Land into four branches, each headed by an
Assistant Secretary.

The Forest Service and the Bureau of Land Management could
report to an Assistant Secretary for Land Resources. The National
Park Service, the Fish and Wildlife Service, and the Bureau of
Outdoor Recreation could report to an Assistant Secretary for Recrea-
tion and Wildlife. The Bureau of Mines, Geological Survey, the Office
of Coal Research, and the several other agencies in the Department
of the Interior with responsibility in the fields of minerals and fuels
could report to an Assistant Secretary for Minerals and Fuels. The
fourth Assistant Secretary would supervise our air pollution abate-
ment program. o




18 DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

RESOURCE ACTIVITIES HAVE OUTGROWN PRESENT ORGANIZA'TION

My advocacy of a Department of Natural Resources does not con-
stitute severe criticism of the performance of existing departments, al-
though it is often interpreted as doing so. Given their limitations and
their overlapping of responsibility, our agencies have done a com-
mendable job. But our needs in resource development and conserva-
tion have simply outrun our agency structure. J

For example, a century ago, water management meant the con-
struction of dams, pipelines, and sewer systems, Later, it included
treating municipal water supplies to kill disease germs. Meanwhile,
rivers were improved for navigation, and dams constructed for electric

power production. Subsequently, there came the building of flood
Hor the Iu[}ure, warter Hlﬂdl'd:gtﬂllbllb IMusy ifiva’ uid teluniuiavioic-oa

all uses, preservation of water and related land resources, and provi-
sion of enough water for constantly expanding needs.

LONG-RANGE PLANNING COULD RESULT FROM REORGANIZATION

Were I asked to list concrete beneficial effects that might be ex-
pected from the creation of a Department of Natural Resources, I
would put first the opportunity to improve long-range planning.

There exists nowhere a comprehensive plan that stafes our resource
requirements and delineates a program for meetirg them:

A first piority of the Department of Natural Resources should be
the preparation of such a plan:. The plan should set forth the na-
tional goals, projected alternative programs for reaching those goals,
and the costsinvolved.

This will furnish to the President and the Congress, the facts upon
which wise decisions can be made.

This, in general, is the method utilized so successfully by great

industrial enterprises. It combines maximum efficiency with maximum
flexibility.

JTOE T NTRADTUTNT AATITN TMRROVE TNTRRGOVERN MENTAL RELATIONS
should be done,” the prT{) f “H

oblem of water supply was

TSt of ail, a greag
responsibility of our local governments.” '










valley of a river, the Tennessee Rive

Senator Moss. Yes. : i

Senator Baxer (continuing). Quite apart from State lines or county
lines or other geopolitical lines. )

If this bill were to become law, would the regional development con-
cept, carried forward in the Appalachia Regional Commission and the
Four Corners Regional Commission and the other various regional

development, commissions which have grown out of the so-called Ap-
naJeabic.davhalzdd, i, Uilalriudily L 00 NOT want to unnecessarily be-

labor my following of these questions

Senator Risicorr. Go ahead. ) ]

Senator BARER (continuing). But I am really quite distressed at the
prospect of the function or planning functions of the TVA being
altered or changed in any respect. And while I do not want to pre-
judge the merits of S. 886, I must say that T would react quite unfavor-
ably to that aspect of such a proposal at this time.

.- gmevy wwvwseuo. o uUs LIAt Y careful and painstaking work
and examination of this it might be possible.

And I cite the fact that the President moved in this direction a
little bit—as a matter of fact, when I had my bill drafted, before
I had the Department of Pollution Control, which was in HEW, as
one that would go over to the Department of National Resources.

Well, the President accomplished that by executive order, which
was a movement in this direction, and it indicated to me that the
executive department thought there ought to be some more orderly
arrangement in the water field of resources.

So, I have introduced the bill, and I am hopeful that now is the
time that we can probably get this done, even though it has failed in
previous efforts.

NATURAL RESOURCES ADVISORY COUNCIL

Senator Risicorr. Now, Mr. Smith advocated a Natural Resources
Advisory Council which would have the same role in the resources

ﬁe%d as the Council of Economic Advisers now has in the economic
field. . .




pion and resource development, responsible for all federal j

in t}xe field, might still work if it could be achieved by wagiign;nxgn:gi wand
1t §1mply cannot be achieved, however, without a bloody, bone-shattering ﬁvht'
which Would lea_ve the landscape so scarred that the conservation cause wobulé
be lots in the critical years immediately ahead.

I do not know if our distinguished collea Y i

Senator Baxer. I havenot. = i akend s

Senator Rieicorr. Would you want to comment on Frank Smith’s
statement ? :

Senator Moss. Well, first of all, let me say that I have no illusions
that there will not be a great deal of resistance to rearranging the
functions of natural resources into a department. The history of this
proposal would indicate it goes clear back to Harold Ickes. It was pro-
posed by him, and, of course, the Hoover Commission proposed it.

It has come up various times and never been accomplished because
of certain departments or agencies which functions would be taken

e > g n ino £ ould function better
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CONFUSION IS LIABILITY OF COMPETING AGENCIES

Senator Moss. Well, although I do not reject the idea that there is
always some element of advantage perhaps competition, I think it
adds up really to more confusion than competition.

We are talking here about the sovereign, managing, planning for
the management of all the resources of the country. And to have com-
peting agencies with different regulations simply adds to the con-
fusion, I think, of the consumer on the other side.

Now, it was mentioned in the quote you read that BLM and the
Forest Service sell timber in a different manner under different

~nroled AN,

Senator Risicorr. Senator Harris? :
Senator Harris. I do not have any questions, Mr. Chairman.
Senator Riercorr. Senator Hansen ?

Senator Hansew. I have no questions.

Senator Riercorr. Senator Baker ?

‘Senator Baxer. Mr. Chairman, T would like to ask just one or two
additional questions, and T am mindful of the fact that Senator Ken-
nedy is anxious to testify, and I do not want to unduly prolong the
hearings.

But let me make a point or two at the outset, Senator Moss.

T have no desire to be antagonistic or in opposition to this proposal.

PP 1T 20 Y nvnAant
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Now, would you agree with me, Senator Moss, that there must be
some sort of regional totality in the effort to plan and conserve our
natural resources?

Senator Moss. Oh, I agree. As a matter of fact, we have a river basin
planning act now where the Congress has said that each river basin
should do its planning within the river basin, and this is a logical
thing when you come to water and land.

I would agree with you, Senator, that regions vary. Some of them
have pecularities of one kind and some another, and they ought to be
managed in accordance with whatever the physical and natural fea-
tures are in a given area.

Here, again, I would mesh the whole thing into what our national
pictureis.

Senator Bakxer. I would hope that this would lead you to agree-
ment that a structure as unique and vital and effective as the Ten-
nessee Valley Authoritv mioht he avelndad frome #hin meomood

Senator Moss. I would appreciate that very much.

Senator Baxer. Thank you.

. Senator Risrcorr. Thank you very much.

CHANGES IN HEARING SCHEDULE

£ there are no further questions, we appreciate your being here,
and I hope, Senator Moss, that you would feel free to take your seat
with the rest of us during the remainder of these hearings.

I have postponed the Wednesday hearing because of a conflict with
the Finance Committee, of which both Senator Harris and myself
are members. I think that the nature of the testimony tomorrow
requires our presence there.

The Department of the Interior and the Bureau of the Budget will
testify on Friday instead. !

I am sorry if this inconveniences anyone, but we will go ahead with
our Thursday hearing as scheduled.

Senator Moss. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate it.

T would hope that the chairman would permit the record to be
open for some time after these hearings are concluded, because I think,
out of questions such as have been raised bv SQenatnr Ralron and
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[From the Congressional Record, Aug. 30, 1967]

Ui e ) EXHIBIT 4
sponsored the Kennedy bill and whose committee will consiaer tuese PLUpuUsass,

Estuaries form where rivers run into the sea. They create and attract vital
biological, scientific, recreational, and economic resources. Cities are built near
most estuaries, intensifying land use and the consequent pollution and destruction
risks. My bill tries to take account of the unique nature of our estuaries and to
find the proper balance between their protection and restoration and their use
and development for the largest number of people.

These sea and land complexes create rich marine resources. At least 65 percent
of our Nation’s commercial fish and shellfish resources inhabit the estuarine
areas during all or part of their life cycles. Many of our valuable waterfowl
use these areas as nesting and wintering sites. People use them too, for swimming,
boating, bird watching, hiking, or for an opportunity to enjoy the beauty of
natural resources along coastal areas. Scientists study and expand our knowl-
edge of the wonderful variety of animal and plant life around the estuaries.

It is not only the coastal States, like Connecticut, which will benefit from this
proposal. For our seashores are a national trust for all to use and enjoy.

- Many of our priceless shore resources have already been lost. Others can be
saved if we act soon, as this bill proposes. In my own State, nearly 50 percent of
Connecticut’s coastal marshes had been destroyed by 1965. At the existing rate
of destruction, by the year 2000 there would be no tidal marshes left.

.The principal causes of this manmade destruction are careless filling, usually
from dredging and waste disposal. Both of these hazards will be controlled un-
der this legislation. -

This bill will help determine the state of our natural estuarine resources as a
first step to preserving what is left. After this survey by the Secretary of the In-
teriloﬁk a, _Iil’ggg‘ggvt‘g”ilggl“s‘tudy will see what can be done to preserve and enhance

They would insure that an authority charged with the protection and develop~
ment of natural resources reviewed such projects before they are undertaken.
My legislation encourages States to protect their own estuarine resources
and water quality by establishing or improving plans to regulate dredging and
related activities, when the plans are approved by the Interior Department. In
such States there would be no direct Federal control of these activities.
Federal responsibility must be exercised, for presently most States do not
have effective controls to protect their estuaries. The Interior Department esti-
mates that only three or four States have effective plans now in operation. °
Dumping refuse of all kinds—except oil and sewage which are covered now by
law—in our estuaries would be subject to regulation by the Interior Department
or by States with adequate protection plans to guard these waters from further
ollution.
P Finally, Mr. President, this bill requires the Interior Department and the
Army Corps of Engineers to work together to authorize dredging, excavation,
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filling and other work along our shores, under the principles cited above, to
eliminate duplication and to insure that a balance is maintained between legiti-
mate conservation and development interests.

The principles involved in this legislation are sound. They seek a more fruit-
ful protection and development of our shore resources. By encouraging com-
munities and States to consider their own estuarine resources and to cooperate
in their protection and improvement, I believe we have found the proper bal-
ance between conservation and growth and between local initiative and Federal
responsibility to insure that our natural resources are devoted tn tha oraatnct
compar Fodtea oy the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States
of America in Congress assembled, That Congress finds and declares that the
Nation’s estuarine areas are endowed with a variety of natural resources of
recreational, commercial, esthetic and scientific value to the present and future
generations of Americans, and that any modification .of these areas directly
and indirectly affects their natural values; that many of these areas have been
irreversibly altered or destroyed; and that it is the policy of Congress to protect,
preserve, restore, develop and make these estuarine areas accessible for multiple
compatible uses, which give priority to maximum benefits for the widest number
of people and which can be continued without destruction, or undue alteration
or diminution of their natural resources.

“SEec. 2.-For the purposes of this Act—

“(a) The term ‘Secretary’ means the Secretary of the Interior;

“(b) The term ‘pefson’ means any individual, partnership, corporation, associ-
ation, or political subdivision of a State;

“(c¢) The term estuary or ‘estuaries’ means part or all of the tidal portion of
the navigable waters in the United States up to the mean high water line, in-
cluding, but not limited to, any bay, sound, lagoon, or channel, and the lands
underlying all such waters;

“(d) The term ‘national estaurine area’ means an environmental system com-
posed of an estuary or estuaries and adjacent lands which together is deter-
mined by the Secretary to constitute a manageable unit and which has national
significance; and

“(e) The term ‘national resources’ includes, but is not limited to, sport and
commercial fishes and other aquatic life, wildlife, esthetic, and recreational

values o e —mumu vasvL Ly © LUEAUS LOT Preserving these areas
and }or 01der1y development within them, if he determines such development con-
sistent with the goals listed in the first section of this Act. The Secretary shall
also take cognizance of the results of the study authorized by section 5 (g) of
the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, the nationwide recreation .
plan, plans developed pursuant to the Water Resources Planning Act and river
basin planning, statewide outdoor recreation plans prepared pursuant to the
Land and Water Conservation Fund Act of 1965, and other applicable studies.
“(b) The Secretary shall give particular attention to whether any estuary




“(c) The Secretary shall ‘Subllllt annually to the 'Congress throug
dent a report of the inventory conducted pursuant to this section, 1ncludmg
recommendations with. respect to the designation of any estuary and adjacent
areas as a national estuarine area to be acquired by him. Bach recommendation
of the Secretary for such designation shall become effective only if so provided
by sub%equent Act of ‘Congress. Recommendations ma_de by the Secretary whall
be developed in consultation with the States, municipalities, and other interested
Federal agencies. Hach such recommendatlon shall- be accompanied by (1)
expressions of any views which the States, municipalities, and other Federal
agencies :may submit . within ninety- days after having been notified of the
proposed recommendation, (2) a statement setting forth the probable effect
of the recommended action on any comprehensive river basin plan that may
have been adopted by Congress or that is serving as a guide for coordinating
Federal programs in the basin wherein each estuary is located, (8) in the absence
of such a plan, a statement indicating the probable effect of the recommended
action on alternative beneficial users of the resources of the proposed national
estuarine area, and (4) a discussion of the major economic, social, and ecological
trends occurring in such area.

“(d) There is authorized to be appropriated not to exceed $500,000 for the
first fiscal year beginning after enactment of this Act and for four succeeding
fiscal years not to exceed $1,000,000 annually to carry out the provisions of
this section.

“SEec. 4. (a) The Secmtary may acquire lands and waters or interests therein,
including land use easements, within any national estuarine area, approved
by ‘C‘ongres‘s or established pursuant to section 5 of this Act, by purchaﬂe with

““(b) Notwithstanding any otnel"PpsiiB g% e¥hange, He shall not acquire

acquire by condemnation any land or interests therem wuthm any national
estuarine area if such land is being used primarily for hunting, sport fishing,
or other purposes which are compatible with the purposes of this Act. The
Secretary- may exclude from the provisions of this subsection any beach or
waters, together with so much of the land adjoining such beach or waters for
public access thereto as he deems necessary to carry out the purposes of this
Act.

“(e) Any lands, waters, or interests therein within a national estuarine
area which are acquired by the ‘Secretary under this section' or administered
under section 5 of this Act, shall be managed and developed primarily for the
purposes of sport and commercial fishing, wildlife conservation, outdoor recrea-
tion, and scenic beauty, and for such other purposes as the 'Secretary determines
are compatible with the purposes of this Act.

“(d) Any Federal land located within any national estuarine area may, with
the consent of the head of the agency having jurisdiction thereof, be transferred
to the Secretary for administration as part of said area.

“Sec. 5. (a) The Secretary may enter into an agreement, containing such
terms and conditions as are mutually acceptable, with any ‘State or political
subdivision or agency thereof for the permanent management, development, and
administration of any land or interests therein within the area of an estuary
and adjacent lands which are owned or thereafter acquired by a State or by
any political suib ion thereof. ‘Such agreement shall, among other things,
provide that the '‘State or a political subdivision or agency thereof and the
50(‘1‘(,!:&1" shall share equally in the cost of managing, administering, and
developing such areas. %ate huntmff ‘and ﬁ=h1ng Iaws and regulations shall




~ 0 <ibd Covered by an agreement entered into bursuant to this Section
shall be deemed g national estuarine areg for the burposes of thig Act,

“(¢) In furtherance of the effective administration of any areg covered by
an agreement entered into under thig section, the Secretary may acquire in
accordance with the provisiong of section 4(a) of thig Act not to exceed one
thousand acreg within the boundaries of said area ang such acquired land
shall be subject to saiq agreement,

“SEC. 6. In order to carry out.the Durposes of thig Act, the Secretary may—

“(a) construet, op rate, install, and maintain ‘bu‘il‘ding‘s, devices, struicture‘s,
recreational facilities, access roads, other improvements on . property
acquired by him op covered by an agreement entereq inte pursuant to this
Act, and

“(b) enter into agreements with any ; or public or private agency or
organization through hegotiation for the Vision of public accommodationsg,

1\70 &?ei"s‘oqi?%ilsiﬁ(i“ltﬁ5%'1’?1%’19 viclate 1‘31}‘137* regulation of the Secretary
relating to the public use of any national eg uarine area, or injure, remove, or
destroy any property or improvement of the United States therein.

“(c) Any berson authorized by the Secretary to enforce the brovisions of thig
Section may, ‘Without g warrant, arrest any person violating thig Section in hig
Presence or view, and may execute any warrant or other process i

ent jurisdiction to enforce th isi
search warrant, search for and seiz
or possessed in violation y section. Any Property seized, wit
search warrant, shall be held by such berson or by the. United
bending disposition thereof by the court,

“(d) Any berson who violateg the provisiong of this section Or any regulation
issued thereunder shall be fined not more than $500 or pe imprisoned not more
than six months, or both,

“SEc. 8, ( a) Except ag brovided in section 9 of this Act, before
ducts any 1g, or excavation work: within any e
sh ’ 1 Y prior to initiating such work a ice of intention

such work together with such plang, spec-iﬁcations, and other informa-
tion relative to such. work as the Secretary may require by regulation, No such
work shall be commenced unti] authorized by the Secretary, After receipt of
such notice the Seeretary shall, within g reasonable time, authorize such person
to commence the work in accordance with such terms ang conditions as the
Secretary deems desirable, unless he determj Scretion, (1) that such
work - will unreasonably impair the natura urces of the estuary, or (2)
that such work will e the quality of the waters of the estuary below appli-
ealie water quality stangards, SiER ek, notmitstandipg. e savors e
designed to conserve and protect the naturaj resources in such estuaries, and to
brevent the pollution therein, including pollution by leaching from dumping in
adjacent areag,

88-889-—68— 3




or threatened violation.

“(e) Any person who knowingly violates any provision of thls setlauv™ ~ - °
regulations jssued thereunder or any condition in jssued thereunder
shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction shall be fined not
more than $2,500, or jmprisoned for not more than one year, .

“(£) In accordance with the policy established py Congress in the Act of
August 31, 1951 (63 Stat. 290), the Secretary shall, to the greatest extent prac-
ticable, recover from persons seeking to conduct any dredging, filling, or exca-
vation work in any estuary all reasonab i him in administer-
jng this section, and all sums received to cover Suc pe credited to
the appropriation from which payments for the administration of this section
were made.

“(g) Nothing in this section shall be construed as affecting the authority of
the Secretary of the Army to issue permits for dredging, filling, Or excavation

ny estuary under any other provisions of law. The Secretary of the
Interior and the Secretary of the Army shall, the effective date of this
section, enter into such agreements as may be appropriate to avoid duplication
of effort and to insure the expeditious handling of requests for dredging, filling,
and excavation work.

«(h) The Secretary shall provide, by regulation, that the provisions of sub-
section () of this section shall not apply in the case of any work to be initiated
by the owner of a single-family residence if such work relates solely to the use
and enjoyment of said residence by such owner or his tenant.

o e (R TR Ba s o3 sogulatious issued, PATSIRCEO Do
tary may prescribe, for his approva plan for the protection and con-
servation of estuaries. The State plan

“(1) require any person, before conducting any dredging, cavation
work within any estuary, to file with the appropriate State rity a notice
of intention to conduct such work together with such
other jnformation relative to such work as the State
regulation, and provide that no §
by such State authority in accordan i nd conditions as the
State authority deems necessary to assur unreasonably
impair the natural resources of the estuary © reduce the quality of the
waters of the estuary below applicable water quality standards, except that
notwithstanding the e effect such work will have on natural resources,
the State authority may permit such work whenever it determines that it is
necessary in the public interest; ‘

“(2) provide, for the purposes set forth in section 8(b), for the regulation of
the dumping of dredgings, earth, garbage, or other refuse materials of every kind
or description, except refuse materials flowing from § s in a liquid

state, or oil as defined in the 0il Pollution Act, 1924, into any estuary in such
State or into any other waters in such State which would have 2 detrimental
effect on any estuary in or outside of guch State;




resources, and all project plans and reports submitted to the Congress shall
contain a discussion by the Secretary of such areas and such resources and the
effects of the project on them and his recommendations thereon.

«Qpe. 12. The Secretary shall encourage States and local subdivisions thereof
to consider, in their comprehensive planning and proposals for financial assist-
ance under the Federal Aid in Wildlife Restoration Act (50 Stat. 917), as
amended (16 U.S.C. 669 et seq.), the Federal Aid in Fish Restoration Act
(64 Stat. 430), as amended (16 U.8.C. 777 et seq.), the Land and Water Con-
servation Fund Act of 1965 (78 Stat. 897), the Commercial Fisheries Research
and Development Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 197), and the Anadromous Fish Con-
servation Act of October 80, 1965 (79 Stat. 1125), the needs and opportunities
for protecting and restoring estuaries in accordance with the purposes of this
Act. In approving grants made pursuant to said laws for the acquisition of all
or part of an area surrounding an estuary by a State, the Secretary shall estab-
lish such terms and conditions as he deems desirable to insure the permanent
protection of such area, including a provision that the lands or interests therein
shall not be disposed of by sale, lease, donation, or exchange without the prior
.?RIESXiL Oufc tcl}&;%?fé'&t?f ¥ curuance witn 4 plan that is mutually acceptable to

the Secretary of the Army and the Secretary of the Interior and that is con-
gistent with the purposes of this Act.”

Senator Riercorr. Senator Kennedy.
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a fractured administrative organization within the executive branch
of the Federal Government.

RESULTS OF CONFLICTING RESOURCE POLICIES

In a special message to the Congress on natural resources, delivered
on February 23, 1961, President Kennedy took note of this fractured
organization and of some of its results:

This statement i's ’designed to bring together in one message the widely scat-
tered resource policies of the Federal Government: In the past, these policies

hg_ve oveylapged and often conflicted. Funds were wasted on competing efforts.
Widely differing standards were applied to measnre tha, Fadazs Loy dhu gume




2 on ~whathen it ha waters made foul with e
Roosevelt and Gifford Pinchot, 1n the early ct%ys i u%iél e&t&ﬁl};

saved vast areas of wilderness by placing them in national parks, thus
saving them for future generations by making them a national respon-
sibility. In the 1930’s, Hugh Bennett and Ira Gabrielson continued the
pioneering work of President Roosevelt and Secretary Pinchot, and
Iaid the base of information needed for subsequent actions by the Con-
gress. The aggressive and able leadership of Secretary Stewart Udall
has continued this determined effort to leave for our children some
large part of the natural resources we inherited, unspoiled, and I am
certain that history will place Secretary Udall alongside Gifford
Pinchot as an architect of constructive natural resource management
policy and action.

The calendar of natural resource preservation efforts, while illumi-
nated by the strong personalities I have just mentioned, is marked
all too often by contrasting and duplicating policies, the result of

With the creation of subsequent executive deparimefitS AT Rervarn mmr; :
agencies, the role of the Department of the Interior changed, during the more
than 100 years of its existence, from that of general housekeeper for the Federal
Government to that of custodian of the Nation’s natural resources.

Changing the name to the Department of Natural Resources will
give recognition to the actual status of the Department, reflecting the
changes that have occurred in its functions since 1849.

TRANSFERS OF EXISTING PROGRAMS PROPOSED

The transfer of operating programs between Federal departments
is the heart of this bill. It is also the most controversial aspect of it.
The two programs presently administered by Interior most directly
concerned with the health and welfare of individuals—the Bureau of
Indian Affairs and the Office of Territories—would be transferred to
the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare. This comports
: - e TR ae’ docerthed

yovernment

%Y 'Ne oe H s,
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These responsibilities, operated almost. entirelv hu_on_genasicvad
Massachusetts, it seems that the transfer of these functions is highly

desirable.
OCEANOGRAPHIC ACTIVITIES WOULD BE BROUGHT TOGETHER

Oceanographic functions presently lodged in the Department of the
Navy and the National Science Foundation would be transferred to
the new Department, to be woven within the oceanographic pro-
grams—research and operational—now being operated by Interior.
This would raise the level of coordination and focus of action presently
being spurred by the temporary Cabinet-level National Council on
Marine Sciences. -

Once again, this has a very interesting relationship to those States
which border on the sea, where much of the food on which the fish feed
is located in estuaries. The kind of research being done in this particu-
lar area has considerable significance, as we discover from the ex-
perience at Woods Hole. The scientists there have been doing compre-
hensive work on oceanography, fishing, and other types of conservation
of our fish resources. The importance of having these efforts coordi-
nated and consolidated cannot be overstressed. The fact that this would
be coordinated by the ney Departaehfee o e widkl this
is the logic of subjecting certain applications for Federal Power Com-
mission licenses to the new Department; many projects for which FPC
licenses are sought have profound effect on comprehensive river basin
development, and the officials charged with an overall natural resource
development program should be given an opportunity to comment.

I think the distinguished chairman is familiar, for example, with a
number of different programs that exist for sewage treatment. I believe
there are four different programs, for which different communities

are eligible. This, obviously, has a very direct relationship which does
" ' D) Ny )

O
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PLANNING TO PRESERVE RESOURCES FOR THE FUTURE

In short, the reorganization of Federal functions in the natural re-
source field to be effected by this bill would have a major impact on
the national effort to use what resources we have left in a way best
suited to the needs of the future—the needs for consumption and the
needs for preservation. ‘

It is a bit chilling, in this regard, to consider the implications of
two statistical items:

The U.S. has about 6 percent of the world’s population ; yet it consumes 50
percent of the non-renewable resources used every year; )

One hundred twenty-one million visits were recorded at National Parks in 1965
yet experts placed an efficient capacity of only 50 million visits on these parks.

The Cape Cod National Seashore Park is another example. Even
though it has been in existence only a relative short period of time,
the tremendous increase in the numbers of visitors taking advantage of

it is indicative of the need for coordinate resource planning. We
1 IAVOT CUALZE LUL Vlang v v vwdiey o waimne 4n ha 3m +hoca and other

men who administer the programs involved in the transfers contem-
plated by this bill are, I am certain, public servants dedicated to high
1deals, and I think the reorganizations would be of great help to them
in the pursuit of their jobs.

I am in favor of the bill because I think it will make their individual
tasks easier, by bringing together under one administrative roof the
related tasks; it will make the overall programs less expensive, by
introducing comprehensive planning and programing to the entire .
natural resource effort ; and it will make the tasks of the Congress more
simple, by giving one department, the responsibilities presently vested
in many departments.

A sensitive area of any reorganization legislation involves the juris-
diction of congressional committees. It would seem to me that in this
area, the various committees and staff have developed an expertise, and
that legislative authority should remain where it is, relying upon effec-
tive administration of the programs to provide essential coordination.

KENNEDY STRONGLY ENDORSES S. 886

Children in school are taught a song about the land, which, in part

~awve e
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ago in a speech in Boston. I think Senator Moss, in introducing the
legislation to do it, deserves the gratitude of all of us. Similarly, the
distinguished chairman of this subcommittee, by giving the bill a
public hearing, has done much to foster an informed public discus-

sion of the need for it.
t i nlain that manw +anhmnisal peeasdioo - .
I believe one of the most thrilling parts of government and the phil-

osophy of the American people in the last half dozen years is the re-
vival of interest and dedication to conservation of natural resources.

There is a realization that this is a national problem. We are all ,
dedicated to trying to beautify America and preserve what we have,
especially when we realize the fantastic growth and urbanization of
this Nation with a population anticipated at 300 million by the year
2000.

I am grateful to Senator Moss and his position on the Interior
Committee when he proposed the Connecticut River Park and Rec-
reation Area that you are such an ardent advocate of, too, Senator
Kennedy. The western Senators understand the need of developing
our resources in the East as well as in the West.

. 5 -

HEARINGS OPEN NATIONAL DIALOG ON CONTROVERSIAL PROPOSAL

There is no question that the creation of this department is probably
as controversial as any reorganization proposal that could be advanced.
It is going to take a lot of debate and discussion and much contro-
versy, but I do believe that all of us—the Government and the

eople—are better off by having had these hearinos Wa want ta anen
PRI Ca Potrten Soul, there Is an hereasing interest among the

States of the East, and in New England particularly, for preserva-
tion. I am mindful of the fact that only in the last 2 or 8 years have
we had State action to preserve estuaries in Massachusetts, and also
to preserve the wet lands. It was with this in mind that for the last
2 years I have introduced legislation to preserve our estuaries all across
the country. In the last few years we have also seen, in my own State,
the passage of a law to provide tax incentives for those who bequeath
or donate undeveloped land to the State. This is a rather unusual




States.

So, as you point out, there is a great deal of interest in this ques-
tion of conservation and preservation of natural resources in our
urban areas. I think that the whole structure and scope of this bill,
the purpose of it, to consolidate this and to preserve it, will be of
extraordinary value not only to friends in the West but also to those
of us in the East. '

Senator Risicorr. Senator Harris?

Senator Harris. I have no questions, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Riercorr. Senator Hansen ? .

Senator Haxsen. I have no questions, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Riercorr. Senator Baker?

Senator Baxer. Mr. Chairman, I have no questions except to reiter-
ate that, in general, I share the sentiments expressed by Senator Ken-
nedy and Senator Moss to the effect that this heightened awareness
to the necessity for conservation might better be served by improved
organization.

However, I would once again underscore my belief that central-
ization of planning does not always produce uniformly good results,
and I once again espouse my concern for one of the primary examples

in this field. the TVA.
istance of our population centers. Lnat, VLICE agalil, Loiavos L oL

thing in my own State, in part at least. The Great Smoky Mountain
National Park may not be the most spectacular national park in
America—I happen to think it is—but it is the most visited, simply
because it is in the East where the population is located, and I think
there must be a coordination of effort in this direction as well. But I
caution against, for my part, the destruction of those things good that
have been created by way of regional agencies, such as TVA, the Ap-
palachian Regional Commission, and others who have the responsi-
bility, not only for natural resources development, but human develop-
ment and economic development at the same time; and these are in-
exorably interwoven.

Senator Risrcorr. Senator Moss?

Senator Moss. I wish to express my appreciation to Senator Ken-
nedy for his very fine statement and his understanding of the problem
and the objective.

I think you stated it very well, and we would count on you to con-
tinue to expound this as the dialog continues on this.

I expressed my appreciation to the chairman of the subcommittee
for setting this down and getting this underway.

I wanted to point out one thing, that it seems to me, was in your




uuu 1—ItS TUNctions have grown into building levees and building
reservoirs, and it is into the recreation area now. The Corps of Engi-
neers has more recreational days that is spent on its waters than any
other water agency in the Federal Government, you see, and yet we
think of it sitting over there in the Department of the Army, some-
thing which was not supposed to be for recreation I do not believe. It
has grown into a full-bloom water agency, and this is proper, because
water can be used for many things, not just for transportation and not
just to control floods, but to supply cities, and so on.

We had an instance of this very recently, of the conflict that arises, in
my own State.

The Bureau of Reclamation is building the central Utah project out
there, to bring water from the Colorado basin into the great basin.
For a number of years, the city of Salt Lake has talked about a reser-
voir in the mountains above the city for flood control, one, but really
more important for water supply.

Well, the Corps of Engineers got in on that one, because of the flood
control part of it.

So, when they made the announcement of the proposal to build the
dam there to control the floods and to bring water to the city, the

Bureau of Reclamation came up and said, “We do not want to do that.
boaeros wrouoopal wucliv U1 INwoural” Kkesources sometime far bac

before it ever got that far along, obviously.

Now, that is just one little minute element of conflict. I think you
can find it all through the thing.

One other thing you mentioned, about the structure of the commit-
tees of Congress on this thing.

It is a fact that we have been treating the Forest Service appro-
priations in with Interior for a long time in the Appropriations
Committee, even though they are in two separate departments, because
they are on the same subject matter, and therefore we have been a
little more logical than the executive department here in the Congress
in our structure.

I certainly appreciate your testimony, Senator.

Senator Ripricorr. Thank you very much, Senator Kennedy.

Senator Ken~epy. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

(At Senator Ribicoft’s previous instruction, the prepared statement
submitted by Senator Gale McGep is incorporated into the record at
this point and is as follows:)




EXHIBIT 5
STATEMENT OF SENATOR GALE McGEE (D-W¥o.)

Mr. Chairman, the testimony I offer this morning is to favor a vital piece of
legislation introduced by Senator Moss, myself, and others to redesignate the
Department of the Interior as the Department of Natural Resources and to
transfer certain agencies to and from such Department.

Legislation which takes such a broad, but absolutely compelling step undoubt-
edly means there will be cries of pain from two types of protesters. The first of
these types will be those who go into shocked anguish when a name is changed.
The second type is that person who views any change as a threat to what he
views as his own fixed and God-given order of things.

In regard to the first type, those who quiver at changing words, it is thus
{11%5 Pg@ag the name of the Department of the Interior to the Department

oug prrivu v u A aneine tho natiral
and must be, one must once again point to the fundamental fact of life—the fact
of ehange—whmh means that from time to time that the administration of the
consequences of change must also change.

There isn’t a person in Congress and the government who isn’t aware of the
hodge-podge of agencies that deal with natural resources. At times indeed the
competing and contending activities of the agencies and bureaus within the
various departments charged with the care of our natural resources boggles one’s
reason. By the same token, one cannot help but be impressed by the skill and dedi-
cation of the employees in all of these agencies and departments. Yet we are faced
with incredible complexities in administering our natural resources; and the
murky conglomeration of agencies and bureaus, too many times contending with
one another for jur ction, do not make the problem any easier. For: example,
the development of our water resources is made unduly difficult, if we are con-
cerned with the entire river basin concept, as long as independent bureaus with
traditional loyalties and jealous clientele carve up the development and manage-

of tasks.

This Nation faces a two-fold task in developing overall river basin planning.
First, this country must find and find quickly increased supplies of clean water;
and second, we must manage with far more wisdom than we have used thus far
the water supplies we now have. The total management of water resources in-
volves a variety of functions. Among others are watershed protection and man-
agement, flood control, river and harbor improvements, irrigation, fish and wild-
life, recreation, desalinization, and pollution. This whole package must be tied
together. We must plan for entire river basins from their sources to their mouths.

uven should authorities be Quccesqfullv eqtablmhed for every river basin, how-

LELILILUEY WAL Y uwasty ~ Dwnninitatinn  nallutio ater
not to mention the vital role that the Department of Housing and’0 %31?1 Fale-

op should play. Below the departmental level, a Pandora’s box opens. In In-
terior alone we have this array of agencies—the Bureau of Reclamation, three
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s > WO WAICh we have put our natural resources, but by the
way in which we view those natural resources. The distinction between use and
view is an important distinction. Such g distinction ig not mean
that use and view are DPolaritieg, Indeed, they are i

Those who first i

by the magnificence and abund.
game, the water, the very iousness bly to the view that the
cornucopia e . S sense of abundance Was manifestegd

3 iaries of early COtHIANS ‘and don s
+ oo o o gae B d1§_1 AW Mmaterialy in the New World

e point is, M airman, that for a long time in America’s history mogt
Americang had little, if any, awareness that our natural r ources would, or
even could, have g limit, Thus, during the time of our national expansion, we
found little attention being paid to the wholesale devastation of our Iandscape,
of our minerals, of our water, and, sad to say, in some cases, of our human

adept at rec gnizing the role of government
in helping to solve problems, the more we saw government reflecting the com-
plexities of the times,

The present departments of government came about because broblems were
Tecognized. This ig most particular the Department of the Interior, the
Department of Agpri of Commerce,

The Departme ! rior, es i 1849, came about as a result
of the long-established Tecognition that we had untolq acres of land which re-
quired orderly development, The Settling of the W in no sman way to
the fact that the Federal Government took a direct hand in that settlement,

In 1889 we established the Department of Agriculture because we had long
since become aware that the practice of mining farm lands no longer haq the
easy out of abandonment for new vistags, Thus, one of the chief functions of the
Department of Agriculture wag the pursuit of scientifie farming,

During the Progressive Era, more ang more Americang ‘became awsare of the
irrational pillage which our natural resources w oing. One of the

pillage was the establishment of t ment of Commerce
- The effort to regulate commerce Was as much an effort to save our
natural resources ag it wasto regulate the excesses of business,

REDESIGNATE THE DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

AS THE DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
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One of the absolute requirements of wise plannliils e U o

resources is the recognition of the fact that if we Tun out of raw material for

our productive machine, we will have no more productive machine. But what of

man’s psychic requirements? The necessity that the spirit requires something
t happen to the eye. The redwoods, the mountains, the wilderness areas,

the lakes, the uninterrupted vistas, these are all our heritage as much as steel

plants and highways—indeed. not only & heritage, but a necessity.

A Department of Natural Resources should be as much concerned with the
psychic income from our natural resources as it would be with the material
income from our natural resources. .

Tn conclusion, Mr. Chairman, My remarks should be construed in no way as an
attack on the Departments presently involved. Indeed, it is a plea that they be
allowed to erate more vigorously and effectively. We need the talent and
dedication of these departments in a new and reordered way which would allow
us the wise use of natural resources. This wise use should be the result of the
government’s activity, not in spite of it.

‘Surely, when the private sector of our affairs increasingly incorporates the
total svstems approach, then the public sector should benefit from the same kind

on minninla that
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The balance of my remarks this morning go to that aspect of the
yertainly uiray 15 uésiravic Sl yaoouros ey

means suggested———removing the civil works program from the Army
Corps of Engineers——would contribute to the objective sought, and

oven if it did, whether that contribution would be worth the sacrifice
of the benefits, national security and other, inherent in the present
arrangement.

When it began in 1824 the civil works program was aimed only at
improving navigability of the Nation’s rivers. Over the intervening
143 years many Tunctions have been added by Congress: flood protec-
tion, the development of water power; the provision of municipal and
industrial water supplies; shore protection; pollution abatement ;
agsistance to State and local governments in managing flood plain

1 rtanee ~mmunities stricken by floods, earthquakes,
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COMPLEMENTARY NATURE OF TWO OPERATIONS

The Corps of Engineers at the present time carries on two inter-
related programs: One for military construction, which has aggre-
gated $11.5 billion in the past decade, and the other for civil works,
which has involved $10.7 billion in the same period. This conjunction
of responsibilities permits the two programs to be run on a comple-
mentary basis, with one overhead of technical and administrative
personnel rather than two. Throughout the country the military con-
struction activities of the Corps of Engineers, including the impor-
tant work it does for the Air Force and NASA, are carried out
through the same district and division offices that are responsible for
the civil works program. Military construction requirements would
demand that a substantial part of this organization continue even if
civil works responsibilities were eliminated. Yet in such a case many
of the same jobs and functions which now use_one set, of epnlovase
gl oo vians 1 place tne SAITT 0T personnel and funds is in the other
direction as the civil works program becomes the main activity. The
overall program of the corps, therefore, is at the same time flexible and
stable, with advantages in efficiency and economy which would be lost
if the programs were to be separated.

CORPS’ CIVIL PROGRAM STRENGTHENS MILITARY CAPABILITY

In addition, enactment of S. 886 in its present form could adversely
affect the military capability of the Army. In part, the success of the
Army Engineers in the military field may be credited to the fact that
the corps has, for a period of 143 years, also been responsible for the
civil works program. A trained organization in being and capable of
taking immediate action has been of inestimable value in military as
well as natural disaster emergencies. The 1965 report of the Army’s
Civil Works Study Board concluded that conduct of the civil pro-
gram by the corps “strenothens the. Ay’ AT
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they should. The goals of our society are many, and those which clash
must be examined and balanced against each other in seeking to max-
‘we’ Lully wnouy sovorad oo oen o )

tion to the Congress. This does, of course, lengthen the decisionmaking
process on difficult issues, but, the additional step may be at a small
price to pay for the assurance that full public consideration has been
given to all viewpoints, objectives and alternatives, and that plans are
truly comprehensive and balanced. ‘

INTEGRATION OF WATER RESOURCES POLICIES

Congress already has moved to improve interagency co-

ordination by enacting the Water Resources Planning Act of 1965.
This landmark legislation provided coordinating machinery by estab-
lishing as interdepartmental bodies the Water Resources Council and
River Basin Commissions. These bodies have not yet had sufficient
time to prove their effectiveness. In addition, useful recommendations
as to future water resource policy can be expected from the National
Water Commission, to be established in legislation: already passed by
both Houses of Congress. In these circumstances a sweeping alteration
of civil works responsibilities within the executive branch appears at
best premature.

For these reasons, the Department of Defense opposes the transfer
of its functions as called for in S. 886.
read. However, 1 Will pe weflintu W ndy ofytde NAwoe v ol fallaw ma
you wish. ’ ,

General Jornsox. I have made some slight alterations, Mr. Chair-
man. Iwould prefer to read it,if I may.

Senator Riercorr. Certainly.
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STATEMENT OF GEN. HAROLD K. JOHNSON, CHIEF OF STATFT, U.S.
ARMY; ACCOMPANIED BY LT. GEN. WILLIAM CASSIDY, CHIEF OF
ENGINEERS, AND BRIG. GEN. HARRY G. WOODBURY, DIRECTOR
OF CIVIL WORKS, CORPS OF ENGINEERS, DEPARTMENT OF THE
ARMY

General Jounson. Mr. Chairman, as Chief of Staff of the Army, I
oppose enactment of that part of S. 886 that would transfer the civil
works functions of the Army Engineers to a Department of Natural

Resources. I believe the transfer wanld hna Asiwl i lisg aud GOl
~o gouiun 110G COIMDAT Zones, 1 the communications areas, and in the

mobilization support areas in the United States are critical to the
Army’s effective performance.

Our mobilization rate is dependent in part on qualified engineers,

trained, organized and in being, with experience asa part of the mili-
. tary team, who are prepared to expand our posts and training facili-
ties, and to man our combat and combat-support units.

It is important that construction support be available when it is
needed. It must be large enough and flexible enough to meet a wide
range of conditions. It is upon the Corps of Engineers that the Army
relies to provide that support. The Army Engineers are an essential
part of the military team that is necessary to meet our needs in the
United States and in those external areas where the United States has
commitments.

ADVANTAGES OF ARMY’S CIVIL WORKS PROGRAM

The total Army Engineers capability in the United States is di-
vided roughly into 75 percent civil activities and 25 percent military
activities. The total organization operates under the control of the
Army, is experienced In Army procedures. and is thue.pencbls w*
cosinlgearonmaits vl ‘tn€ ‘Alaskan earthquake, Operation Noah in
New England in 1955 and Hurricane Betsy in the gulf in 1965.
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Provides an inducement for attracting ana FOLALLLLLY, iaxgeany
qualified professional engineers and related skills for the Army,
both military and civil service personnel, who would not be
attracted by a less diversified organization

Provides an opportunity for the experience and training of
engineer and logistics officers in planning, constructing and man-
aging large and complex projects that would not otherwise be
available in the normal peacetime situation; 75 percent of the
engineers commanding battalions and larger units today in Viet-
nam have had the benefit of experience gained in Engineer dis-
trict assignments; 62 percent of the Regular Army field grade
officers—that is, officers in the grade of major and above—are
likewise so trained ;

Provides close ties with the engineering profession and the
engineering and construction industries, keeping the military
up-to-date on civilian engineering, construction, and scientific
techniques and developments;

Provides, conversely, for an easier flow of the results of mili-
tary engineering research and development techniques and devel-
opments to-the civilian engineering community; and

“rran W A damihla and. vidihle eﬁdence at the country’s grass-

ties must be available to the Army at all TImes ana parvicuiatsy Zuwsi,
the critical mobilization planning phase required to cope with an
actual state of emergency.

The time available to respond to emergency conditions is now more
compressed than ever. The difficulties and delays inherent in the re-
transfer of a separate civilian agency would so increase the time re-
quired to put the necessary engineering and construction resources into
an effective operation that its usefulness in the mobilization phase
could be seriously impaired. And there is no assurance that the civil
works elements lost to the Army would remain in an organizational
form in the new department that would be suitable for military needs
when retransferred.

LIABILITIES OF TRANSFER OF CIVIL WORKS ACTIVITIES

If civil works responsibilities were taken from the Army—
Our cost of construction would goup;
The technical quality of our personnel and the capability of our
Army units would be reduced ; and
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Onr anoinane mr:);éli—-,*dixu Poruaps verrer than 1.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Senator Riercorr. You are welcome.

COORDINATION. BEGINS EARLY IN PROJECT DEVELOPMENT

Mr. Secretary, it has been said that various Federal agencies each
tend to operate in a vacuum with little coordination in developing
projects. ’

At what stage of project development and to what degree does the
Corps of Engineers coordinate with other Federal agencies?

Secretary Resor. I have here with me Mr. Fitt, who is my Special
Assistant for Civil Functions, who has spent most of his time while
he was General Counsel of the Army, at least a significant portion of
his time, on engineering matters, and I am going to ask him to assist
in answering some of these questions.

I would like him to respond to that one.

Senator Risrcorr. Perfectly all right.

Mr. Frrr. Well, of course, coordination takes place at the very out-
set of any project which has its inception as a gleam in somebody’s
eye.
yThe& way in which the svstem oneratec is thot whanog seo Fland wy
wien cooraination begins.

CONFLICTS WITH OTHER FEDERAL AGENCIES

Senator Risicorr. But you do run into some conflicts. You might be
putting up a dam or building some projections out into a harbor or
bay, and you certainly run into problems with the Department of the
Interior in protection of wildlife, and so forth.

T notice here an item from the New York Times: “Army Admits
Role in Lake Pollution.”

There is a story here about the Army Corps of Engineers problem
in Lake Michigan. So, you do run into conflicts.

(The article referred to follows:)




[From the New York Times, Oct. 11, 1967]
EXHIBIT 6
ArRMY ADMITS ROLE IN LAKE POLLUTION

HOUSE PANEL HEARS GENERAL AT LAKE MICHIGAN INQUIRY

WASHINGTON, October 10 (AP).—The Army Corps of Engineers admitted today
that it .was helping to pollute Lake Michigan, and said that it would probably
have to continue doing so at least through 1970.

But Brig. Gen. H. G. Woodbury Jr., the corps’ director of civil works, told
a House subcommittee that the pollution material, harbor dredgings dumped
into the lake, was small compared with that from industry and cities.

The corps must dredge in order to maintain 108 Great Lakes harbors, General
Woodbury said, and must dump dredgings into the lakes until Federal and
local agencies are willing to spend some $500-million for inland disposal pits.

He testified at a hearing requested by Chicago’s Metropolitan ‘Sanitary District
after the corps announced it must dump 200,000 cubic yards of dredging from
Indiana Harbor into Lake Michigan. '

The sanitary district asked a Congressional investigation aimed at ending
R atamentrion® et Arrennioo " P s
are dumping is small in coﬁ‘lpar’f'ssﬂ P(Y JﬂfeLAﬁH}YuEH%énSSFES%I.lgwcltlef‘_ {que
thelake.”

Representative Roman C. Pucinski, Deémocrat of Illinois, said the amount of
pollution dumped by the corps was not the point. : ‘

“The problem,” he said, “is that you really can’t crack down on private industry
when you have a Federal agency doing any kind of polluting.”

General Woodbury said the corps was not likely to get sufficient money to
end the dumping before 1970, when a $6-million study on effects of the dumping
will be completed. He said an interim report was expected next summer.

‘Senator Risrcorr. What I am curious about is this: When do you
sit down and how often do you sit down with the Department of the
Interior or HEW on water pollution, or the Department of Agri-
culture?

When do you sit down with any of them ¢

Do you ? )

Mr. Frrr. Oh, yes, sir. There is a constant course of dealings.

CORPS WORKS TO COOPERATE WITH OTHER AGENCIES

For example, in the case of the really serious difficulties in the Great
Lakes area that were mentioned in the New York Times, the Army
Corps of Engineers has been working directly with the Federal Water
™ e Nevdwnl Adminictration. both at its regional office in
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OFFICE OF THE CHIEF OF ENGINEERS
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sy vpwsuiucul UL The Army, and the Federal Water Pollution Control Administra-
tion (FWPCA) for the Department of the Interior.

By acts of Congress the Corps of Engineers is responsible for improvement and
maintenance of the waterways of the United States in the interest of naviga-
tion. These waterways are life-lines of America’s growth, industrial might and
prosperity, and their proper maintenance is an exceedingly important responsi-
bility of the Corps. The Corps of Engineers recognizes that considerable time
will be required before complete treatment of municipal and industrial wastes
will prevent the introduction of pollutants to the waterways. During this time
a means must be found to keep the waterways open. Doing so involves dredging
of polluted material. The Corps is therefore studying alternate procedures for
the disposal of the polluted dredging resulting from these industrial and
municipal wastes.

The Department of Interior (FWPCA) by Congressional acts has the
responsibility to enhance quality and value of all water resources and to carry
out, in cooperation with State and local governments, a national program aimed
at the prevention, control and abatement of water pollution. Additionally by
Executive Order No. 11288, the Department of the Interior shall provide tech-
nical advice and assistance to heads of other Departments, who are to provide
leadership in the nationwide effort to improve water quality through preven-
tion, control and abatement of water pollution from Federal Government
activities.

The two agencies agree that Joint effort is required for the development of
acceptable alternative disposal means with the ultimate objective of providing
leadership in the nationwide effort to improve water quality through preven-
tion, control and abatement of water pollution by Federal water resources
projects.

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
ESTIMATED DREDGING REQUIREMENTS—CALENDAR YEAR 1967
Projects

Lake Ontario Lake Michigan

Rochester Harbor, N.Y. Calumet Harbor and River, Ill. and Ind.
Oswego Harbor, N.Y. Indiana Harbor, Ind.

Great Sodus Bay Harbor, N.Y. Green Bay Harbor, Wis.

Little Sodus Bay Harbor, N.Y. 70 Rivers Harbor, Wis.

T g . < sha Harbor, Wis

Lake Superior ‘ on. Harbor 1}‘1

Duluth- ffghigan and Wis.

uperior, Hathgr Minn ama e - ifliee F1drpor,
a Ly

Toledo Harbor, Ohio
Lorain Harbor, Ohio
Sandusky Harbor, Ohio
Fairport Harbor, Ohio - N
Ashtabula Harbor, Ohio Kewaunee

Racine Harbor, Wis.
Port Washington Harbor, Wis.
Harbor, W’ig.




into the lake from such areas, as well a8 [Ig LT OUTINS

When acceptable alternate methods of dredge disposal have been agreed upon,
and at the earliest possible time, the Corps will take appropriate budgetary action
to secure the necessary funds. This may require substantial funds programmed
over a period of several years.

‘The Federal Water Pollution Control Administration will contribute to the
pilot study effort by providing leadership in the development and implementation
of an effective program for measuring the polutional effects of the materials to
be dredged. Skilled personnel as well as fixed and mobile laboratory facilities
of that agency will be made available to analyze these materials for chemical,
biological, physical and other characteristics and thus determine the effective-
ness of the various methods proposed.

AU wpmat i O eeecawd tha nati

ederal-State-local program to prevent,

112 Manant

0 -vvl}‘dp
to prevent an example of what the FedeTdl (rOovei ity aue

the incomparable values of the Great Lakes water resources.

going to solve these problems through the developuIsuy v vusp - ve-v—
sive plans in which all viewpoints have been considered.

T believe that is the process which is taking place now. It is not a
perfect process, and improvements are constantly being made. But
the old charges against the corps asan authoritarian organization in-
different to the values of beauty and preserving wild rivers, for ex-
ample, or lands in a pristine condition, those charges simply are not
accurate.

Senator Risrcorr. Well, how often do you sit down with other agen-
cies to discuss the problems of potential conflict in the conservation of
natural resources ?

I am just curious. )

Mr. Frrr. Let me refer that to General Cassidy.

CONSULTATION BEGINS EARLY IN STUDY

General Cassioy. In all of our studies, right at the beginning of the
study. For instance, one of the projections we must make immediately
e IT Ay sorlar area 001 o orow? And here we go to the
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Engineers. Having been Governor during those years' and having

called on the corps for assistance, I recall that your aid was given so

rapidly and so effectively that we, in Connecticut, have always had
a great affection for the corps and all the men that compose it.

CORPS IS INVOLVED IN RECREATION PROGRAMS

But I am curious about whether you are aware, actively and
positively aware, of the problems of the erosion of our natural resources
and the need to do everything possible to see that they are preserved.
Just in the planning stage of how these projects are executed, it seems
to me that much more can be done, although I think, today, in build-
ing most of your dams, you take into account the problems of recrea-
tion. Now, who runs those recreation areas? Do you or does the De-
partment of the Interior?

General Cassipy. We run most of the recreation areas at our
reservoirs and on the rivers where we have developments. If there is
a national forest in that area, the Forest Service will run the recreation
in the national forest areas.

Senator Rieicorr. Let me just take a field like this:

You build a dam and you try to nlan recreation avanc heé -
1. e o weo i 1a1gesL UL LIE recreation agencies.

Senator Risicorr. Why should the Krmy be in the recreation
business? : ‘

Let’s say that you build the dams, and the recreation areas are an
important byproduct and a great asset, and I like what you are doing,
but once you build a dam and do the engineering work why should
not the recreation areas be turned over to the National Park Service?

I mean, what do you want it for?

General Cassipy. At one time, this effort was made, and the Park
Service turned it down.

(The following additional information was subsequently furnished

ihe e .
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General Cassipy. Now, we try to turn the areas over to the States
or to the counties or to local interests to operate them in accordance
with national policy expressed in the Federal Water Project Recrea-
tion Act (Public Law 89-72). We make a definite effort to get some-
one else to operate the recreational side; however, we do have to oper-
ate the reservoir itself in its fluctuation, in taking care of the water
surface and the shore surface. So, it is hard to separate reservoir regu-
lation for its many purposes from recreational use and its manage-
ment.

Senator Rieicorr. It becomes very obvious that there is not much
chance of the Corps of the Army Engineers being turned over to a
Department of Natural Resources, but that does not mean that we
((ia{mot see what you should be doing and what you should not be

omg.
- PARK SERVICE COULD HANDLE RECREATION AREAS

stand that when you are 1 a tneater U1 was -yuw o wivon_ta tha Na-
tional areas, but you certainly do not want to run recreational areas
in 50 States with all the headaches and problems that this entails.

General Cassioy. We are doing it very competently now, sir, but if
the Park Service wanted it and if the Congress decided to do so, we
would have no objection.

Senator Risicorr. In other words, irrespective of what happens to
this measure, if there could be, either through Executive order or a
reorganization plan, some way worked out between you and Secretary
Udall—why, this is something you are not going to fight for, if Inte-
rior would like to take it over?

General Cassmy. We are already doing this to some extent in the
reservoir at Tock’s Island. The Park Service is to operate it; going to
operate the entire area. So, we have no basic objection there, sir.

Senator Rreicorr. I have a few questions here from Senator Moss
who could not be here today, and I will ask them for Senator Moss.
The first question is:

AREA CONTROLLED BY ARMY ENGINEERS

“How many acres of water and land are controlled by the Civil




EMPLOYEES OF CIVIL WORKS DIVISION

Senator Risicorr. How many military and civilian employees are
presently assigned to the Civil Works Division ? How many military
and how many civilian ?

General Cassoy. There are about 82,000 civilians and, at the pres-
ent time, 127 military.

Senator RIsrcorr. 127,000 ¢

General Cassmy. 127,000,

Senator Riercorr. One hundred twenty-seven military ?

General Casspy. Yes, sir.

Senator Risicorr. And 32,000 civilian ?

General Cassipy. Yes, sir.

This is as the result of the Vietnamese war. It is the same thing
that happens in any war,

(The following additional information wag subsequently furnished
for the record :) ‘

The total civilian capabilit; Military Construc-
tion and Civil Works encom wor F ;000 employees. Of
these, approximate) ,000 are cat i ! i personnel and are
wn the personnel management <EFCEEL PEOTRAME P~ IHTAT Tosonices. are
limited. Should we not make every possible effort to effect the best

nagement techniques with regard to land, water, and mineral
resources ? .

General Cassioy. Yes. And T believe, over the years, Congress has

dered this and has finally evolved a system in the Water Resources
Council.

(The following additional information was subsequently furnished
for the record:)

The Water Resources Council as presently constituted is well structured to
accomplish the missiong assigned to it and more. The agencies are working
increasingly well together and we all benefit from the increased coordination
and communication. This ig a significant accomplishment and perhaps the main

objective of the Act, Tangible results of this interagency coordination can be
expected with increasing frequency as time goes by.

FLOOD CONTROL IN FLORIDA EVERGLADES

Senator Risrcorr. Should th Florida Everglades be drained at one
point under the flood control justification thus causing a loss of wild-
life resources ? Tsn’t there a better way ¢

General Cassioy. I cannot answer that question, because it is stated
in a rather strange fashi
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The Engineers have built massive levees to contain runoff from Lake
Okeechobee and constructed 1,400 miles of drainage canals in the name of flood
control. Park Service officials complain bitterly that the Engineers have drained
Tverglades National Park almost dry in their efforts to halt wetlands flooding
and reclaim glade country for agriculture.

Tlood control advocates have said that reclamation is for people and Everglades
Park is “for the pirds.” But I do not believe that is the question. The Park is
o neonle and the farms are for pepple. The real question is how shall priorities
was cut off by the local Klorida “LAITCOWIIBLS UL Giitsssg, viswan —wom-
corps project has been underway 20 years. The construction has gone
on and we are about 50 percent complete. We have looked at this prob-
lem for many years. It 1s a problem of water use, and part of the
problem must be solved by working with the State of Florida which
really has authority m the use of the waters of Florida.

PLANS TO CONTROL DROUGHT AND FLOOD CYCLES

1n the last several years, we have been working on a plan to provide
additional water to the Everglades. It is not a question of draining
the Everglades. Itisa question of adequate rainfall supplemented by a
flow of water down into the Everglades from the north.

The glades are Now getting twice as much water south of the
Tamiami Trail per inch of ramfall as they have had before, and we
are working toward a system which will enable us to continue and
make a more reliable supply of water.

There is a great deal of talk about what is happening there. The
glades used to go through a periodic cycle of drought and wet. There
ere losses in the glades at that time. This is the natural cycle. And,
really, what they are looking for now is an even ecological cycl

WA A A2t mravent historic droughts. W

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR-NATIONAL PARK SERVICE
DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY-CORPS OF ENGINEERS
Joint Fact Sheet on:

WATER SITUATION AT EVERGLADES NATIONAL PARK

The Everglades National Park is primarily an aquatic area. The park has for
several recent years experienced drought periods that have been extremely




m this deficiency of supply
were alleviated, at least temporarily, by the late-starting rainy season of last
fall. Hurricane Betsy, with 6 to 10 inches of rainfall directly on the park, and
other rains, have raised the water levelg to the point that, at the end of 1965,
they were about equal to levels at the end of 1964. The question as to how soon,

or if, the animal and plant life that hag been so severely damaged in the drv
Vv asu properly damage, the

3 ; iNng fn ha oxnevepena..
J’u‘iﬁigduf agugfggggg é‘&{? i‘ﬁlg: in 1928 constructed the Okeechobee waterway ' in-
volving the existing St. Lucie Canal, the lake, and the Caloosahatchee River and
enlarged the existing levees around much of the lake.

In 1947, the Bverglades National Park was established, At that time, and sub-
Sequent thereto, there wag Some overland flow of water into the park from the
north.

In 1948, the Congress authorized the construction and operation of the Central
and S Florida flood control broject. Considerable detail as to purposes of

j in House Document No, 643, 80th Congress, 2nd Session.
i “the plan of improvement has also

rtance of the Everglades National

Tom. conservati ill assist in restoring

and maintaining natural conditions within the national park area, by reducing
m drought and fire which have threatened the pbreservation of lands,

vegetation and wildlife.”
With specific reference to the Everglades National Park, the Central and

Southern Florida floor control project works include construction of three con-
servation areas north of the park for storage and release of water for beneficial
use. Conservation Area 3, directly north of the park, is the main storage facility
designed to hold water which can be released into ‘the park. ‘As g part of ‘this
conservation area there was constructed in 1962 a levee (L~29) for approxi-
mately 10 miles along the northern edge of ‘the park. Thig levee contains five
sets of gates through which water can be released from the conservation area
into the park.

At present, several factors make supply of water to the park difficult, The
southward flow of water released into Conservation: Ares 2 fmam. ¥ ab s O

and MNas s L2

Tests ducted in 1965 indicate that the release capacity of the existing
system for the benefit of the pbark can be improved by the use of project pumps.
Funds for thig purpose have not heretofore been available, However, even using
maximum pumping capability, it may be necessary, in an emergency, to dis-
charge excess water via the 'St. Lucie Canal and ‘Caloosahatchee River to
safeguard life and broperty when heavy rainfall is encountered and the hurri-
cane season is imminent.




under existing and exp: cu St e
diagonal levee, 1-67C) within Conservation Area 3 was Sstarte LLd
1965. This will reduce seepage losses to: the east and thereby increase surface
water for distribution to the park. Additional work (L-67 extension) consist-
ing of a levee and canal along the east boundary of the park to distribute water
to the park will be placed under way during the spring of 1966.
A further interim plan has been Jdeveloped for the transfer of water from
Lake Okeechobee to the park during periods when the lake levels will permit.
tance of the ‘Central and Southern Florida Flood
Tlorida, this work can proceed, in part, under
ditional authority now being sought.
The plan con gement and extension of the North New River Canal
downstream from the agricultural area to a junction with the Miami Canal and
the Borrow Canal for L-67, enlargement of the Miami Canal downstream from
the agricultural area to the same point, and the enlargement of the L—-67 Borrow
Canal from the Miami Canal to the park poundary. This work can be done under
existing authority with the participation of the State. To this the State has
agreed. The construction costs total -about $3,000,000 ($2,400,000—Federa1; $600,-
000-State). Funds to accomplish the North New River Canal enlargement, esti-

T?ﬁlfi% 11%71;a 23&399152“’? Eyaﬂ?l‘)}g,n '%‘11112‘}1;; ig proposed to place this work under con-

Senator Risicorr. Now, this is what I was wondering abodt. 10w
much consultationis there with the National Park Service?

Let’s take the Everglades as an example, because you do have a
complicated problem here. . :

Now, how do you plan with the National Park Service on a prob-
lem of this nature? ‘

General Cassioy. We work with the Park Service constantly, sir,
and with the State of TFlorida, to try to reach solutions to problems.

But we have to reach solutions that are agreeable to the State and
to the Park Service, and this has been rather difficult until just recently.

COOPERATION WITH BUREAU OF RECLAMATION

Senator Risrcorr. Here is a final question from Senator Moss:
«General Cassidy, you stress coordination with the Bureau of Rec-
lamation in the West. Have the Bureau’s views on 2 proposed proj-
ect ever prevailed over the views of the Army #”

General Cassiy. Yes, sir; quite often I would say.
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STATEMENT OF HON. ORVILLE L. FREEMAN, SECRETARY
‘OF AGRICULTURE

Secretary Freeman. Mr. Chairman and members of the subcom-
mittee, th Department of Agriculture naturally is interested in this

e o el ations administered through
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continue the old method.

1andle much better, I do not know why we
General Cassiy. Right; sir.
_Senator RiBicorr., ‘Thank you very much, gentlemen. We do appre-
. clate your coming here this morning.
o Secretary Freeman, please, .
“Wehweleome you today, Mr. Secretary. It just goes to show how
diverse the problems and the duties of a Secretary are.

Yesterday you were in front of the Finance Committee on trade,
and here you are testifying today on the Department of N atural Re-
sources. You certainly have to know how to be a switch hitter in this
business.

Secretary Frerman. Nice to be here, Mr. Chairman, and to see you
again, :

Senator Rieicorr. Why don’t you proceed as you will ?

Secretary Freemax. All right, sir. ’

88-889 0—68——5
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SOIL CONSERVATION IS CONNECTED TO PRIVATE LANDS

The Soil Conservation Service began as the Soil Erosion Service, an
emergency program under the Public Works Administration. The
Soil %rosion Service was established to conduct emergency demonstra-
tions and to provide labor for the unemployed at a time when the very
earth of the Great Plains was vanishing in devastating duststorms,
destructive floods were washing away the heartland of America, and
the Nation was gripped in the Great Depression.

It soon became apparent that this fledging service was of such value
it should be given permanent status and everyone, ‘including then
Secretary of Interior Harold Ickes, who administered it under PWA,
recognized that it ought to be established within the Department of
Agriculture. Why ? Because it was a program associated with private
lands and could not be separated from agriculture, all of which is
s piivave’ UWLEISILIP.” by i ; ‘ e

OTHER PROGRAMS ADMINISTERED BY A;E-RI/CULTURE

/.

The Department has first Federal responsibility with respect to the
water that falls on this nearly 81 percent of the Nation’s land. We
have extensive programs of controlling, conserving, and developing
this water resource where it falls—in the forests and on the private
lands in agricultural and other uses.




Forest Service, and the Department o ™
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a reality, and today it is accepted by both public and private timber
management.

‘And Roosevelt, Pinchot, and the Department made another concept

a reality, too. I speak of the concept of multiple use of our national

forests. The same national forest that yields timber for humen-use

B om rowide recreation. can graze cattle and wildlife, can support
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To create such a revitalized rural America will require all the tools
wlusvadi v fedompliogs inalinding o mavimnm amonnt, of local leader-
very nature, a part of the warp and ‘woof of local development, de-
cisionmaking, and administration in the use of renewable resources:

As such, these two agencies must play an ever-increasing role in the
revitaliaztion of rural America so necessary to the restoration of rural-
urban balance. :

These agencies are indigenous to rural America. Small watersheds
coupled with essential land treatment; private, relatively small, farm
forestry ; national forest management, including grazing and water
management—all are as much a part of farmland and town and coun-
try as skyscrapers are of megalopolis.

Three-fourths of this Nation’s land is in privately owned tracts in
rural America. Of the privately owned forest and, nearly 80 percent is
owned in small parcels by private owners who have no connection with:
large forest industry. The owners of these tracts in rural America—
farm and forest—must carry the main burden of meeting our growing
resource needs. Most 'of them are farmers who traditionally have coop-
erated with the USDA in a wide range of other programs.

GROWING RESOURCE NEEDS ARE HANDLED EFFICIENTLY.

_.Kar.over 100 vears. the Department of Agriculture has been geared
tial for growth, -
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This relationship is like a delicate instrument, the product of trial
and error over many years, balancing National, State and local inter-
ests and management participation in an effective manner.

Similarly, the watershed and flood prevention activities of the Soil
Conservation Service are operated by and for local people in time-
tested programs of assistance to Soil and Water Conservation Districts
and numerous other sponsoring local organizations. These involve inti-
mate contact with local farmers‘and such other agencies of the USDA
as the Agricultural Stabilization and Conservation Service with its
commodity and conservation programs. These, too, are integral parts
our our Department’s efforts to advance the social, cultural, andp eco-
nomic well-being of Countryside, U.S.A.

PROGRAMS AIM AT CREATING. VIABLE RURAL COMMUNITIES

Today, one of our most pressing needs is to build economically viable
rural communities. Consistent and integrated land and water resource
mmanagement systems are needed to make multiple use of resources
effective and to axnand tha.arnortanitiarfagory 2laubedi-x v sEpilide
+ the small watershed program under Public Law 566 from the rest of
the land treatment programs of the Department—and, figuratively,
to separate the woods a farmer owns from the rest of his farm enter-
prise—is poor organization.

The ties that weave the research, cooperative forestry, and public
land management of the Forest Service, and the soil-conserving and
watershed and flood prevention activities of the Soil Conservation
Service into the overall programs and responsibilities of the USDA,
we are convinced, are much more significant, much more binding, than
they would be to a Department of Natural Resources such as thas pro-

posed by S. 886.
AGRICULTURE’S PROGRAMS DECENTRALIZED TO MEET LOCAL NEEDS

I most emphatically do not mean to minimize in any way the im-
portance of Interior’s programs. But historically, and as a practical
matter of day-to-day working, they are not linked as closely to local
communities, farms and small towns—or with the local decision-
makers—as the programs of the Department of Agriculture.

In the way Interior has traditionally operated, it is organized so as
to focus its major attention on recional and natianal nrahlamc marn
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By contrast, the Department of Agriculture has traditionally been
decentralized so as to be acutely sensitive to local and private needs as
well as those which are regional and national in scope.

Therefore, if the Congress decides it will be beneficial to group
patural resource functions in one complex, then let me suggest that the

economic and social rural counterpart to metFopolltan Aludrica. ~ -

REORGANIZATION OF AGENCIES IS NOT NEEDED

Let me make it clear, however, that I do not recommend that agen-
cies in the Department of the Interior be transferred to the Depart-
ment of Agriculture. On the contrary, it is my considered judgment
that it would not be wise to reshuffle agencies in either direction.

I base this judgment on some practical experience as an adminis-
trator, both as the Governor of a great State and for almost 7 years as
the administrator of a department with multiple programs in every
couri(tiy of the United States and more than 50 countries around the
world.

From the standpoint of effective public administration, efficiency,
and maximum use of the talent and funds available, I am convinced
nothing would be gained by regrouping resource agencies. On the con-
trary, the aggregation of such agencies, as proposed in S. 886, would,
in my judgment, result in an enormous concentration of authority and
responsibilities in one Department. Such ‘a concentration of widely
varied functions would be so enormous in its scope as to make manage-
ment extremely difficult. Further, 1 am convinced it would place an

1L - ATadlawdn writal macanveoc in

Today, the Departments of the Interior, Army (Corps of Engineers),
and Agriculture enjoy, and benefit from, a very satisfactory working
relationship. This was brought home to me again just last month
when I visited Bend, Oreg., and saw dramatic examples of how the
combined efforts of Federal resource agencies, working closely with
local groups, could restore economic vitality to a once severely de-
pressed area.

For the most part, today’s competition between the Department of
the Interior and the Department of the Agriculture is healthy. Most of
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this competition takes place in the area of recreation, where the Na-
tional Park Service and the Forest Service vie with one another to
provide morei maginative, innovative, and effective service to the recre-
ation seekers of this land. ) ’

Such sensible competition,stimulates reater effort and more effec-
tive performance, without the waste ofg extremes, It should be con-
tinued. It is in the national interest. ’ ‘

Mr. Chairman, the needs of the times demand nothing less than our

best. ]’)P.Y"Fn‘r'm'a‘nno at tha 'F‘-qﬂnv-n] laeral B N Ky Sint

Aside from your testimony, I want to commend you for :your
speeches and efforts in developing rural America. I have been follow-
ing them with great interest, and I think they are most important,
There is a big job to do, to keep people from pouring into the cities the
way they are. They certainly are galloping into the cities. And I want
to take this opportunity to commend you for your constructive pioneer
work in this field. _

Secretary Freeman. Thank you, sir.

COORDINATION BETWEEN AGRICULTURE AND INTERIOR

Senator Riprcorr. T am just curious as to what coordinating arrange-
ments now exist between the Department of Agriculture and the De-
%art.ment of the Interior in dealing with natural resource problems.

o you think there can be any improvement or strengthening in your
coordinating efforts?

Secretary Freemaw. Well, I am sure that we have not reached a state
of perfection by any means. Any of these questions come down to com-
paring alternatives. ‘

Actually, there is a great deal of coordination and cooperation, and
I think it is improving verv sharnlv. nrimarily thranoh tha Watonr

Senator Risrcorr. Senator McClellan wanted to be here, but he has
a conflict in committees and could not be with us today. ‘

He has sent to me a series of questions that he would like for me to
propound. , _

So, Mr. Secretary, the next 11 questions are being asked of you in
behalf of Senator McClellan :
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Secretary FreemAN. Absolutely critical importance. There is very
little use to a Public Law 566 structure and watershed control pro-
gram without the work to-retain soil in place and the ‘proper land
management, in the areas surrounding that particular water impound-
ment; otherwise, erosion will destroy it very rapidly, and:the whole
purpose of building the structure will be quickly Jost. You simply can-
not separate the land treatment measures and the planned program
which isinvolved in the water impoundment itself. ‘

Senator Riprcorr. “Mr. Secretary, it is my understanding that the
Bureau of Reclamation installs project-type irrigation facilities which
carry the water to-the individual farms, but does not provide for the
on-farm distribution systems and other needed conservation measures.
How do you think this approach compares with the procedure used by
the Department of Agriculture ?” ,

Secretary Freeman. In the Department of Agriculture, this is done
as an integrated whole. The question would be not only to deliver the
water to the farm but the method of its handling and its distribution
consistent with maximum return and sound conservation principles:

DUPLICATION WOULD RESULT FROM PROPOSED REORGANIZATION
to provide the services that are neeaea on rariu Plalig, agu ir yuu

separated the development of the water impoundment from the farm
land program planning, why, you would inevitably begin to duplicate
those same services,

So, this would run directly counter, and is, I think, a rather sharp
and good example of how the proposal currently before the com-
mittee would result not in eliminating duplication but in magnifying
it at considerably increased cost and less efficiency.

LOCAL DISTRICTS’ EFFICIENCY WOULD BE LOST

Senator Risrcorr. “The action programs of the Department of Agri-
culture are implemented through local organizations such as soil and
water conservation districts and other subdivisions of State and
county government. Would the transfer of the watershed activity to
another department inhibit their effectiveness in carrying out local
responsibilities for resource development 2”

Secretary FrReemaN. Yes, I think, inevitably, it would affect work-
ing relationship between the elected soil conservation committees, and
I would point out, Mr. Chairman, that these are people that are




clecled In v areas. They have the overall policy-performing
responsibility in the given locality. They, of course, are closely re-
lated to the professional and technical personnel that make up the
statl in each county in the United States, and all of this is an integral
part of a whole and, as such, cannot be split apart without, I think,
a great loss of efficiency and effectiveness.

BALANCE BETWEEN SUPPLY AND DEMAND ‘OF CROPS WOULD BE IMPAIRED

Senator Risicorr. “Mr. Secretary, since_vou hase.aresnansihilde
aSsIstance’ 1n bringing any land into production, any new land into
production, in surplus crops. This is a kind of integrated operation
that I think is necessary for effective administration, and we would
not have it if the transfer in question took place.

COORDINATION: OF RIVER BASIN PROJECTS - WOULD ‘BE MORE DIFFICULT

Senator Risicorr. “The Department of Agriculture is one of the
three major water resource development agencies. It is my understand-
ing that your Department is heavily involved in the current compre-

hensive river basin planning program. Isthis correct ?”

Secretary Freeman. That is correct. Across the board—I have for-
gotten the precise number, but it is more than 50—water planning
efforts are currently underway in cooperation with other departments
of government under local leadership, largely through the new Water
Resources Council.

Senator Risrcorr. “I understand that 25 of these river basin studies
are being carried out as a joint effort of the Federal and State agen-
cies concerned with water resource development. And the other 27

are being made by the Department of Agriculture in cooperation with
one_or more, Qtate ox. Todwe bie-evfitiars. A3 I have tried to point

out, instead of being an elimination of the concentration of functions
in fewer hands, it would end up, in my judgment, in more, and we
would have a growing number of new efforts to coordinate which
would exceed our current efforts in that direction.




Secretary FrREEMAN. Yes. Mr. Chalrman, 1t COrtailiny WOLE

By Presidential order, the Secretary of Agriculture is directed to
try and coordinate in rural America the various Federal programs
and to perform an outreach service so that we can use personnel we
have located in local areas to help other departments that have no one
there so their programs will reach the countryside. The current ma-
chinery is what we call technical action panels. There are at least four
programs in every county in the United States administered by the
Department of Agriculture. All Department programs meet together
in what we describe as technical action panels. Other Federal pro-
grams and State and local programs join in coordinating, in p! anning,
and integrating all our programs with local efforts and in stimulating
local efforts and providing leadership where it is absent.

The Forest Service and the watershed functions of the Soil Con-
servation Service that would be moved by this bill are an integral
part of this process, and, as such, it would represent a severe setback

bn #ha maw and vigarons efforts we are making to revitalize rural
this Council is so far the MOSt eMECTIVE UL diLy UL by wvpwe oo

coordination efforts, and I believe it is bringing very real possibilities

of preserving the local relationships and the decentralized adminis-
tration that the Department of Agriculture, for example, has built
up over the years. And at the same time, in the process, giving proper
representation to interests that might well be swallowed up in the
large and monolithic department, and. by the same token, accomplish-
ing very effective, at least potentially ‘so, integration and forward
planning in the whole water field primarily, but in soil and land use
as well. This Council has just begun, but I would say that its actions
to date are most encouraging and represent a real step forward.
Senator Risrcorr. And the final question from Senator McClellan:
“Mr. Secretary, the Department of Agriculture is engaged jointly
with the Departments of the Army and the Interior in comprehensive
river basin planning. Don’t you think that a more efficient job could
be done if the efforts of these three departments were concentrated
within one department?” L
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live and work and to run our vast industrial complex, the way in which we
produce and package a multitude of manufactured goods, and, among other
things, 'the ways in which we dispose of our trash and garbage.

The impact of these problems touches every segment of our society. Their
adverse effects on human health are felt by people of all ages. The economic
burden they impose on society is shared by all of us, whether we realize it or
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‘ ‘WELFARE

Mr. Chairman and members of the subcommittee, I appreciatg this oppor-
tunity to present the views of the Department of Health, Educe}tlon, and Wel-
fare on S. 886. We welcome the opportunity to discuss reorganization and re-
assignment of governmental activities with you beca_use we know- how im-
portant you believe it is to keep governmental functlor}s adJ'usted to cpang—
ing conditions. Under your chairmanship this subcommittee is performing a

ital function, . :
VIt(!)ineuof the ‘provisions of 8. 886 would transfer the air pollution and sqhd
waste  programs from this Department to the Department of the Interior,
which would be redesignated the Department of Natural Resourpgs. For reasons,
which I will discuss, we do not recommend enactment of this provision.

In many respects, air pollution and solid waste disposal are typical qf the
entire range of environmental contaminatipn problems of our technologncal.ly
advanced and predominantly urban societyl - Air pollution and solid waste dis-
posal are primarily health problems, but like most gther _problems of environ-
mental contamination, they have far-reaching economic, s'ocml, and .technological
ramifications. They are deeply rooted in the way we build our ecities, the ways
in which we provide transportation for ourselves .and our goods, the ways in
which we provide the energy needed to heat and light all the places where we

410 LUES €LLOTT.”

Federal legislation in both the air pollution and solid waste disposal fields
reflects the paramount importance of public health and welfare considerations
as the motivation for national efforts to deal with these problems. In the preamble
to the Clean Air Act, the Congress declared “that the growth in the amount and
complexity of air pollution brought about by urbanization, industrial develop-
ment, and the inereasing use of motor vehicles; has resulted in mounting dangers
to the public. health and welfare, including inj ry to agricultural crops and
livestock, damage to and the deterioration of broperty, and hazards to ground
and air transportation.” A similar declaration of findings appears in the Solid

Waste Disposal Act.

This concern for public health and welfare is reflected in precisely the same
words in the proposed Air Quality Act of 1967, which has been passed by the
Senate is now under consideration in the House. In addition, by making the
development and publication of air quality eriteria an integral part of the pro-
cedures leading up to the adoption of State air quality standards, the proposed
new legislation would underscore, as never before, the importance of controlling
air pollution in accordance with scientific knowledge of its adverse effects on

health and property.

Economic and technological considerations are by no means overlooked in the
Proposed legislation. Under thig legislation, the Department of Health, Educa-
tion, and Welfare would be responsible for the development and publication
of detailed data on the status and cost of those techniques which can be employed

s g g T e GRUIO Y

to achieve air quality levels consistent with the
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n_mnt or agency which is concerned first and foremost with the l)r‘, ot ub-
lic health and \yelﬁare. Even though it is essential that econom%c Ozttlscclt'lcgi}ll(;fo%)(}lg?-
cal factors I_)e given full consideration, they should be considered not in abstract
but rather in the light of the Nation’s principal objective in seeking solutioné
to thesg problems—the objective of safeguarding human health and welfare.

: In view of its commitment to safeguarding the public health and welfare
its paekgmund of experience in research and control activities in the area 0%
environmental contamination, and its established machinery for cooperation with
State and local governments in all parts of the country, we believe the Depart-
wmont of Health. Fiducation. and Welfare should retain its current responsibilities

i
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are the immediate costs involved in research and control ‘efforts. But they will
surely materialize, not only in the form of a reduction in the economic losses as-
sociated with air pollution and obsolete waste disposal practices, but also in such
forms ‘as more efficient use of fuels, recovery of usable materials that are now
wasted, and greater efficiency in transportation and in the production of a vast
array of manufactured goods. .
In both the air pollution and solid waste programs, the Department is placing
equal emphasis on the development of new scientific and technical knowledge and
on the application of existing knowledge. The air pollution program includes re-
search on both the effects and control of air pollutants; training activities; grants
to local, State, and regional governmental agencies-to assist them in the creation

and maintenance of effective control programs; abatement of interstate and in-
trastate air pollution problems; the development ‘and application of national
rkandarde for f{f‘fn(b%rf rol of motor vehicle pollution ; and numerous other activ-

waste dispos
mineral resources.

The proposed transfer of responsibility for the air pollution and solid waste
programs to the Department:of the Interior might well create more problems
than it would solve. To pe sure, air and water pollution, in particular, are often
talked about as though they were twin problems, but are they really £o0 much
alike? The fact is that they are not, even though they have many things ‘in
common ; indeed, among all our natural resources, including air, water, soll; and
mineral resources, the air is unique pects. The air is not a commodity
available for sale, as minerals and even 1and are. The air does net always travel
in the same channels, a8 water does; airsheds cannot be defined with anything
like the degree of precision possible with watersheds. We are not free to decide
how we will use the air, nor can we decide to use part of it for one purpose and
part of it for another. Neither do we have the option of storing any portion of
the atmosphere for future use. To one degree or another, all' these choices are

. ~ 0 £ water, soil, and mineral resources.

TS ABSUCIALTU  vravss  veat = ~# +a mwnhlam of air pollu-




DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 75

The threat to health constitutes the primary and most powerful impulse for
effective control of environmental contamination problems in this country. Those
groups who seek to slow down such control efforts invariable do so on the
ground that the health hazards have not been proved or are not really serious;
conversely, many groups whose activities are most directly affected by the
application of control measures will take whatever action is necessary if dangers
to human health can be demonstrated, Any action at the Federal level which
would make public health considerations a secondary factor would clearly slow
down the Nation’s progress toward effective control of air pollution and efficient
management of solid waste disposal problems.

S. 886 also provides for the transfer of the Bureau of Indian Affairs to the
Department of Health, Education, and Welfare.

The problem of the most appropriate location of the Bureau of Indian Affairs
in the Federal Government has been considered over many years. The Indian
affairs program is comprehensive and covers nearly every aspect of Indian life.
T+ anmline ek cicTonda b Gaswva‘vlnvil s

1. Several functions of the Bureau are completely foreign to this Department.
They include the building and operation of irrigation projects, the regulation
of tribal government, the authorization and regulation of tribal and individual
economic enterprise, the overseeing of law and order on Indian reservations, the
management of forest lands, and the building and maintenance of public roads
on Indian reservations. The effect the transfer would have on these important
functions should be carefully weighed.

2. The Indians themselves have generally opposed transfer of the Bureau
from the Department of the Interior. Since the transfer would affect them,
there should be consultation with the Indian people before any decision is
reached.

We believe further attention should be given to these matters before this
transfer is made.

Further, S. 886 provides for the transfer of the Office of Territories to the
Department of Health, Education, and Welfare.

The transfer of the Office would bring to -this Department an organization
whose functions go beyond the current scope of the functions the Department
administers. The Office is concerned not only with the social advancement of
the Territories but with their economic and political development. Involvemerit
in Territorial affairs would present the Department with -issues concerning
which it has no present experience or expertise. Further study should be under-
takgn before any commitment for transfer of the Office to the Department 'is
made.

A word should be said about the provision in the bill for the transfer of per-
sonnel and property. The provisions providing for the transfer of personnel and
property, cited in Section 5(h} and 10(h\ Af_thn. bV vr~-LluruoL " OOULIBULLY
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FOREWORD

The following report was requested by the Education Subcommittee
of the Senate Committee on Labor and Public Welfare during the 1967
hearings on amendments to Public Law 89-10, the Elementary and
Secondary Education Act of 1965, from both the Department of
Health, Education, and Welfare and the Department of the Interior,

The report will be reviewed by the subcommittee in connection
with hearings on S. 1125, the Elementary and Secondary Amendments
Act of 1967, as the subcommittee considers the further inclusion
within Public Law 89-10 of provisions relating to grants to schools
servicing the needs of our Indian children.

It is our hope that the report will also be of interest to Senators and
to members of the educational community. On behalf of the subcom-
mittee, I express to the Cochairmen of the Interde artmental Commit-
tee, Mr. Robert E. Vaughn, Deputy Assistant Secretary for Public
Land Management. 17.8. Danartmant. of Tntaninr and T Tasaol M
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INTERDEPARTMENTAL REPORT ON ORGANIZATIONAL LOCA.
TION FOR QUALITY EDUCATION OF AMERICAN INDIANS

I. Backarounn or RErorT
PURPOSE

The fundamental question of this report—whether the responsi-
bility for American Indian education should be transferreq from the
ureau of Indian Affairs to the U.S. Office of Education—was raised
in April 1966 at a hearing of the Senate Subcommittee on Education
considering the extension of programs and services under the Elemen-
tary and Secondary Edii¢ation Act of 1965 (Publie Law 89-10) to
Indian youngsters enrolled in Federal séhools. A request was mada tn
the Secratariac af tha Moo o) : m=
SUMMARY

Because education is inextricably linked to the other human service
functions and because transfer of the education function  would
result in further fragmentation of the total spectrum of services now
afforded American Indians by the Federal Government, the De-
partments recommend that the Bureau of Indian Affairs should retain
the education i his time, working in close cooperation

i ) gh quality program of
ucation. This r also reflects prevailing
Indian opinion,

Wherever the locus of responsibility resides, the Departments
believe that the federally run Indian education program should be an
exemplary system directed at providing the highest quality education
to meet the special needs of Indian people, All resources required to
achieve the desired goals should be made available: Accordingly, the
Departments have carefully and deliberately compiled, with the
assistance of Indian leaders and other knowledgeable persons and
groups, a set of recommendations which should be given consideration
In any serious effort to improve Indian education. :
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of this role through the years, and the present status of Indian educa-
tion. Perhaps the most descriptive and valid generalization concerning

aoup e o f Todien .‘Lr]’imn.t'on is that the aims and efforts made to
only limited respons iy Tor Indian euuvauvn el - a2

The national policy toward Indians during this period was one of

- mspaalanien

suppression and isolation on reservations. while efforts were exerte
by religious groups to Christianize Indians and to teach them farming,
homemaking, and the three R’s. Because the great majority of
Tndians did not accept education during this period, these efforts had
little impact.

The year 1870 is often cited as the beginning of the reservation
period, which has been characterized by varying degrees of Federal
paternalism. With the exception of the religious emphasis, the.grow-
ing role of the Government in Indian education after 1870 was directed
toward the same goals as those prevailing during the previous perio
and with about the same success. The new policy statements of 1889
included the intention to t«gbsorb Indians into our national life.”’:
This intent was manifest in education through the practice of sepa-
rating Indian children from their families and sending them to attend
boarding schools.

The appearance of the Meriam report, & survey of Indian social
and economic conditions conducted during 1926-28, contributed to a
change of attitude toward Indians. Greater emphasis was placed on
self-government, for In_dianftriabes, on an improved system of educa-

T i 1anal acencies in Indian affairs.
SINCE 1960

During the period since 1960, Indians have been the beneficiaries
of many new Federal programs which have come into being as & result
of the increased national awareness of the problems of disadvantaged
citizens. Among the agencies administering such programs are the
Office of Economic Opportunity, the Economic Development Adminis-
tration, and the Housing ‘Assistance Administration. :

The major thrust of the Bureau’s educational program is to provide
a high quality education which will prepare Indian children for life in
the 20th century. This includes the teaching of communication skills,

2
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vocational training, and the providing of guidance and counseling for
cultural adjustment. The Bureau is attempting to attain a goal which
would result by the 1970’s in most Indian youth graduating from high
school and continuing their formal training in colleges or vocational

and technical schools. Transfer % respongihilitxr for +ha oot e
To_1toon Usleeomsuou VU wSSISU 1IN the planning and implementation of

programs and projects under Public Law 89-10,.as well as to advise
on all matters pertaining to the education of Indians.

. l'll‘he newly established educational objectives of the BIA are as
ollows:

1. As many children as possible should be moved out of boarding
schools, particularly off-reservation boarding schools, and placed in
community schools on the reservation. This is based on the theory
that the most effective education takes place when children are
educated in their local community and when their parents are involved
in educational policy decisions and implementation. In such circum-
stances, adult and community education take place simultaneously.
Furthermore, in a community school setting financial benefits of a
school accrue locally. However, it would not be beneficial to make
such a move until the local school is prepared to offer education of at
least equal quality.

2. Quality education must be stressed in any federally run program.
Indian education should be an exemplary system of instruction. All of
the teaching technologies available should be brought to bear on the
instruction of Indian children.

. Th communitv actinn ecanpant ~Lo.123 1 s - -
§“"’ Iafkh population 1n the. United States, estimated to have

been more than 800,000 at the end of ‘the 15th century, gradually
decreased to about 240,000 at the end of the 19th century. The
population has been growing rapidly since that time, and in 1960 there
were 524,000 Indians, and an additional 29,000 Eskimoes and Aleuts in
Alaska, bringing the total to 552,000. At least 380,000 receive some
services from the Bureau of Indian Affairs and the Division of Indian
Health (HEW’s Public Health Service).

Due to the high birth rate during the 1950-60 decade, the number
of Indian children of school age has greatly increased. Furthermore,
a determined effort has been made during recent years to make educa-

3




tional oppor Co @V o g
enrollment of Indians is higher than ever before; yet, despite the large
number of students that have been transferred to local school districts,
the number of students attending Bureau schools has grown from
42,000 in 1961 to nearly 50,000 during the current school year. The
Bureau now operates 254 schools, 31 fewer than the high of 285 schools
in 1959.

BIA FUNDING

For fiscal year 1967, $84.4 million was appropriated for the educa-
tional activities of the Bureau of Indian Affairs, and nearly $40
million for construction of schools and related facilities. Of the $84.4
million, $72.2 million is earmarked for Federal school operations.
Under the authority of the Johnson-O’Malley Act, $9.5 million is
allocated for assistance to public schools: $1.6 million to pay full cost
for 2,355 Navajo students in eight “border town” schools; and $7.9
million to assist public schools enrolling some 50,000 Indian students
in 17 States. In addition, $2 million is available to provide grants-in-
aid to eligible Indian students enrolled in colleges and universities,
while $0.7 million has been set aside for adult education activities.

tion, and FUDLC LMW O1—0Lt PrvPasen ——o o Fe i mrnnr oo, Tamra
struction. Local school districts annually receive about $14 million
of Public Law 81-874 funds and around $3 million of Public Law
81-815 funds based on their enrollment of reservation Indian
youngsters.

Under titles I, IT, and IIT of the Elementary and Secondary Educa-
tion Act of 1965 (Public Law 89-10) as amended in 1966, Bureau of
Indian Affairs schools have obtained about $5.4 million for fiscal year
1967.

Most U.S. Office of Education programs involve grants to State and
local educational agencies. It is assumed that large numbers of Indian
children in public schools have benefited from services provided
through Federal programs such as titles I, II, and III of the Ele-
mentary and Secondary Education Act. The U.S. Office of Education
has recently undertaken a thorough examination of its resources to
identify and to help solve the special problems encountered in the
education of Indian children.

In the area of research, the U.S. Office of Education has funded
nine research projects concerned with Indian education, seven com-
pleted and two in progress. The Bureau of Research is exploring the
possibility of funding research and development in selected Indian

- ool roo educational laboratories, which identify
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education. Much of the discussion ¢cellvolrod AUae e

assistance 10 hel accomplish these objectives because of the 1MILE

financial resources of local school districts in many Indian areas.
There was Do consensus among these representatives concerning

the proposed transfer of the education function from BIA to the Office

of Education and many stated they did not teel sufficiently informed

to express a firm opinion.

VI. TRANSFER OF IxpiaN HEALTH TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE

In an _attempt to gain further insight into the possible eﬁ"ect,s_of
transferring Indian education, members of the Public Health Service
were consu ted regarding the transfer of ‘Indian health from the

Bureau of Indian Aftairs to that agency in 1955. In reoonstructirlig that

e ane_wemed thot the decision was made quite suddenly, an
. . = R J 3
surrounding Tndian health and néian oAUCATION. Liiosy == &5 finant.

part in health to the existing system of Sbete—supported education
with weil—established relationships between these systems and the
U.S. Office of Tducation. Further, the Public THealth Service is
experienced in the operation and control of hospitals and other
medical facilities, whereas.the Office of Education has never operated
schools or school systems.

VII. ANTICIPATED ErrECTS OF TRANSFERRING Ixp1aN EDUCATION

The effects of transferring responsibility for Indian education from
the BIA to the Office of Education must be analyzed in the context
of providing improved quality of educational opportunities for Indisn
children. The commmittee identified the following significant advantages
and disadvantages:

ADVANTAGES OF TRANSFER

1. The quality of Indian oducation might be expected to increase as

o result of the augmentation of significant professionei expertise,

research capability, and financial resources. :

9. A more ‘posi‘o.ive p_ublic image of Indian education could result
2o toriden

ation with the oducation profession.
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influence to insure that resources become and continue to be available
for Indian children enrolled in public schools and should urge States

to give the same emphasis to Indian children.
4. Education must be viewed as 8 single, continuing process which.
D reschool through adulthood. Beginning with preschool
1l A ACH and development




wRpALOES are made available. The second section includes
those items which require additional legislation.

POLICY AND ADMINISTRATION

1. The Bureau of Indisn Affairs should retain the education
function at this time, working in close cooperation with the Office of
Education to develop a high quality program of Indian education.

2. As long as the Federal Government operates schools, the princi-
pal official responsible for education should be in a role comparable
to that of a superintendent of a major school system, i.e., with full
responsibility for the total educational enterprise, including school
construction, operation, and maintenance.

3. The Office of Education in HEW should review all its programs
to determine how to make these available to the greatest extent
possible for the benefit of Indian children enrolled in federally operated
schools. In its own programs the Office of Education should exert

7
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8. A review of vocational education Onnartuniticg favEad’ curoed
st ra SCe0ools, 1 accordance with the BIA’s policy of movement
toward the public school system.

10. The U.S. Office of Education and the BIA should stimulate local
school districts to take a more active part in bringing Indian children
mto their schools. Such a program will require in each community,
planning meetings involving | ndians, their non-Indian neighbors,
local school officials, and representatives of State and Federal Govern-
ments. Integrated education should be encouraged. In many cases,
however, this will be impossible because of extreme physical isolation.

11. A comprehensive study of the educational needs of Indians and
the effectiveness of present programs-—Federal, State, and local—
in meeting these needs should be undertaken.

12. Ways should be explored to encourage development of junior
or community colleges on or near the larcer rec 1A Pt IR S




staff commite to working with the

ndian coud, LlVz1d el i

Teacher Corps and VISTA >hould be fully utilized. Theroles of teacher
and dormitory aids and other supportive personnel should receive
appropriate consideration, particularly as a means of involving the
community.
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as that provided under Public Law 81-874 for impact areas. Closer
coordination of all these programs should - increase efficiency and.
effectiveness.
Respectfully submitted,
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Roserr E. VAUGHAN,
Deputy Assistant Secretary-
James E. OFFICER,
Associate Commissioner, Burea of Indian Affairs.

Dr. CarL L. MARBURGER,
Assistant Commissioner of Education,
Bureaw of Indian Affairs.

Department of Health, Education, and Welfaze:

Joserr G. COLMEN,

Deputy Assistant Secretary for Education.
, ,  WarLterR B. MYLECRAINE,
Bonito, Wesley, education committes, APACNE LIIWG, LUR wyxy® i te - :
Colmen, Joseph G., Deputy Assistant Secretary for Tducation, Department of
Health, Education, and Welfare, Washington, D.C.
Coombs, Madison, Deputy Assistant Commissioner for Education, Bureau of
Indian Affairs, Washington, D.C.
Cooper, Samuel, Tribal Council, Mescalero Apache, Mescalero, N. Mex.
Deloria, Vine, Jr., executive director, National Congress of American Indians,
1452 Pennsylvania, Denver, Colo.
e Apainman. Cheyenne River Sioux Tribe, Eagle Butte,}8.'Dak




DEPARTMENT . OF NATURAL RESOURCES 95

Thom, Melvin D., chairman, Walker River Paiute Tribe, box 118, Schurz, Nev.
Valandra, Cato W., president, Rosebud Sioux Tribe, Rosebud, S. Dak.
Vaughan, Robert E.; Deputy Assistant Secretary for Public Land Management,
Department . of the Interior, Washington, D.C :
Walker, Tillie, executive director, United Scholarship Service, 1452 Pennsylvania,
Denver, Colo.
NOVEMBER 11-12, 1966

Aberle; Sophie-D., coordinator of research,  Psychiatric Department; University
of New Mexico, Albuquerque, N. Mex.

Colmen, Joseph G., Deputy Assistant Secretary for Iducation; Department of
Health, Education, and Welf re, Washington, D.C.

Deloria, Vine, Jr., executive director, National ‘Congress of American Indians,
1452 Pennsylvania, Denver, Colo. :

Denny, Benjamin, Jr., 833 Ponderosa Avenue NW., Albuquerque, N, Mex.

Dozier, Edward P, professor of anthropology, University of Arizona, Tueson,
Ariz.

Ducheneaux, Frank, chairman; Cheyenne River Sioux Tribe, Eagle Butte; 8. Dak.

Echelberger, Winifred T., Pierre Indian Sehool, 808 North Central, Pierre, 8. Dak.

Fitzgerald, R. E., superintendent, Seneca School, Wyandatte, Okla.

Gaasland, John, 840 Fourth Street, Wapheton, N. Dak.

Geboe, Charles G., director, Indian . community action project; University of
South Dakota, box 85, University Exchange, Vermillion, S. Dak. .

Gentry )€l i cﬁqg_child develonment nrasramea TTa: Bhas o Aoy

Moore, Josiah, go Tribe, post office box 277, Sells, Ariz.

Mylecraine, Walter, Assistant to Deputy Commissioner, U.S. Office of Education,
Washington, D.C.

Officer, James, Associate Commissioner, Bureau of Indian Affairs,, Washington,
D.C.

Otte, Arland, U.S. Office of Edueation, Washington, D.C.

Owens, Charles 8., director of Indian education, State department of education,
Santa:Fe, N. Mex.

Parmeter, Adrian T., Bureau of Research, U.S. Office of Education, Washington,

C

Rock, Howard, editor, Tundra Times, box 1287, Fairbanks, Alaska.
Roessel, Bob, Rough Rock Demonstration School, Chinle, Ariz.
Snider, Glenn,. professor of education, University of Oklahoma, Norman, Okla,.
Thomas, Hadley A., box 35, Tuba City, Ariz.
Tilson, David, National Institutes of Health, Washington, D.C.
Tyler, 8. Lyman, director, bureau’of Indian services, University of Utah, Salt
“Lake City, Utah.
Vaughan, Robert E., Deputy Assistant Secretary for Public Land Management,
Department of Interior, Washington, D
Vietor, Wilma L., superintendent, Intermountain School, Brigham City, Utah.
Ward, Phillip, Jr., director of instructional services, “départment - of public
instruetion;. Helena, Mont,. :
on, Jim, Director, Indian Branch, Office of Economic Opportunity, Wash-
rton, D.C

azhe, Lthel, Hunters Point School, St. Michaels, Ariz.
intz, Miles V., professor of education, Universitv of New Maovion Alhisaseaemen




96 DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

Mr. Comen. First, Mr. Chairman, let me say that we welcome
your hearings on this subject, because we know the important interest
that you have in keeping governmental functions adjusted to chang-
ing conditions. Regardless of our particular views on this bill, Secre-
tary Gardner and I feel that the subcommittee performs a vital func-
ment ot the Interiot wouru nave'awetbiusdl~~oti ook vasopoaibilities
on the American public in recognizing the need for conservation of our
natural resources and perhaps, even, 1t would be a better name to call
it the Department of Conservation of Natural Resources. In view
of the tremendous problem we are going to have in the future with .

the growing population, we must give very careful consideration to
the conservation of our natural resources.

HEALTH ORIENTATION OF AIR POLLUTION AND SOLID WASTE PROGRAMS

In my statment I presented the reasons why we believe the air pollu-
tion activities and the solid waste programs that are now in the Depart-

ment of Health, Education, and Welfare should continue to remain
in the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare.

There are two basis points that should be made.

First, this is a matter of great importance to the public health of
the Nation.

Tt will become increasingly more important as time goes on. We
believe this is a health function and should remain n a health-
oriented agency.

Secondly, at the State level, air pollution activities are largely con-

; L Qota haalth donartmanta and there,is a normal Federal-
with the utilization of natural resources, there 1s a tendency toward,

at least a tension if not a conflict, between the producers of coal and
oil and other natural resources on the one hand, and, of course, the
health function on the other. And I think it would not be, in the
long run, of public interest to have these two functions administered
in the same department when there is that difference in objectives.

As a matter of fact, I would maintain, Senator Ribicoff, that even
if the function were transferred from the Secretary of Health, Edu-
cation, and Welfare, the preservation of the public health would




still have to be administered by our Department and, thus, the frag-
mentation . of functions would probably be an even more difficult
coordination problem than at the present time.

BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS SHOULD NOT BE PUT IN HEW

Now, with regard to the second aspect in this bill that affects our
Department, there is a more difficult problem, and that is the one for
the transfer of the Bureau of Indian ‘Affairs to our Department. This
is a problem which T know you have given a lot of thought to, and
it has been discussed in the Federal Government for a long period of
time. I have no doubt in saying that the transfer of the public health
function that was formerly vested in the Bureau of Indian Affairs
to the Public Health Service some years ago has resulted in a mate-
rial improvement in the health of the American Indian, and I would
have to say, in all honesty, that if the education function 'in the
Bureau of Indian Affairs were transferred to the Office of Education,
I think it would likewise result in an improvement in the education
of the American Indian. e STTT e vaiew s UuL uLSs
cusSlons “with the representatives of the Indians, they have indicated
that they are quite opposed to the transfer of these functions to the
Department of Health, Education, and Welfare.

“Senator Risrcorr. Education too?

INDIANS ' FEAR CHANGE IN POLICY WOULD RESULT

Mr, Conex. Yes, sir, Tt is my understanding, on the basis of Secre-
tary Gardner’s meeting with various Indian groups in Kansas City
in February, that while they do not take a position of the sort of
being specifically against the movement of one function, they look
upon any movement or change as having a long impact in changing
the whole philosophy of the Federal Government’s responsibility with
respect to Indians. .

So, I would say that you hayve a very difficult problem in that the
main constituents that you are interested in dealing with are, at least
vigorously, I would say, opposed to it. It would certainly be an m-
portant factor, and requires further consultation with  them before
any such change in part or in whole is made,

Senator Rie1corr, I am just curious.

The Indians probably admit, do they not, that havine transferred

nalil. £ .1 . » ' v e LT
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Do they consider that, if they transferred education, the education of

the Indian could be improved, too? - . : '
Mt Conen. I believe that their position is that they look upon this

as the Federal Government withdrawing from its financial respon-

«ihilitv for the t%al ?suPport of Indian activities. In other words, they
Mr. CoHEN, Well, 1 Would NOPe LOAL LAl CUuiu by velpawemei -

them. T think it would require some time. I would have to add tha
there is one big philosophical question thta has never been totally rec-
onciled in the educational field, and that is whether it is desired that
there be complete integration of the Indians into the cultural life of
the white man or the maintenance of a kind of separation of their
activities in separate schools. And there is a very strong difference of
opinion on that matter, about how you regard the future of the Amer-
ican Indians, and I think perhaps that element in the difference of
opinion is a factor for not getting a complete agreement.

Senator Riercorr. What do the Indians want?

Do they want their separate schools, or do they want to be integrated
into the overall school system ?

Mr. Conen. Miss George has been working with the Indian groups,
and she might be able to tell you what their view is. I am not certain.

DESIRE FOR INTEGRATION IS INCREASING AMONG INDIANS

Miss Grorae. One of the problems about the segregation aspect is
the fact that Indian children attending Federal schools usually reside
in isolated areas, so that under any jurisdiction they would not be in
best of opportunities? Lo yOu "énmr Uansns ol iagldsalatipn wonld be
policies that puts education in the Department of the Interior?

REPORT STRESSES IMPROVEMENT OF INDIAN EDUCATION

Mr. Comen. T would say, Senator, at Teast from this report that we
made, that quality education for the American Indian has not yet
been achieved, and I think that there is a Jot more that'can and should
be done to improve ediication for the Indians: ‘ o

Senator Rsicorr. Well, what does that report recommend?




Mr. Conmx. That report represented an attempt to discuss with
the Indians what these problems are and what might be done, and it
lists on page 5 o séries of meetings held in 1966 in Denver with the
Indian leaders about their concern, and I will read you just a part
about it. ; ‘

Indian representatives stressed concern about the transfer of education from
the Bureau ‘of Indian Affairs to-the Office of Hducation. Fearful of ‘termination’
of federal activities in their behalf, they are generally opposed to the disruption
ofthe traditional relationship which has existed. with.+ha, (k% rPagers eiliDboss
and should consider the readiness of local or State systems to provide quality
educational services. They recommended further that local studies be under-
taken, with the assistance of Indian groups, non-Indian groups, and State and
Federal officials; and that Governors of the States involved should call attention
to:the need for improvement of the educational..opportunities for Indians in
publie schools. .

The consensus of both meetings was that the Bureau of Indian Affairs should
be given time to carry out its new educational program before serious considera-
tion is given to transfer of the education function from one agency to another,

INTERIOR AND HEW MEET WITH INDIANS

Senator Risrcorr. What are you doingnow? - . -

Have you stopped the dialog between the Indians and  Interior
and yourself? : : :

Mr. Comen.' No, the dialog has continued during this period of time.
Otr Deputy Assistant Secretary, Mr. Colmen, who is responsible for
continuing this dialog, has been meeting with the groups. In fact, he is
not.here today, because he is out in the \%’est continuing those meetings.

But I must say that, from what I know as of now, there has not been
any singular chiange in the attitude of theé Indian'leaders with regard
to this question. ‘ e ,

INDT T\TQ TAVR RETN. ATHAT mArmmn o v o
tinue to pursue these eﬁ”orts, ecause I know what was achieved in
the field of health when the transfer was made, and my thinking is
that this could be achieved in education, too,if the transfer was made
tothe Department of Education. i

I think, with patiencs in explanation and communication; this could
be pointed out and plans made to show how changes would be made




the Department on the grounds that this 15 a matter o1 publlc, L
which is located in the Department whose primary concern is health.
Y?;c a change was made in water. How do the air and water programs
differ?

Mr. Courx. Well, let me read you from my paper which I think
attempts to answer that question.

If you will turn to page 11 of my statement——

Senator Riercorr. What page, sir ?

Mr. Comen. Page 11, sir.

AIR POLLUTION AFFECTS PUBLIC HEALTH

Isay:

The proposed transfer of responsibility for the air pollution and solid waste
programs to the Department of the Interior might well create more problems
than it would solve. To be sure, air and water pollution, in particular, are often
talked about as though they were twin problems, but are they really so much

alila? The fact is that they are not; even though they have man things in
We must breathe the air as it comes’to us-.——puu§wu myum. “anxus .VZ..V .»gc‘wa.

deal has been written and said about the capacity of the atmosphere to dilute and
disperse the pollutants released into it, the fact is that despite daily and seasonal
variations and despite geographical differences, the air in all parts of the country
has only a very limited capacity topurge itself of pollution. It follows, then, that
the techniques applicable to the management of other natural resources are only
slightly, if at all, applicable to the protection of the air resource. This dichotomy
certainly would not be eliminated by assigning the responsibility for air pollution
research and control activities to a Department of Natural Resources.

Senator RiBICOFF. Well, do you figure that the public health would
suffer if air pollution were transferred to a Department of Natural
Resources?

POLICY AND ADMINISTRATIVE REASONS

Mr. Comex. Well, T think the primary problem, as I see it, is, first, a
matter of policy and, secondly, a matter of administration.

On policy, I think that in putting this in the Department of—what
is now—the Interior where you have the Bureau of Mines and where
you have major concern for the producers of coal and oil, which are
part of the great sources of pollution, you are putting the regulator
and the regulated, in a sense, together in the same basket, and I think

DEPARTMENT . OF NATURAL RESOURCES

You are aware that the Department has asked for .1n.creased _fupds
and support for the air pollution program. We anticipate building
a rather major activity in research and development along these lines,
specifically with respect to the emissions of sulphur oxides..

Tn this particular case, we have launched a major. activity of re-

. AVE AV T as the Federal




1tted a report to Secretary ar:

e ¥ CLl U
ner seting forth 10 action goals for the Nanartman+ m
vamd, ngﬂm. + woula Like Dr. Prindle, who is the Director of the

Bureau of Disease Prevention and Environmental Control, to answer
that question.

Dr. Prinpre. Mr., Chairman, we have reviewed these goals which
were set by the so-called Linton committee. We feel that many of
these are highly desirable goals, and we concur with their general
principles. They were reviewed not only by us but by a number of
other departments and other outside groups as to the feasibility of
specifics, that is, as to the setting of, say, 90 percent as a desirable
goal in a certain period of time, I think, in truth, many of these goals
can be reached in the time periods that are stated.

I think there is a serious question as to the economic impact of
taking such action so rapidly, as far as gaining this through a Federal
operation. I believe, however, that in setting some of these specifics,
this can be solved and we intend to.

REDESIGNATE THE DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
AS THE DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

FRIDAY, OCTOBER 20, 1967

U.S. Seware, .
SUBCOMMITTEE oN Exrcvrive REORGA‘NIZATION,
ComMrITTEE ON GovERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, D.©.
The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10 05 a.m., in room
3302{ New Senate Office Building, Sepator Ahraham Diri.tw 200
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EXHIBIT 10
SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENT orF I, GEN. WM. F. CAssIDY,; CHIEF OF ENGINEERS

Drojects should be administered by the National Doy
10 XDIOTA F1111% £1 oo enan oy '

A suggestion was made in the hearings on Thursday that recreation at Corps
OTVIoe T xrmiald Eob gD o
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The management of our project properties, like Forest Service properties,
are for multiple purpose use. Not only do we administer public recreation areas in

ith State and local administrations, our land areas include wildlife
preserves, S d private cottage sites, scout camps and church

namna and hundreds of thousands of acres 1n agricultural leases—T75% of the
tional Recreation Areus. 1uc Susir e it~ cFatoa in consideration for their loss
ates them in all the above-stated interests. This requires that the UOrps nrauibe
a work force at the project. This work force is concerned. not only with pool
regulation and the physical maintenance and operation of plant, but also is
engaged in such activities as debris and mosquito control and fire protection.
There is over-all officiency in having this work' force also handle recreational
management not integrated into State and local programs. And in the sense
that recreation is a continually developing activity, it involves plan revision and
continuing construction which is not alien to the responsibilities of the Corps
at the projects concerned.

Recreation use of areas and facilities is common to a ‘great many Federal
programs. Large areas have been developed and are being administered by the
agency responsible for the programs. For example, the Torest Service has
developed unsual recreation potential by acquiring and managing vast areas of
National Forest ljands under a multiple purpose concept. Where lands adjacent
to a Corps reservoir are within a National Forest, the Corps and the Forest Serv-
ice work out a plan under which the Forest Service develops and administers
the recreational areas. The TVA, Bureau of Land Management, Air Torce, Army
and Navy and others all contribute to the recreational resources of this country.
The management of these resources is coordinated by the President’s Council for
Recreation and Natural Beauty. Thus the recreational potential of the country
is a coordinated multi-agency endeavor.

We would be glad to undertake with the Park Service, the Forest Service and
the Bureau of Outdoor a joint study of the administration of

L i i e 2 should of course keep in mind the national
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STATEMENT OF HON. STEWART L. UDALL, SECRETARY OF THE
INTERIOR

Secretary Uparr. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, and please
accept my apologies. My intentions were good but the traffic patterns
were bad this morning, if I may excuse myself.

Senator Risicorr. Were thev on roads. svnovoirailions
' 1 6Tt6R had 1t in my mind to write you a note, but I would hope that

you would have somebody from your Department just take a look
at that spot as you come off Key Bridge heading toward Washington.

Secretary Uparr. Senator, my Assistant Secretary just whispered
in my ear that he has had the very same reaction and that the Park
Service is already looking at the problem.

Senator Risrcorr. It would mean cutting the sharp corner, just
widening it a little bit. That is all—really a minor job. But I often
come off that road, and I am amazed that there are not many more
serious accidents right at that point.

LR |

STATEMENT OF SECRETARY UDALL

Secretary Uparr. Senator, I have a prepared statement which I
should like to have appear in full. I am not going to read all of it.
In fact, I think it might help more to get right to the heart of the
matter if I summarized the highlights of it

Senator Riercorr. All right.

Secretary Uparr (continuing). As well as maybe express some of
my own personal feelings that I am sure will be drawn out in ques-

tioning if I do not express them myself, : Gy e i J
s Ouo Cuwitry. 1 tnihk some of the changes and developments have

been very significant. My own personal feeling is that my Depart-
ment is today a department of natural resources, in fact. And I have
been fascinated, Mr. Chairman, as I have gone about the world and
as T have dealt with other nations to see how they organize in terms
of governmental departments; Canada, Japan, Mexico, the countries
of Western Europe are the ones that I am familiar with. The one
thing that fascinates you when you look at the way governments




you have a true departinelll OI TOrUTHrenEses

thing being in place as you would put it in an ideal world. My own
Department is more of a natural resources department—I mean there
are more natural resources functions—than in any department in any
other country that I am familiar with today. I think certainly the
idea that is behind Senator Moss’ legislation, that there should be
a Department of Natural Resources, is sound. In fact, I think we have
one In everything except name. »

DEVELOPMENT OF INTERIOR DEPARTMENT

The Department of the Interior got its name in 1849 at the time
the two biggest functions it had was the Indian Bureau and what was
then called the General Land Office. In 1849 the California gold rush
was on, the settlement of the West, the breaking of the frontier, was
just beginning, and the word “Interior” wasa pretty good description
of the Department. at that time, although:it was a catch-all. depart-
ment. We had what was then the Veterans Bureau and the Office of
Education, such as it was, and other housekeeping functiens.

So “Interior” described the Department at that time. Over the
vears and until rather }'gc_entl‘y the Department was also thought,

; #-= wuhlia landg and Indians and the
There are three or four major developments that have occurrea wie

I have been Secretary.

In the first place, as a result of the outdoor recreation study that was
carried out beginning in 1958 with a report by the group that Lau-
rence Rockefeller headed in 1961, we established a Bureau of Outdoor
Recreation. And to give it a further action focus, we established a
Land and Water Conservation Fund. ’

This Bureau is working today with all 50 States in terms of plan-
ning their outdoor recreation needs. We have a national master out-
door recreational program that we did not have before. My Depart-
ment runs it, supervises it. tF
. %n that sense, my Department is much more national than it was

efore.
FEDERAL WATER RESOURCES COUNCIL ESTABLISHED

The second very significant development was the enactment of the
Water Resources Planning Act of 1965. Previous to that time, planning
was compartmentalized to a high degree. The Bureau of Reclama-
tion, the Corps of Engineers, were the two main resource, or water
planning agencies.




e = = wavsanyvaver nesources Uouncil where
the Kederal water planning policies are really made. We do not make
them in my Department. The Corpsof Engineers does not make them.
The Federal Water Resources Council 1s the real water planning
agency. : :

It is functioning well. It started off slowly, but they are working
over there every day. My Department and the Corps of Engineers, for
example, both find that neither of us can act independently any more.
We have to work much more closely together. And the Water. Re-
sources Cotincil is going to be calling the shots more increasingly in
terms of important national policy. :

This is a second very important development. :

I am Chairman of that Council. I also serve as the Federal member
on the Delaware River Basin Commission. I was designated by the
President to represent the Federal Government in this area. And this
apparently is going to be an increasing function.

REORGANIZATION OF WATER POLLUTION CONTROL PROGRAMS

The third very important dévéloprnent, perhaps the most vital of

all in terms of any department, and this committee—and tho shoir
man of this sub~awcos duanagement tunctions of the Federal Govern-
ment were centered in a single department. I think this was a very wise
decision. This, more than anything else, made my Department national
because we are dealing in this program with all the water of the Na-
tion, with all 50 States, with all of the cities. This was a very vital
step. ; , :

Now, Mr. Chairman, we get down to the problem of what action
should be taken if the bepartment of Interior is, in truth, as close to
a Department of Natural Resources as exists in the Western World,
if T may put it that way. Of course, you could proceed by:simply
changing the name to describe what the department is, in fact, doing.

DEPARTMENT OPERATES AS DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

I think my Department has a sense of mission today that it did not
have 7 years ago in that it is no longer a loose aggregation of bureaus
that are carrying on various functions. We feel that our mission is the
conservation of the Nation’s resources, developing a concept of steward-
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ship for the management of those resources. We preach this every day.
We think it all the time. We, I think, have a very harmonious attitude
within the Department as a whole. I think the trouble with some of
the reorganization proposals in the past has been that—I am not criti-
cal in the sense that I think that type of thinking should not be done—
any time that you propose to do things with one fell swoop you then
unite all of the opposition and nothing is done.

The Hoover Commission report was a good example, because they
proposed—and I think quite wisely—that a Department of Natural
Resotrces be created, but they proposed it in such a sweeping fashion
that nothing actually was done. And yet what I am trying to point
out, Mr: Chairman, is that in a very quiet pragmatic, piece-by-piece
wav,. in the last 7 years very significant things have been done to make

to do this, let us tidy up.”” 11 we a1€ Joatgrel Rasqnirees. T think it is,
to tidy up, so we will take the Indian Bureau out of the Department;
and we will take the Office of Territories out of the Department. It
is usually laid down as the price for changing the name of the De-
partment.

OPPOSITION TO TRANSFER OF INDIAN BUREAU

Well, to me, we do not have a clear-cut concept here, and we do not
live in an ideal world either. My Department has had as one of its
first missions its relationship with the Indian people and with their
resources. After all, the Indian people of this country own over 2 per-
cent of the land. They have resources. The management of those re-
sources is one of our important functions. :

The Indian people also have a close emotional tic with my Depart-
ment, as Secretary Gardner and I found when we talked with some of
the Indian leaders last winter about this whole problem and reorgani-
zation of the Indian Bureau. ,

If you were to say today—to me as an administrator—that you
would change the name of the Department, at least take that one step,
but as the price for doing that you would insist that the Indian Bureau
and the Office of Territories—we have administered historically these

e d Amawn 3t amita anecessfully——that theY bg




agement problem. This is the reason for the program to go to a
Department of Natural Resources. This to me was the best argument
for doing that.

As times change, as thinking changes, we will probably see the
movement of activities in and out of the Department, but, I think this
will be done on a pragmatic, piece-by-piece basis,

The Congress last year—and this subcommittee was involved—

created a new Department of Transportation. vet this. wasnatwzarm
unted We NAve & Status quo situation. It certainly has not been any
status quo business as far as my Department is concerned in the last
few years. It has been a very dynamic situation. Whether we change
the name or not, I think my Department, as I said at the outset, is
more a Department of Natural Resources than any government that
I am familiar with has today. And T think that this process: will con-
tinue. How it evolves will depend on the judgment of this committee,
on the feelings of the people of the country, and on what kind of
organization we want our Government to have.

Having said that and exposed some vulnerable points, Mr. Chair-

man, I think T will rest my initial statement on that.

PUBLIC DISCUSSIONS ARE ESSENTIAL

Senator Risrcorr. T followed your argument, Mr. Secretary, and
I gather that you like the idea of Department of Natural Resources,
I also gather, ‘since everybody is against you and you cannot get the
approval of the President and the Bureau of the Budget, that you
feel you might as well do the best you can with an unhappy situation,
as faras you personally are concerned. This is what T sense from what

you said.
However ho that an % weae. T 1

O - -
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I think we should look at this, and. I was interested in that they
proposed it. . o

Senator RiBicorr. One of the values of a hearing such as this is
that pieces of services come out in greater focus.

Now, basically, the Corps of Eno inee A




I gathered from the testimony OL L& 8" = 5 J o Lsiastic abou
were doing the best they could. They were not enthusiastic about
having this mission, but it was there and they would undertake it.

I think it was indicated by General Cassidy that at one time—
the date was not stated, whether it was with you or your predecessor—
the Corps of Army Engineers wanted to give their jurisdiction over
their recreation areas to the Park Service but the Park Service turned
it down.

Was that while you were Secretary, or was that prior to your time?

Secretary UparL. No, I think it was probably prior to that, Senator.
And I think there is a very strong case for it.

You see, the National Park Service manages national parks, national
park areas, and some recreation areas. The Bureau of Reclamation or,
the Corps of Engineers.as the agency which built the facility manages
the works after they are completed, and, also, carries out the recrea-

+inmal aenpet. T haﬁze never gi)ne into this in detail. I think it deserves
But this is something that 1 cannot give you a7vety WO Samerinn

because, quite frankly, we have not, while I have been Secretary, had
o serious discussion of this with the corps. T think the corps central
mission always has been that they are a construction agency. They
carry out all kinds of construction projects in this country. They have
~ from the beginning of the country. This has been their main mission.
Tt is quite true that outdoor recreation does not fit in with that as a
main concept. I think the corps has done a good job. T am not critical
of them, but I can understand them feeling that maybe the recrea-
tional aspects should be carried out by a department that has that

as a main mission.

then, but I do not think that an ‘
And this was a wise decision. - Foocy, coulcl ave. Cone & oo
There is no subject that I am interested in more; there is no area
where I think we have got to improve our performance more today
of orienting people than in education.
The new Assistant Commissioner for Education, who just went on

the job a few days ago, I deliberately picked out of the Office of Edu-
cation in HEW, one of their top people and a very able person.

I told Secretary Gardner and Commissioner Harold Howe that I
wanted one of their men. T wanted us to have the very closest coopera-
tion with them.

We found, a year or two ago, when there was a serious discussion




: eCretr “Upar. T would like to comment on this, because this. is
a subject on which :I have very mixed feelings myself. T am being
probably more candid than I should in discussing it in this fashion.

HEW. WOULD HAVE TO: RUN INDIAN EDUCATION SYSTEM

There is no question at all. You are absolutely right, that Congress
made a very wise decision in 1954 when it transferred the respon-
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EDUCATION I8 TIED TO OTHER INDIAN RESOURCE PROGRAMS

Secretary UpaLt. Well, Senator, I want to present the other facet,
because I said I had very mixed feelings on this subject. There are two
main functions, really, so far as the Indian Bureau is concerned : land
and people. These péople own land. They have resources. They have
2 percent of the land. We left them what we thought was the worst
land in this country, but they have 2 percent of it, nevertheless.

- The feeling of the Indian Bureau people was, if you transferred
education, that this is such a large segment, and it is linked to the re-
sources program, so you ought to transfer the whole thing.

Senator Riercorr. What is vour education hndoet.?

T sasAn v WU PAY XU VU YU UL

Senator Risrcorr. If yéyu have someone on your staff here, they could
call up, call over to the Department and find out.

And also how many employees do you have in the Interior whose
work is in education or connected with education ?

Secretary Upart. Well, the Indian Bureau has 11,000 to 12,000, in
that range, employees, and more than half of them are school people,
substantially more than half. T would again say about two-thirds.

(Subsequently, the following information was received for the
record :)

EXHIBIT 11




agencies an datsn education, and if any segment of HEW 1s
a%rald to take this on, I think they have quite a lo%; of nerve to tell

everYbody olse how to run their own affairs if they have fear in
ing a tough problem.

tack
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short end of the stick in a very bad way in terms of resources.

Senator Risicorr. I do not think that either Senator Moss or I, or
anyone else, is advocating taking the Indian Bureau out of Interior.
I think the only concern that T have—I do not know about Senator
Moss or Senator Hansen—is the education function. I would never
want to se¢ the Indian Bureau taken away from Interior or the
Department of Natural Resources. I am just thinking of trying to
upgrade education as we did health. That is what I have in mind.

Secretary Uparr. The point T am trying to make is that, when it
comes to Indian resources, for example, when it comes to water rights,
and so on, my Department is the Department that has the primary
responsibilities. Water for development purpose is* oftentimes ex-
tremely vital. In having someone who will champion them in court
and in the battles with others who want water in some parts of the
country, it is absolutely vital that you have someone who 1s there and
who is going to see that the Indians are not last but that they are first
in terms of what is done. This is the way that we conceive of our
responsibilities today.

Well, having said that, Senator, T did want to make my own per-

sonal views, on the basis of my own experience, clear with regard to

Senator Hansex. Well, first, let me compliment you, Mr. Secretary,
on your observations here.

T have not yet had a chance to read your prepared statement. T
cortainly have been most interested in what you have said here in
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over. soto sneak.. ﬂ:nfl#g'ﬂjjﬁm-mi*’bd‘l"\‘50;1\‘5\311@1/1%‘1 Afiéhini- ure o w
Department, then Congress must give very careful and detailed study
to such a process.

HANSEN RECOMMENDS AGAINST TRANSFER OF CIVIL WORKS FUNCTIONS

I would like to point out, too, if I may, that much of what has been
discussed here this morning, Mr. Chairman, is a recognition, I think,
as you put it, of the fact that the Department of the Army, through
the Corps of Engineers, does have a great number of visitors, but in
my judgment that is not of itself sufficient reason to transfer that
agency from the Army to a new department. I say this, because Iam
aware that in the West we have two very effective loosely knit organi-
zations, and I refer to the Columbia Basin Interagency Committee
and the Missouri Basin Interagency Committee. I am certain that
Senator Moss knows considerably about these two groups. But what
they do do is to afford a forum and an opportunity for all of the
agencies, Fish and Wildlife, for example—I think you have had quite
a hand, incidentally, in furthering along the good work that has
resulted from this informal meeting—getting together with the vari-
ous interested resource agencies from time to time and discussing the
tota) asnecte of aixbalaragizrv~atdas® arancs oo s very werl 10r
trying to recognize an important use of a facility and taking that as
justification for transferring that function to a new department.

I would like also to agree most wholeheartedly with you, Mr. Secre-
tary, insofar as Indians are concerned.

INDIAN BUREAU SHOULD REMAIN IN INTERIOR

Now, as I read the bill, I think that section 5 does indeed propose
to transfer the Bureau of Indian Affairs to the Department of Health,
Education, and Welfare. I think that there are some good reasons why
that should not be done.

First, in my own State of Wyoming, our biggest minority group, as
the Secretary and as Senator Moss know, is our American Indian. We
have two tribes out there. We have two and a half times as many
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Indians in Wyoming as we have Negroes. The Spanish-Americans, to
which an allusion was earlier made, are a minority group in Wyoming
also. But I think if we were to separate the different functions that are
performed now by the Bureau of Indian Affairs, we would have a pro-
liferation of activities. We would have an overlapping. We would in-
ject into the operation an endless amount of redtape.

COORDINATION OF INDUSTRIAL PROGRAM FOR WYOMING

We are trying, with the support and active consideration of the
Secretary, to develop some industrial programs in Wyoming. We are
thinking about building a sawmill, and we would hope to somehow
combine the functions that could be separated by carrying on a work-
training program, by making use of a resource, by developing jobs,
by developing an industry and an economy, and I can see some awfully
good reasons, why one single agency can do a far better job and do it

far more expeditiously than could be done if we were to take the job
NOW, Just 1N CONCIUSIVI—L HAVE Vool UV oriT vy, K. a

Ny SN VL S
let me say that I think the Department has made some real progress,
and that the measure of our progress, I think, will be determined
more by the end results than by nomenclature, and I suggest what has
been done during your tenure, has been helpful. You have pioneered in a
number of important areas in what has been done in facing up to
important problems that were not recognized some years ago. And I
would suggest that, as has already been indicated, if we try to set up
a new Department, immediately a lot of people—and I know Senator
Moss and I would agree on this—will oppose the idea simply because
it is a_change, and any time anyone suggests a change, that always
comes into the picture.

So, I am simply saying that I believe we ought to take a long hard
look at it and be more concerned with actually what is accomplished
by the Department than to concern ourselves now with this.

I want to compliment you, Senator Moss, on giving a lot of good
hard thought to a problem that certainly is of real concern to us, and
I am sure of your honest desire to try to make our natural resources
service better than it is.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Riercorr. Senator Moss?




DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES ... wsv uav ik’
w wovussion about the problem, and I think all of us—and I believe
that the Secretary agrees—know that we have a number of organiza-
tional problems that deserve some attention and correction, if we can
provide that. :
REASONS FOR MOSS’ BILL

I think maybe first I ought to exonerate the Secretary. He did not
put me up to this, to suggest a Department of Natural Resources, nor
did he suggest in any way that F introduce legislation of this sort.
In fact, I do not think I ever mentioned it to him until the bill was
in and he had noticed that the bill was in. That was the first time we
ever had a conversation about it.

The idea of introducing this bill has grown from the fact that for
about 10 years now I have been working in the resource field in the
Senate—I devote the major part of my effort in the Senate in this
area—and I can see all kinds of conflicts and overlaps and inefficiencies
that I think we ought to give some attention to.

And, as I indicated the other day—and I think this accords with
what the Secretary said—we get along remarkably well with a rather

untidy organization. The degree of cooperation and coordination be-
tween the denarpmontasndFhavy o-agbucles I LWO- departments—the

Park Service and the Forest Service—assigned to this same reservoir
with recreation functions. Both agencies have done an excellent job.
They have been cooperating with one another, and it is really remark-
able that they have got along so well. But it finally became apparent
that this was inefficient, and had built into it; the seeds of conflict, and
that we ought to make a decision, and give the authority for the man-
agement of the reservoir to one department or the other. The bill
before us yesterday was the one that proposed that all recreation
functions go to the Forest Service in this instance.

T think that little facet is representative of the basic idea behind
this bill. And there are many other examples.

DUPLICATION OF AIR POLLUTION CONTROL PROGRAMS

I read an article—in fact, this was in the Washington Daily News
day before yesterday, I believe—in which Senator Kuchel was making
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a speech out in California, and he was talking about air pollution.
But what he said is the sort of thing that is the background here for
talking about other resources. ,

‘Hesaid, and this is quoting the article:

The Government has tackled the air pollution with too-little, too-late; and the

result is an increasing patchwork quilt of overlapping air pollation programs full
of duplication and full of holes.

And then two paragraphs later it says:

Currently air pollution ‘control programs are being run by the Environmental
Science Service Admingtration; Atomic Energy Commission, Bureau of Mines,
Air ‘Pollution - Control Division, Tennessee : Valleéy - Authority, Environmental
Health Services Center, and Solid Waste Office. ‘ g

Then, Senator Kuchel goes on talking about the subject.

But this, it seems to me, is what we get into very often and what I
Ll wa hava ont inta in manv areas of the resource field. And as a

Secretary Uparr. Well, Senator, I think I made it very plain. As
you know, one can say what is in a name and maybe names are not
important, but I think names are important, among other reasons,
so that people clearly understand what the functions are and what
the missions are. ‘

The name “Interior” does not mean anything to the country today,
except in the sense that people identify and know, in fact, what the
Department does. :

I went to the Middle East last February, and Cairo Radio kept
telling the Arab world that T had come out—because “Interior” means
“police” in most parts of the world—to help reorganize the police in
those countries with which the United Arab Republic did not happen
to be friendly at‘that time. _

It is this type of thing that gnaws at me and bothers me.

I think the best way, Senator, to get a Department, a true Depart-
ment of Natural Resources, an ideal Department of Natural Resources,
is at least to give it the right name. Therefore, if nothing else were to
come of this except that, I would not consider it a small step. I 'would
consider it an important step. ’

~ . -~ = WAT-21A wonns anttla far that Senator Moss ?




very clearly to the American people in 1960—that resources do not
fit in compartments. Nature is one system, and, therefore, the case
for a Department of Natural Resources is much stronger today than
it was I‘previously. S

I still get back to the fact that I think the best we way we help pro-
duce a Department of Natural Resources is to have it evolve, and the
best way to have it evolve is to have people understand, as you are try-
ing to help them understand, what the rationale and the logic is in

terms of governmental organization. S . A
-3 y UDALLL INU, Senator, L was indicating that, if the Corps of

Engineers people feel that perhaps we should carry on the recreational
function, I think we ought to give serious consideration to this. Maybe
this is a sound idea, but I have not gotten into this in any depth. Until
I can sound my own people out—and I think I should—I would not
want to give you a flip answer here in terms of what I think should be

done, :

Senator Moss. Well, as I understood it, this was more a suggestion
by the Secretary of the Army, that they might well like to be rid of
these functions in the recreation area, and I wanted to point out that
we do not necessarily leave recreation management with those who
construct the reservoir, because we are busily creating national recrea-
tion areas around our reservoirs, - ‘

Senator Hansen and I were sitting in on a hearing yesterday on that
very subject. And if the National Park Service is organized so that it
can operate a recreation area in Glen Canyon or Whiskeytown, or
wherever else, I do not see why it would not be equipped to take on
the recreation functions of the Corps’ reservoirs.

Secretary Uparr. Well, my initial reaction is that we perhaps should
do this. T'am not negative on it at all, but T donot want to commit my
Department until I have had a chance for evervbodv to ba heard hiat T

nas come up recently on the Little Dell proj ect out of Salt Lake City?

Secretary Uparr. Senator, I have just followed it at a distan

o

I
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fairs.” You could say, “It 1s a health problem, put it in HEW.” You
could say “It is a resource problem, put it in Interior.” And, in fact,
part of the responsibility, some of the responsibility was put in my
Department. It would not surprise me if this evolves, if we do what
we ought to do. These are really not wastes. It is inefficiency. And we
are going to be recyeling and reusing 'these resources rather than
dumping them. And if we do, we are recycling resources, and this
might evolve to the point, like water pollution, where at some point
the logic of having it come to my Department would be rather clear.
At this point—and I am not arguing that this is the time to do it—
we have decided that it is a health problem and that primary respon-
sibility should be in HEW, but this is something new. The Federal
Government did not really get into this field—it, in my judgment, is
getting into it late—until 2 or 3 years ago. But this is what I mean
when I talk about things evolving.

Senator Moss. Planning, yes. ‘I'ne Uounci, yes; wie prawiiog.

Secretary Uparr. Well, I think the Council is still on trial. I think
it is working very well, and I think it gives us a very good focus for a
type of overall thinking, in having the Federal Government have one
mind when it approaches water problems, and have the big decisions
made by a council of this kind. I think this is very vital, and I think
it is going to work increasingly well as we go along.
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It always seemed to me that this was a pretty logical approach to
the problem. This is one approach to the problem. But, as I say, part
of this, in my judgment, is already being done through the Water
Resources Council in terms of a certain aspect of the planning, as far
as coordinating the national water planning effort and goals.
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of the planning functions in one department, even if we should leave
the actual construction work in other departments at the present
time—that is, we are talking about sort of a halfway house?

WATER RESOURCES COUNCIL AIMS AT COORDINATED PLANNING

_Secretary Uparr. Well, Senator, in one sense, some of the most
vital planning functions, the big policy planning functions, have
already been moved to the Water Resources Council. I know Elmer

Staats, who is now the Comptroller General and who was once Deputy
Director of the Bureau of the Budget a few years ago—I know his idea
of reorganization which he advanced—and he probably still holds
that view—was that he would not put the Corps of Engineers in a
Department of Natural Resources; he would leave it as a construction
agency but would have the planning function done by the Department
of Natural Resources.
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aa uiau 15 UG TESULT, TNAT 00es not bother me.

Again, with my philosophy of evolution, if there is a time down
the road when the Departments’ philosophies and their objectives
come into conflict the way they have had at times in the past, I think

ou are going to see a stronger and stronger argument made for say-
iIng: “Well, this is stupid. Let’s put it all under one Department
and under one management.” :

But I do not advocate that here today. I have not advocated it in
the administration. I know there is a strong argument for it. I know
there is a strong argument against it. I think Secretary Freeman and
I have done a great deal, and the legislation you were working on
yesterday is a good example. We had vigorous argument within our
Departments as to who should administer the area, and we resolved it.
We have decided to get things done and to move down the road and




them. This is wise, because there is no point in having two mineral-
managing agencies. There are strong-arguments on both sides—I think

we ought to be candid about that—with regard to the entire Forest
' convietions almost oveériap tuluplocery Fyivumayhotoo franle here—
Departments much closer together.
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The same with recreation. We said yesterday that one of the reasons
we thought the Flaming Gorge recreation area ought to be adminis-
tered by one department is this simple little thing about whether you
had to pay to launch your boat or not. People went up there to go on
the lake, and if they put their boat in at one place, it did not cost them
anything; if they put it in just a little ways down the other way, it cost
them. They would have to pay to have the boat launched, and that is
because we had two Departments with different regulations, function-
ing on the same lake. ' '

Little things like that cause all kinds of trouble out in the field.

JURISDICTIONAL ARGUMENTS PROVIDE BASIS FOR REORGANIZATION

Secretary UpaLL. Well Senator, I have often thought that some of
the people who carry on the warfare do not realize that they are the
best advocates of the kind of transfer you are proposing. By their very

a rather’'good Jop. Al iasc we memger sarisdicrtianal views ahead of
harmony, and I think we have done more constructive things than any
two Secretaries.

EMOTIONAL ATTACHMENT OF INDIANS TO INTERIOR DEPARTMENT

Senator Moss. I would agree with that, and, of course, I am aware
of a lot of the emotional conflict that there has been on the Forest
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and water resources. Their economic functions perhaps belong with
the Small Business Administration or OEO or some place like this.
If we could get to dealing with them in this manner, don’t you think
we might bring the Indians along to self-sufficiency sooner than
keeping them as a ward of a particular Department to which they
have an emotional attachment?

Secretary Uparr. Well, I hope, Senator, that you have misdescribed

e 11 e - -

it a little hit. T wonld hana +het #hn T 32

I do not have any doubt in my mind that if the education function
were transferred, probably HEW would do a better job. They would
be on the spot, as Senator Ribicoff hinted, and I think they would
have to do a better job than we are now doing, although we are trying
we are putting great emphasis on education to do a much better
job. I do not want to just put one specific in, that you are familiar
with yourself, Senator. In the Navaho-Hopi Reservation in Arizona
where they have 1 coal deposits and where the electric power
companies are looking around for development—you are familiar
with this, because it is somethir u and I have discussed—1I could
say to these electric power companies, “Look, I want you to develop
this Indian coal. If you do, I will give you a water contract,” because
the Department has the right to contract for water out of Lake
Powell. “And I will put this whole thing together, and we want these
Indian resources developed.”

Now, if a Secretary of the Interior just sat back, you will have
what has happenéd everywhere else. You develop all the resources,
and the Indians are just developed last. And this is what I mean when
I say that if a Secretary is toughminded and if he is determined to
put the Indians first in terms of development, there are many things

tl (th a1 1 . .
1;6113%8311\?[8%. Well, thank you, Mr. Secretary. I appreciate your

clarifying these points that I have discussed with you. I would hope
that out of the record that is made here there will be material on
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of the things we might clear up if we could get the Government better
organized so that the whole citizenry knows where to go to get an
answer that is the 'Government’s answer, and it is not going to be
different down the hall or wherever else he goes. )

Secretary Uparr. Well, Senator, you are absolutely right, in my
judgment. You know, life is becoming more complex. That is the
dynamism of modern life. That means Government has become com-
plex. The only way we can combat this in terms of governmental
organization is to constantly be organizing and to be simplifying. And
I think that is the essence of your proposal. That is the essence of
the work of this committee, and I am pleased that this President that
I now serve has been very reorganization minded. I think he has done
more than almost anyone in this century. There have been two new
departments. He has been very positive in terms of reorganization.
And T think this has been a morning very well spent, as far as I am
concerned.

Senator Moss. Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Riercorr. Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Secretary. )
works functions of' ta&~ArmyGorpahorittad. by, Secretary ITdall reads in
under section 4(e) of the Federal Power Act of approving the plans for dams
or other structures affecting navigation for which a license is sought from the
Federal Power Commission ; the Forest Service and the watershed protection and
flood prevention functions of the Department of Agriculture; the National
Oceanographic Data Center and all nonmilitary functions of the Secretary of
the Navy which are being administered through the Center; the functions of the
National Science Foundation under Title II of the Marine Resources and
Engineering Development Act of 1966 relating to sea grant programs; and the
functions of the Secretary of Health, Education, and Welfare under the Clean
Air Act and the Solid Waste Disposal Act.

The bill would transfer from this Department to the Secretary of Health,
Education, and Welfare the functions now handled by the Secretary of the
Interior with respect to Indian Affairs and Territories.

The Department of the Interior has, from its creation in 1849, evolved from.
a sort of “Home Department” that was primarily interested in the care of our
lands and territories in the West into a Department that has interests that are
national and international in scope and reach into the everyday lives of all our
citizens. The present responsibilities of the Department have led some of us to
refer to the Department as the Department of Natural Resources because of the
scope of activities now carried on by the Department.

We know that the dynamic strength of a forward-looking America depends
upon the full and creative development of our Nation’s natural resource base—
our mineral wealth, our vast plains, our timber-laden forests, our rivers, streams,
and lakes, our irreplaceable wildlife, and our scenic and recreational resources.
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We have for over 300 years depended on these natural resources to furnish the
bone, muscle, and lifeblood of the most highly developed industrial society in
mankind’s history. OQur resources, however, are not inexhaustible, and predic-
tions have been made that by the middle of the 21st century people will face
a grim struggle for existence, with food and water in short supply and with
reserves of many minerals depleted.

No oné really knows whether such grim predictions will come to pass. Human
resourcefulness, ingenuity, and invention—coupled with creative determinati
can prevent this predicted calamity, We must work creatively, therefore, to pro-
vide for the development, conservation, and wise utilization of the Nation’s nat-
ural resource base to meet the requirements of today’s citizens and to pass along
our resources to the generations of unborn.

The Department of the Interior, in cooperation with the other Departments and
agencies of the Federal Government, with State and local governments, with
private foundations, and with interested individuals, has worked to develop,
utilize, conserve, and perpetuate for the future our natural resources.

Representatives of the Dep: ent of the Tntorinr o . Sy ALLg LS
FRON I A e oo aiiu HDATS WOFth $1.5billion annually.

We exercise Federal trust responsibilities for about 380,000 Indians, working
constantly to improve both the natural and the human resources of the Indians.

We increase the mineral and fuel potential of our Nation by assisting tech-
nically—and 'in the case of strategic minerals, financially—in developing and
improving mining methods and geologic knowledge, and by promotion of con-
servation through wise utilization of our mineral and fuel resources.

We protect and administer more than 230 national parks, monuments, and his-
toric sites, and create new recreational areas at multipurpose water resource
projects—as well as make public lands available for recreational needs to States
and municipalities. The various recreaticnal lands and areas of the Department
are the scenes of some 200 million visitor days of use annually.

‘We promote the conservation and development of our vital fish and wildlife
resources and protect these resources from unnecessary depletion and selfish
use.

We finance and conduct research on the water and mineral resources of the
Nation with an eye to the future. We provide for the basic geologie and topo-
graphic mapping of the Nation.

We administer laws and programs to solve water pollution problems of the Na-
tion. We direct and coordinate the national effort to achieve the economical
conversion of the waters of the oceans into fresh water for human use.

We are responsible for the administration, economic improvement, and social
and political betterment of the few remaining territorial areas of the United
States—Guam, American Samoa, the Virgin Islands, and the United Nations-
mandated Trust Territory of the Pacific Islands.

We strengthen, through several of our offices and bureaus, by means of grants
and other cooperative arrangemante writh ~alt.... -
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of private land for the year-to-year production OL CLUPS. avespusmsivsid,telw wo
conservation of our soil is now shared by ourselves and the Department of
Agriculture in the case of Federal land being used for resource value. The Depart-
ment of Agriculture has sole responsibility in the case of private land used for
the year-to-year production of crops. The consolidation of the management
function over Federal land used for resource value would allow for the issuance
of uniform regulations and might simplify management somewhat.

‘When it comes to water resources, the proper way to handle management
becomes more complicated. It could be argued that all water resource manage-
ment should be consolidated in one place, but there are strong arguments against
such consolidation. For example, when we study the potential of water we have
to look at its navigational-transportation potential, which is quite separate and
apart from its potential for power development and irrigation use. At the same
time, one cannot plan a water storage site without considering the navigational
aspect, along with the flood control and power potential of the site, and the effect
the site will have on fish that use the waterway, just to name a few examples.

When we look at our pollution problems, both water and air, we again find
complicating factors. It is difficult to say whether the same agency should be
responsible for all pollution problems. Some would argue that the same things
cause the pollution of our water and air, and that a unified program is needed
to solve the problems caused by the pollution. At the same time, I doubt that
the present Federal controls over the manufacture of motor vehicles should be
placed in the Department of Natural Resources even though a great percentage
of our air pollution is caused by motor vehicles.

The problems raised by how far one should go in consolidating the control

Yo uvrok~snwaannwea and the nollytion problem are those raised by management
had this trust responsibility, and, to a markea aegree, we pave wic vosd o .

of the Indians. We have made a concerted effort to improve the conditions of
the Indians, and we look upon our responsibility as the development of a valuable
human resource. The Indians have presented interesting and complicated prob-
lems for us to solve and we have, in cooperation with other Departments and
agencies, including the Department of Health, Hducation, and Welfare, strived
to solve those problems. We would regret losing these old friends. We should
point out, moreover, that the movement of the Indian Bureau would serve to
disperse some of the Department’s functions, particularly those dealing with the
management of federally owned lands, development of irrigation and power
resources, mineral development, and others.

Likewise, we would not like to see the Office of Territories taken from us.
‘We have, in the not-too-distant past, seen two of our territories become full-
fledged members of the Union. We are now working with the Congress and the
people of Guam and the Virgin Islands to move them one more step down the
road to home rule through enactment of elected Governor bills. We have im-
proved through the use of television the educational opportunities of the people
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the Trust Territory of the Pacifie Islands to aid in the effort. to bring those
beople into full barticipation in the 20th century. The overall management
of the territories has been a longtime responsibility of this Department and it
is one that we have been keenly aware of, one that we would regret losing.

It should be noted that the Indian pbrogram and the Territories P
_do not fit neatly into any one Department. The brograms require the part
of many Federal agencies—Housing, Transportation, Small Bus iness, Hconomic
Opportunity, and Regional Development, to mention some. A transfer to the
Department of Health, Education, and Welfare would not advance the purpose
of this bill, which is to consolidate responsibility for natural resource man-
agement, and would conflict with that purpose by transferring important land
management functions. Incidentally, the broblem of Indian lands in multiple
ownership—the so-called heirship problem—is one that most agencies would be
reluctant to accept.

Most of my statement has been aimed at the effect this bill will have on the
new Department that it creates and the additions that will be made to it. I am
sure your Committee will also want to consider: carefully the results of taking .
functions away from existing Departments and agencies.

In concl sion, let me say that the funect
of the cutives branch and th
stantly studied, and the results
submitted to the Congress from
improvement. We hope that both the executive branch and-the Congress will
continue to consider all broposals that will result in better service to the public.

SF‘,H,‘]Y(}Y‘VRnnrvnvn oMz oVLouuo o @ioula rcovered 1n- the
statement.

STATEMENT OF PHILLIP . HUGHES, DEPUTY DIRECTOR, BUREAU
OF THE BUDGET

Senator Riercorr. Your statement is an excellent history of Federal
activities in the natural urces field. T will tell you what T do not
understand about the stat nent, namely : what your position is.

Is the Bureau of the Bu get for or against Senator Moss’ propo

Hueres. Mr. Chairman, on April 13 of this year, r N
equest, we did submit a report on the bill indicat-
lid not favor the legislation at this ti
tor RiBIcorr. You are against it ?
. Hucnms.
(The report referred to by Mr. Hughes follows:)

EXHIBIT 12
EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT,

BUREAU oF THE BUbaEr,
Washington, D.C., April 1 3,.196%.

Hon. ABramaMm RIBICOFF,
Al 2 o o
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Department of the Interior as the Department of Natural Resources and to trans--
fer certain agencies to and from such Department.”

In addition to providing for a Department of Natural Resources, the bill would
transfer to it the civil works functions of the Army Corps of Engineers, includ-
ing the function under section 4(e) of the Federal Power Act of approving the
plans for dams or other structures affecting navigation for which a license is
sought from the Federal Power Commission; the Forest Service and the Water- .
shed protection and flood prevention functions of the Department of Agriculture;
fb%pg%{ﬁg)&?l Oceanographic Dataﬁ Center apd all nonmilitary functions of the

L UL INatular avuovwsowr —-- o™ 2 dmian A dhmarrah tha T . -
of reducing overlapping and duplication among Federal dgpa{"t'iﬂgﬁ't‘s.ﬂl% fc‘b'iﬁu
also simplify Federal cooperation with States and local governments, which have
important natural resources responsibilities particularly with respect to water
resources and related land-use functions.

On the other hand, the desirability of placing all natural resources programs
in one department has been strongly challenged. Opponents argue: (1) that the
diverse viewpoints and approaches of current programs are helpful in meeting a
variety of needs and satisfying legitimate differing interests; (2) that any
change in policies at this point could seriously disrupt established relationships
with State or private interests and cause needless confusion; and (3) that
essential coordination can be achieved by other means.

These and other matters involved require careful review.

‘Congress recognized the complexity of administrative problems in this area
when it enacted the Water Resources Planning Act of 1965. That Act established
the Water Resources Council, composed of the Federal agencies having the
major water resources responsibilities, and authorized the establishment of
Federal-State river basin planning commissions. It was designed to facilitate
coordination and cooperation among Tederal agencies and among all levels of
government in carrying out their respective water resources functions, without
altering existing organizational relationships.

In summary, while we believe that S. 886 merits serious consideration by the
Congress, we are not yet prepared to recommend its enactment.

Sincerely,
(Signed) PHILLIP S. HUGHES,

Deputy Director.
Lacking any Central TESPULSIULULY QL wig jawsy =

and management, the Bureau of the Budget is forced ini‘(}«tﬁhe role of coordinator
and arbiter between the various agencies. Probably in no other area of federal

responsibility does -the Budget Bureau exercise so strong an influence and
leverage over programming.

The present role of the Budget Bureau exceeds its normal responsibilities.
T wonder what your reaction to that statement is, Mr. Hughes?
Mr. Hucmzs. As I see it, Mr. Chairman, particularly with two devel-




s n commissions that are evolving as the result o
that act.

That is the first development that I wished to mention.

And the other consideration is the establishment within the Depart-
ment of the Interior of the Bureau of Qutdoor Recreation, and under
rotating chairmanship, the President’s Council on Recreation and
Natural Beauty, which has coordinating functions in that area some-
what similar to those of the Water Resources Council in the water area.

NATURAL RESOURCES ADVISORY COUNCIL

Senator Risicorr. There have been many suggestions that we create
a Natural Resources Advisory Council similar to the Council of Eco-
nomic Advisers in this field. Have you ever given any thought to this?
And if you have, what is the reaction of the Bureau of the Budget to a

Natural Resources Advisory Council tathe Precident? e v v s
wud fuoaIT win 10 really m the context of our consideration of this

legislation. I think it 1s worthy of some exploration. We would be

happy to consider it. I think my ofthand reaction would be favorable.

Senator Riercorr. Well, I wonder, in the days ahead when you have
time, whether the Corps of Engineers, the Interior Department and
the Budget Bureau would not explore

Mr. Hueazss. We certainly will, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Risrcorr (continuing). This thought.

Thank you, very much.

Senator Moss?

CONSOLIDATION OF LEGISLATION WOULD BE NEEDED

Senator Moss. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I have not read your statement very carefully, Mr. Hughes, but I
have gone through it. You have a paragraph on page 14 that sounds
pretty good to me, and Iread it:

‘With a Department of Natural Resources, the President and the Congress could
look to a single Department head, rather than the group of Department heads
composing the Water Resou.rces Council, for leadership and policy reco
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changed the name of the Department, setting it up as a Resources
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will, and Corps of Engineers law, and of water priorivies, i cusuiug
practices, of engineering and planning practices, that come out of
both statute and tradition. Most of these differences could only be
eliminated through statutory changes which we would favor, but,
which would be very difficult, as you can appreciate, to work out.

Senator Moss. It really comes along, though, all the time, does it
not ?

The Corps of Engineers was first given the job of pulling snags
out of the Ohio and the Mississippi Rivers and that was generally
its functions. Now, it has evolved and grown to where it not only has
navigation and flood control but now water supply, recreation as we
were talking about. It is in the full scale water resource area now.

Now, the Bureau of Reclamation started out just to get some water
on the arid lands out West where they need some irrigation water,
and it, too, is in water supply to municipalities and recreation func-
tions, and all these other things. And so the evolution has been that
these two particularly—we happen to be talking about water right
now, and we could put in soil conservation and some others—have
grown up into this whole general field to where they are doing the

sexae.sont. af thine dyist on a little different patch of ground. Is that
a problem. The habits as well as the statutes or tne past aro sov viwe

easily resolved.

As we have tried to recognize, certainly in terms of clarifying lines
of authority, single departmental leadership would be helpful, but
there would remain a whole panorama of problems arising from
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Mr. Hueres. That is a tough question, Senator. Let me say this: I
think that a name change should best be saved to accompany some
change in the character of the organization itself. The name, “De-
partment of the Interior,” with all the problems that name has—and
the Secretary vividly described at least one type of problem—has been
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ment of Natural Resources which encompassed the whole scope of the
Water Resources Council’s area of oversight. I think it is quite clearly
s0. ‘

Senator Moss. Well, I appreciate your talents very much, and, I
think again, the function of these hearings and one reason they are
good is to have pointed out the problems that we face. Obviously, you
just cannot walk in and do this with a sweep of a bill or something of
the sort. There are many intricacies to be worked out, and you have
pointed out those for us, although, and I am happy that you think,
the idea is pretty good.

Mr. Huerms. Those are your words, Senator; not mine.

Senator Riercorr. One question, one final question.

Tt becomes very obvious that Secretary Udall devoutly desires to
have the name of his Department changed from the Department of the
Interior to the Department of Natural Resources. Do you object to
changing the name?

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
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DProgram areas—water racanmnss.awd lagd, wRe o duuivigie-purpose development

Of these primary resources.

In the fiscal year 1966 Federal expenditures in these areas were w
Jps: ) ell over $3
billion. These expenditures were distributed among the various resource pr$;)-

grames, as follows :

Millions

Land and water resources..

Forest resources

Recreational resources___

Fish and wildlife resources

Mineral resources -
General resource surveys and administratio

406
152
130
108

89

budget for the fiscal year 1968 is attached to may statement

for the hearing record. That table gives a
and also shows how the maior f iong o

brealgdogvn of expenditures by agency,




developed strongly held views both for and against a Deparitmen U

O\
Resgurqes. Many administrative changes have occurred, however, since the or-
ganization of natural resources functions was last explored in depth; your ex-
ploration is therefore timely. '

S. 886 wou}dt ‘esyablish a Department having as its major purpose the de-
velopn}ent, utilization, and conservation of our natural resources: In addition
to giving the Department of the Interior a new name, the bill would transfer
to it the Forest Service and the watershed protection and flood prevention func-

tions of the Secretary of Agriculture; the civil functions of the Army Corps of
Engineers ; the National Oceanographic Data Center and other functions of the
Department of the _1_\Iav_y' \yhich are administered through the Center; the sea

fimin TammAatian e and the functions of the
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to which agency. would undertake a particular project has been based on a
determination of the dominant- project objective.

A similar evolution has occurred with respect to public lands and forests, which
also are managed for multiple purposes.

The Forest Service was established by the Secretary of Agriculture in 1905,
when the responsibility for administering the national forest reserves was trans-
ferred to him from the Secretary of the Interior. The transfer was made at the
urging of cons -vationists, who believed that the Department of Agriculture
would be more sympathetic with their conservation objectives: Interior, how-
ever, continued to be responsible for managing the national parks, other public
lands, and the mineral resources of the national forests.

Both Forest Service and the Bureau of Land Management now manage lands
used for commercial timber production, grazing, mineral production, and outdoor
recreation. Both Forest Service and the National Park Service manage great
public recreation areas, let contracts for necessary service facilities, and super-
vise the operations of concessionaires. All three agencies have common problems,
such as fire protection and pest control, which require joint action in many local
areas.

The relationships inherent in water resources and land management functions
are well illustrated in Agriculture’s ratershed protection and flood prevention

LOE "Wales puasssesves fw=t -3 &0 fmmmnra Tand and forestry management, and also
require increasing consideration In Jdeveloping comprehensive Plaus’ LoL xives

basin elopment. States also have activities similar to those of TFederal
agencies in outdoor recreation, fish and wildlife, and forestry.

PAST REORGANIZATION EFFORTS

In the Federal Power Act of 1920 Congress attempted through legislation to
P T~ [ L, T o AT TN he nal Federal Power
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1933 to carry out all Federal functions essential to a unified program of resource
development, use, and conservation. The Delaware River Basin Commission, es-
tablished by Federal-State compact in 1961, has a broad delegation of Federal
and State powers, but it does not Teplace existing agencies. Thus far it has not
engaged in direct operations, but it has adopted a comprehensive river bas
plan to which actions by Federal and State agencies must conform. Anal

of the accomplishments of those regional agencies should shed light on the poten-

tial benefits of consolidation at the national level.
e asavumll LUT D EUCLEAL-DTATE

river pasin planning commissions authorized by the Act, State representatives are
able, for the first time, to participate in comprehensive river basin planning
as equal partners of the Federal representatives. The Act also established the
Water Resources Council to perform certain Government-wide and nation-wide
functions, which are designed to achieve a unified approach to water resources
functions among the several Federal agencies ) )

River basin commissions are composed of a Chairman, appointed by the

dent, and representatives of interested Federal agencies and the partic-
ipating States, appointed by ager rnors respectively. This
broad representation enables the commissions to approach the development
of water and related land resources in a way that recognizes inherent land and
water relationships and undertakes to explore all economically feasible uses. Their
major functions are to prepare joint, coordinated, and comprehensive plans
for Federal, State, interstate, local and private development of these resources
and to recommend priorities for action. Each plan is to include an evaluation
of all reasonable alternatives for achieving optimum development as well
as the commission’s recommendations.

Sinece the commissions are -advisory only, the Act directs that their methods
of operation be designed to achieve a consensus with respect to their recom-
mendations. Failing consensus, each member is to be given full opportunity
to present and report his views. A proposed plan will then be transmitted to each
interested Federal agency, the Governor of each State, and any interstate agency
or the U.S. section of any international commission that may be affected. With or
without subsequent revision, completed plans, together with comments received,
will be transmitted to the President through the Water Resources Council.

anu J;JLUéL(l.lllg.

To provide for a unified approach among Federal agencies, the Act directs
the Council to consult with other interested entities, Federal and non-Federal,
and to establish, with the President’s approval, principles, standards, and
procedures for Federal participants in comprehensive regional or river basin
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the contribution the plan would make in achieving the Nation's econom?t
social goals. Based on the review, the Council is directed to make such recom-
mendations as it deems desirable in the national interest. Its recommendations,
together with copies of the plan and the comments of any Federal agency,
Governor, interstate agencies, or U.S. Section of an international commission,
will be transmitted to the President for distribution to Congress, and the Gov-
ernors and legislatures of participating States.

Congress and State legislatures, of course, will retain their usual powers
with respect to project authorizations and appropriations.

Arrangements made under the Water Resources Planning Act do not, in
themselves, meet all of the coordination problems which arise when several
Federal agencies have independent authority to do river basin surveys and
planning. The budget process is also used to achieve agreements among the
agencies which will permit an orderly approach to planning and funding. Be-
ginning in 1963, the agencies have developed a coordinated schedule of river
basin surveys for the succeeding fiscal year; have agreed among themselves on
a lead agency for each survey; and have developed their budget requests on the
basis of that agreement.

The Outdoor Recreation Act of 1963 also made a substantial contribution
to better coordination among Federal agencies.

The Act authorized the Secretary of the Interior, in consultation with other
Federal agencies, to inventory the nation’s outdoor recreation needs and re-
sources; to prepare a nation-wide plan for meeting national needs, taking into
account the plans of other Federal agencies and State and local governments ;

and to take other actions to assist and promote adequate and coordinated
Avtdnnn wa, afi 0O
cuiture "and Interlof T HPeus woere wic s o

. A T TN J
Forest Service and the Bureau of Land@ Management to operate at less than full
efficiency. Under that authority almost three million acres were exchanged
to consolidate agency holdings and simplify overall Federal administration.
House Report No. 2960, published in 1956 by the Joint Committee on Federal
Timber, stimulated an intensive effort to reconcile differences in the timber
practices of the Forest Service, the Bureau of Land Management, and the Bureau
of Indian Affairs. This long range effort was undertaken through the Inter-
agency Committee on Timber Sales, which made a comprehensive report and
recommendations in December, 1960. The Committee was continued in being
to carry out the recommendations and to deal with other interagency matters
as they arise. More recently BLM and Forest Service made a joint review of
their timber sales policies and practices in relation to the policy on user charges.
Other operating problems common to Federal and State land management
agencies, such as pest control, weed control, and research, are also handled
through interagency committees.
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RESULTS OF THESE NEW APPROACHES

It is too early to have a valid evaluation of these recent developments in
terms of their implications for further reorganization of resources functions.
The Water Resources Planmng Act is only two years old. and wa hava nat
achi
T'h

} VWater Resources Councu and the President’s Council on Recreation and
Natural Beauty provide mechanisms for continuous attention to coordination
problems in these areas where coordination problems are most pressing. They
have already relieved the President and the Executive Office of a substantial
burden of day-to-day coordination.

CONCLUSION

In summary, while several agencies are responsible for major natural re-
source functions, we are optimistic that the new approaches to coordination
will overcome many of the long-standing problems.

Both the Water Resources Planning Act and the Outdoor Recreation Act
reflect the recent tendency to rely on comprehensive plans as the major instru-
ment for coordination in program areas where Federal agencies, and often
State Governments as well, have common, related, or complementary functions.
There is general agreement that comprehensive river basin plans are essential
to sound development of water and related resources, and some experts in the
field believe it does not much matter what Federal agency subsequently carries
out the plan so long as actions conform to it.

With a Department of Natural Resources, the President and the Congress
could look to a single Department head, rather than the group of Department:
heads composing the Water Resources Council, for leadership and policy recom-
mendations geared to the national interest and objectives. The possibility of
overlapping and duplication of work could be eliminated, and the machinery

for interagency and 1nte1govern tal comdmdtlon could be streamémedw at

i Aiffarannne in
pron SR e ESey "and 1 Overnmental coordination can only be re-
duced—they cannot be eliminated—by reorganization.
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[Fiscal years. In millions} .

Payments to the public Recom-
—oo e mended
Program or agency 1966 1967 1968 new obli-
actual  estimate . estimate  gational
authorit;
for 196

Administrative budget funds:
Land and water resource:
Corps of Engineers. .. $1,250  $1,260 . $1,330
Department of the Interior
Bureau of Reclamation 327 320
Power marketing agencies
Present programs 128 137
Proposed legislation for revolving funds. 74 ~78
Federal Water Pollution Control Administration 126
Office of Saline Water:
Present programs. .
Proposed legislation for desalting plan
Office of Water Resources Research
Bureau of Indian Affairs:
Present programs....
Proposed program improvements
Bureau of Land Management and other_
Tennessee Valley Authority
Soil Conservation Service—watershed projects.
International Boundary and Water Commission..

Irust |uﬁ%§e\ﬁ?.la'.’.?.‘9’ mmission and other

Intragovernmental tr:
3,229 3,250 3,538

1 Compares with_new obligational authority for 1966 and 1967 as follows: Administrative budget funds: 1966,
$3,356,000,000; 1967, $4,526,000,000. Trust funds: 1966, $146,000,000; 1967, $176,000,000.

Senator Risrcorr. During the past few days I have received letters
from many people asking that their statements or comments be in-
cluded in the record. I will place them in the record at this point, and
as I expect to receive similar requests in the near future, I will hold
the record open for their inclusion.

EXHIBIT 13

RESOLUTION OF THE WARRIOR-TOMBIGBEE DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION

‘Whereas a Bill in United States Senate 'S. 886, proposes to create a Depart-
ment of Natural Resources which, in substance, would be the Department of
the Interior under another name, and

Whereas the new department would absorb most of the functions of the
Department of the Interior, only a few being transferred to other departments,
and proposes to transfer to the Department of Natural Resources certain func-
tions of the Departments of Defense, Agriculture, Health, Education, and Wel-
fare and two independent agenicies of the government, and

i i i e trapnsfer of the civil functions of
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vurar rtosuvurces uevelopment in this nation with Vahd doubt that such change
would be beneficial, particularly with respect to the civil works functions of
the.Corps of Enﬂmeers Therefore be it

Res ed by ior-Tombigbee Development Association in. Annual Meeting
assembled in Mobile, Alabama, April 14, 1967, That the officers of this Associa-
tion make its viewpoint known to Alabama’s Umted_ States Senators and Repre-
sentatives in the ‘Congress of the United States and to Congressional Committees

hich may hold hearings on the Bill ; and be it further

Resolved, That the officers of the Association be directed to alert the member-
ship not in attendance at the meeting and to urge all members individually to
express to Congressmen of their respective Districtis and to Senators Lister Hill
and John Sparkman, their desire that the civil works functions of the Corps of
Engineers be retained under the authority of the Department of the Army.

Approved by unanimous vote of the members and of the Board of Directors
present at the above mentioned Annual Meeting, April 14, 1967, Mobile, Ala.

(Signed) C. M. KILIAN,
(For W. P. Engel, Secretary).
(Signed) R. A. PURYEAR, JRr.,
Chairman-President.

EXHIBIT 14

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,
Washington, D.C. July 8, 1967.

ABRAHAM RIBICOFF,

rman, Subcommitiee on. Brecutive Reoraanizoiinm
a6 woourelary UL Heaitn, Kducation, and Welfare, the National Science

F ndd on, and the Army Cmps of Engineers would be transferred to the
Secretary of Natural Resources.

‘Whether such transfers and changes should be made, and whether the manner
proposed would be appropriate to accomplish the purposes of 'S. 886, are ques-
tions of policy as to which the Department of Justice defers to the departments
and agencies that would be affected.

However, if such legislation is to be enacted, we would suggest that S. 886
follow more closely the legislation which 1ecent1v created the Department of
Housing and Urban Development and the Department of Trangportation. To
do so would require some minor changes of nomenclature and of language in the
transfer of functions, personnel, and assets. A member of our Departmental
staff would be glad to go over these suggestions in detail with the Committee
staff.

‘We note that section 3 provides that the Deputy Secretary of Natural Re-
sources “shall be compensated at the rate préscribed for level II of the Executive
Schedule by section 5312 of title 5 of the United States Code.” Level II of the
Executive ‘Schedule is section 5813 of title 5 but the Under ‘Secretaries of all
Departments other than the Department of State, officials of comparable rank
to the Deputy Secretary, are compensated at level III, covered by section 5314.

The Bureau of the Budget hag advised that there is no objection to the sub-
mission of this report from the standpoint of the Administration’s program.

Sincerely,
(S) RaMSEY CLARK,
Attorney General.
88-889—68——10

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES



EXHIBIT 15

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE,

October 17, 1967.
Hon. ABRAHAM RIBICOFF,

Chairman, Subcommittee on Ewxecutive Reorganization, Committee on Govern-
ment Operations, U.S. Senate, Washington, D.C.

DEAR MR. CHAIRMAN : This letter is in response to your request of March 6,
1967, for a report on S. 886, a bill, “To redesignate the Department of the Interior
as the Department of Natural Resources and to transfer certain agencies to and
from such Department.”

This bill would have a substantial impact on this Department since it provides
for the transfer of—

1. The fu‘n.ctions of the Secretary of Health, Education, and Welfare under

A e

In addition to these éﬁahgégafﬁe i)/ﬁ)l I;'Ta.l sh' 1’318 '?Lemh%%lért%‘f bstgléga.zw\laus;?\?‘.

agencies and functions from other departments and agencies to the proposed
Department of Natural Resources.

Air pollution conirol and solid waste disposal funmctions

The main purpose of the bill is to locate within the proposed Department of
Natural Resources those functions administered by the Federal Government
which are related to natural resources. This grouping of functions within one
organization would logically provide for better administration of the functions
if the underlying purpose of each of them were mainly the use and conservation
of natural resources. We find this is not the case with the functions to be
transferred from the Department.

‘While air pollution control and solid wastes disposal are related to natural
resource management, they are much more directly concerned with the public
health. The basic reason for studying and combatting them is because they
Jeopardize our very lives by polluting the environment in which we live. To
combat them effectively we must determine how and why they affect our health
and how we can alleviate the health hazards they create, This is mainly a public
health problem which requires research in the health sciences and application
of public health control measures. These efforts hold the key to our success or
failure. The Public Health Service has been deeply involved in research, train-
ing, control activities, and other aspects of air pollution control. Transferring
these important health functions from this Department would not enhance the
Federal capability in this program, would seriously disrupt State and local
program relationships, and would complicate the national health effort in this
Thelarvie Wakeligvedd, would be_a wiser course to leave these functions with
tering Indian affairs. B

The transfer of the Bureau to this Department would have some logic since
a considerable portion of the Bureau’s budget is allocated to activities in the
fields of education and welfare and since this Department already administers




1me,
‘We are advised by the Bureau of the Budget that there is no objection to the

presentation of this report from the standpoint of the Adm1n1stratlon S program.

Sincerely
’ JoHN W. GARDNER, Secretary.

EXHIBIT 16

AMERICAN NATIONAL CATTLEMEN’S ASSOCIATION,
Denver, Oolo., October 12, 196%.

Hon. ABRAHAM RIBICOFF,
Chairman, Subcommittee on Ezxecutive Reorgamization, Senate Committee on

Government Operations, Senate Office Building Washington, D.C.

DreAr SENATOR RIBICOFF: It is our understanding that hearings are to be held
before your subcommittee, October 17-19, on S. 886, which would set up a new
Department of Natural Resources. The American National Cattlemen’s Associa-
tion is vitally interested in this measure and wishes to comment upon it in this
letter which we respectfully request to be included in the hearing record.

Our interest in this legislation is prompted by two very important agencies
now within the U.S. Department of Agriculture . ., the Forest Service and Soil
Conservation Service. We work with these two agencies on matters of mutual
concern frequently throughout the year. It is our considered Judgment that they
are properly located in the Department of Agriculture, so should remain thara

Tha Faract Qamerina ~ed o0k
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sibilities conflicts with the overall water quality control program. The agency
charged with irrigation responsibility will be under pressure to frustrate efforts
for control of pollution from ir ion run-off ; the power people will be under
pressure to frustrate efforts for strict tempelatule standards; and the mineral

resource people will place mining -and drilling ahead of water quality control.

T
)1 Y ) 0(\ (' (*hnnuﬂ writh
. Transfer of the air pollution control function info B A§°BfSefAMY Gescrve

Qpemal and @mgul‘u‘ aftentlon It may then be necessary to eﬂtabhsh an inde-
pendent agency to deal with these problems. However, until such time, I believe
that wisdom dictates retention of the program in the Department of Health,
HEducation and Welfare where a forward moving program is now getting under
way. To move the program now would be to create disruption and delay in the

national effort to preserve the quality of our environment and to secure clean

air for all.

EXHIBIT 18




Mr. Chairman; I appreciate this opportunity to file a statement on S. 886,
which would establish a Department of Natural Resources. This is important
legislation that highlights the need to review.the functions of many Federal
agencies involved in resource development in order to determne whether their
role might be more properly carried out in a single agency.

TIHEEF&;P\% ?lntfhnenec%ih that the development of thi‘s‘ v{mtion’s natural resources

CEePL LlaL a weparuincuy we Cena ~man AN nd A

charged with the responsibility of developing and managing nation’s natural
resources. Flood control, recreation, navigation, hydroelectric power and irri-
gation are legitimate water resource management areas and might well fall
within the jurisdiction of one Federal department.

However, I am convinced that environmental quality enjoys a unique posture
within the administrative structure. On the surface it might be argued that air

and water quality control is part of one overall resource management program.
Although this is true, it must also be considered in relation to the other resource
development programs within that agency in order to assure absence of conflicts
of interest.

As an example I would like to cite the present situation in the Department
of Interior. That Department has responsibility for irrigation, power marketing
and mineral resource development. From time to time each of these respon-

Service, such as is contemplate er . 2209, S e L ‘
of replacing the present Bureau of Sport Fisheries and Wildlife and Bureau of
Commercial Fisheries by a new Bureau of Fishery Resources and a new Bureau
of Wildlife Resources, the former new Bureau to concern itself with inland,
estuarine, and marine fishes, and related matters, and the latter new Bureau to
concern itself principally with mammalian and avian resources, and related
matters, both without over reference to special user interests.”

The “overt trade-oriented activities” of reference in the subject resolution in-
clude various activities in promoting utilization of fishery products as food,
the development of fishing gear and exploratory fishing for exploitation of
the fish resources, and the subsidization of fishing vessel construction, and
related functions.

Thank you for the privilege of submitting this statement for the record before
October 31, in lieu of opportunity for public testimony.

Sincerely yours,
RiceArRD H. STROUD,
Eaecutive Vice President.

EXHIBIT 19

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE,
Washington, D.C., October 24, 1967.

Hon. ABRAHAM RIBICOFF,
Chairman, Subcommitice on Ewxecutive Reorganization, Committee on Govern-
ment Operations, U.S. Senate.

Secretary, Department of Agriculture, <"~~~ ~* +hic Nanartment and the U.S.
Washington, D.C.




. wevpaauny auu wanagement of lands under the con-
trol of the Departments of the Army and Agriculture in and about water re-
source projects of the Corps of Hngineers within or partly within the National
Forest System will be subject to the following overall policies :

1. The Corps of Engineers and the Forest Service will cooperatively plan
the development, use and management of water resource projects as they relate
to land resources. Such cooperative plannmg will start with the preauthorization
plans and continue through the successive planning stages. This planning will be
pointed toward achieving the maximum public benefits from each project and will
delineate the procurement of necessary lands to assure meeting all foreseeable
public needs for recreation, wildlife, and other uses compatible with the primary
purposes of the water storage facility.

2. Water resource projects will be planned and operated to provide the great-
est feasible public use for recreation, wildlife and fish propagation, conserva-
tion of scenic and esthetic values, and the harmonious use of timber and other
commodities consistent with the other water control and use purposes. Pro-
grams of both agencies concerning land procurement, resource development and
use, access facilities, roads and trails, on and adjacent to reservoirs and on the
National Forest lands within the reservoir zones of influence will be corre-
lated to the fullest possible extent.

3. The Department of the Army will determine, consistent with the land ac-
quisition policy of the Secretary of the Army, the lands required for the con-

struction, operation and maintenance of water resource projects of that De-
partment for the purposes authorized by Congress. The Department of the Army
after consultation and agreement with the Department of Agriculture will re-
quest from the Department of the Interior the w1thdrawal from entxz under

e S muE T ALT CRUULCE
”‘\“;ES’? ?ﬁ?{} H{]iﬂlnlf n'éubepaffment of Aqnoultur@ lands under jurisdiction

of the Department of the Army which are required for planning, developing
and operation of water oriented recreation facilities or other resource manage-
ment, The department of the Army will retain in any transfer of land the rights
of use necessary for unrestricted operation and maintenance of the water re-
source project, including the right to construct facilities or structures or to re-
move any facilities or structures which are inimical to the operation of the
project. The Department of Agriculture likewise will retain such rights of use
and access as are necessary to provide for required other uses of National
Forest lands and access for National Forest purposes. All Memoranda of Under-
standing and transfers relating to land will be consummated as soon as prac-
ticable. At all water resource development projects, necessary lands, as de-
termined by the Chief, Corps of Engineers, in the vicinity of major structures
including but not limited to the dam and its approaches upstream and down-
stream will be under the sole jurisdiction of the Chief of Engineers.

4. Management of land and the use and development of resources, including
water oriented recreation, will be assigned between the agencies in accordance
with the following guidelines:

a. “here water storage prOJects are lomted W1thm or qubqtantlany
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lands and resources will be a, function of the Corps of Engineers or other
agencies ag it may determine and provide for unless the two Departments
mutually agree otherw

¢. Where water re‘qource projects are not in the foregoing categories,
development and management of project associated land and resources will
be undertaken by the Forest Service on those reaches of land adjoining the
reservoir in which it has the predominant federal interest and by the Corps of
Engineers in those reaches of adjoining lands in which the Corps has the
predominant federal interest; provided that the two agencies may agree that
in the interest of efficient public propefrty management one or the other will
undertake management of all such land and resources.

In the determination of the predominant federal interest in adjoining
reaches of lands and resources, the following factors, individually and in
combumtron will be taken 1nt0 account:

e =~ of landa reantired for the water resource
the degree to Whl h thes programs and 1‘65 }zauous JHALEE resource

to the project ar

(6) The desirability of single agency administration to avoid duplica-
tion of federal programs or organizations on relatively limited areas of
federal lands. R

Both agencies will seek resolution of jurisdiction at District Engineer-Forest
Supervisor level during project formulation (Corps Surv Reports) or, for
projects already authorized, as early as possible in the project planning or
construction stages. Agreements reached at field level will be forwarded to the
Chiefs of Services involved for confirmation. If irreconcilable differences develop,
basic data will be referred without delay to the Chief of Engineers and Chief
of the Forest Service for dec

5. The Department of the Armv will be responsible for the clearing of the
reservoir area and for the construction, maintenance and operation of the
water resource project except as otherwise provided herein and will have full
use and administration of necessary lands for these purposes. Jurisdiction of
National Forest System lands for other purposes will remain with the Secr t‘lI‘y

f riculture, including the sale of timber therefrom prior to clearing acti S

) Dapaxtnwn‘r of the Army. Receipts from the sale of timber or use of
National Forest System lands withdrawn for or made available to the Depart-
ment of the Army will be deposited into the National Forest Fund.

6. Improvements and structures of the Department of Agriculture which will
be destroyed or rendered useless by reason of the water resource development
and which are still needed by the Department-of Agriculture will be removed
or replaced by the Department of the Army at a location to be determined by
the Department of Agriculture in such kind and quantity as will provide levels

CTODET" 26, LUV, (1v-oUvw covay LIRSS avigtine nrio h,
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ing d ment (i.e., survey l'eports). the Corps of Engineers has cergdl‘“)npum]u.f-

tions and commitments with respect to land management, including principally
recreational development and use. Where the Forest Service elects to accept
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jurisdiction over land use and management of a water resource projec 3
this agreement, it agrees to accept these obligations and commitmen nd to
pursue them diligently in its programming and budgeting procedures with the
general objective of meeting them to the same degree as they would have been
met under corresponding programs of the Corps.

9. Memoranda of Understanding supplemental hereto will be entered into by
the Chief of Engineers and Chief of the Forest Service for each water resource
project within the purview of this Memorandum of Agreement for the purpose
of implementing the principles and policies herein agreed to as they apply to
the particular project. Action toward such upplement agreements will be
initiated as part of the project preauthorization planning processes or, as to
projects authorized but not completed, at the earliest practicable date.

Signed the 18th day of August, 1964.

STEPHEN AILES,
Secretary of the Army.

ORVILLE L. FREEMAN,

Secretary of Agriculture.

EXHIBIT 20
U.S. SENATE,
COMMITTEE ON THE JUDICIARY,

ST armesevva vu sy aveay 11 POOTUATTWOTULSTE UBULET 14, L ICKELT, LIIIECLO epar
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ment of ter and Air Resources, State of North Carolina, P. O. Box 939:
Raleigh, North Carolina 27603. )
With kindest regards, I am,
Sincerely yours,

SaMm J. ERvIN, Jr.

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA,
DEPARTMENT OF WATER AND AIR RESOURCES,
Raleigh, N.C., October 5, 1967,
Hon. SaM J. ErviN, Jr.,
U.8. Senate,
Washington, D.C.

DeAR SENATOR ERVIN : I have been advised that public hearings for opponents
of the Moss Bill (8. 886) will be held at some future date. This bill proposes to
establish a Department of Natural Resources which would be assigned full
responsibility for all resources development activities in the Federal Government.
It would consolidate the resources development functions of other agencies, with
the exception of the Tennessee Valley Authority, into the Der ment of the
Interior, and redesignate it as the Department of Natural Resoure

The North Carolina Department of Water and Air Resource:
under the North Carolina Board of Water and Air Resourc S, he State agency
designated to rdinate and cooperate with Federal and State agencies in
pianning and developing water resource projects. Servi s the Director of this
Department affords me the opportunity to s >velopment of natural
resources with all agencies having such res ity and to make certain that
all interests receive full considemation TWoedoral wratar wacaiimen  Ameralamenand
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derived. The projects of each of these agencies are concerned with recreation,
fish and wildlife, water supply, water quality control, and other aspects of
water resource development. This is also healthy competition that provides a
defense against arbitrary decisions, precludes domination by a single agency,
and provides for a more balanced development of all water-related natural

NALULLIAG UL U USAAN Wt wans

measures have been taken to treat the polluting wastes at the source. Despite
testimony to the contrary, there are indications that Federal recreation and
fish and wildlife agencies are having to gloss over the adverse effects in North
Carolina and Virginia to support the position of the Secretary of Interior in order
that he might make a relatively minor improvement to the highly polluted
water in West Virginia.

Governor Moore has just announced his views that the State’s Department of
Conservation and Development, which is concerned with natural resources, be
split into three new and separate agencies in order that maximum potential devel-
opment may be attained. I consider that this principle is as applicable to Federal
programs as to those of the State of North Carolina.

I will appreciate your support in opposing the Moss Bill (8. 886) and would
also appreciate your informing me of the schedule for the public hearings in oppo-
sition to this bill.

Sincerely,

GEORGE H. PICKETT.

NoOVEMBER 20, 1967.
Hon. SAM J. ERVIN,

U.8. Senate, Washington, D.C.

Dear SAM : Many thanks for your recent letter.

I will be pleased to make the letter from the Director of the Department of
Water and Air Resources of the State of North Carolina, a part of the printed
record of the Subcommittee’s hearings on 8. 886.

I have also placed Colonel Pickett’s name on our mailing list.

With everv zood wish.
public hearings in opposition to the bill.

I understand that several days of hearings were held early in October on the
proposal and I do not know whether the Government Operations Subcommittee
on Executive Reorganization has scheduled any further hearings. I have called
your statement and request to the attention of Senator Abraham A. Ribicoff,
who is.chairman of the subcommittee, and when I hear from him I will be in
touch with you again.

Meanwhile, with all best regards,

Sincerely,
B. EVERETT JORDAN,
U.8. Senator.
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T T ——

Very truly yours, :

DALE TWACHTMANN,
Haecutive Director.

STATEMENT OF EDWARD MEDARD, CHAIRMAN, GOVERNING BOARD, SOUTHWEST
' FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT, BROOKSVILLE, FLA.

Mr. Chairman a= gentlemen of the Committee, I am Mr. Edward Medard,
Chairman of the Board of the Southwest Florida Water Management District,
with headquarters in Brooksville, Florida. This district is a political subdivision
of the State of Florida created by Act of the Florida Legislature in 1961. The
district is responsible for fulfilling the requirements of local cooperation for the
project “Four River Basins, Florida.” The District embraces all or part of
fifteen counties; the watersheds of the Oklawaha, the Peace, the Hillsborough
and the Withlacoochee Rivers and includes within its boundaries a population
of 1,150,000 persons, according to the 1960 census.

‘At a regular board meeting on October 11, 1967, the Governing Board adopted
a resolution concerning the hearings of your Sub Committee on Executive
Reorganization dealing with 8. 886, better known as the “Moss Bill.” A copy
of the Board’s resolution, which was adopted by unanimous vote, is attached to
this statement.

This District was organized in 1961 and has been working cooperatively with
the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, the responsible federal agency designing and
constructing the Four River Basins project. We also have had occasion to work
cooperatively with the Soil Conservation Service of the Department of Agricnl-
ture in geptpjp, of the emell wrebemsto? R

Since the creation of the Bureau of Reclamation in 1903 during the Theodore
Roosevelt administration, there have been numerous attempts by various Secre-
taries of Interior to extend their control over the Nation’s water resources from
the seventeen Western states to the entire Continental United States. Such all
out efforts were made during the Herbert Hoover administration, the Franklin

.D. Roosevelt administration and most récently during the Harry Truman ad-
ministration. Bach such effort to absorb the Civil Works program of the Corps
of Engineers into the Bureau of Reclamation has.failed because of the broad
public support for the Civil Works program of- the Corps of Engineers.

The present effort in S. 886 would make the Secretary of Interior the ad-
ministrative chief of all natural resources, including air and water, by trans-
ferring into the new Department of Natural Resources the following named
agencies not now a part of the Department of Interior: U.S. Forest Service; the
Soil Conservation Service; Civil Functions, U.S. Army ps of Engineers; The
National: Oceanographic Data Center; the Sea Grant Program of the National
Science Foundation and the programs of Solid Waste Disposal and Air Pollution
Control now a part of the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare. Finally,




S. 886 would place the Federal Power Commission in a subservient position to U
new Secretary of Natural Resources in the issuance of licen for development
of hydroelectric project by private power companies.

All of the above named agencies and their programs would be swallowed up
in a giant Department of Interior—renamed Natural Resources—for no stated
purpose. The benefits of the proposed reorganization are not mentioned in the
text of the bill. .

This District has a great and continuing interest in the “Four River Basins,
Florida” project authorized by Congress as a part of the Flood Control Program
assigned to the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. This District has given assurances
of fulfilling the requirements of local cooperation for the project as a part of the
Army Civil Functions Program. We do not consider these assurances to be
transferable to another agency or department of the Federal Government as
proposed in S. 886.

This District opposes S. 886 and recommends against its enactment into law.
Our reasons are:

1. No benefit of the proposed reorganization is cited.

2. The Corps of Engineers has performed its assigned task in an outsband-
ing manner ‘with great benefit to the entire country.

3. The same performance record has been established by the Soil Conserva-

be contrary fo the Pestmtereste b~ ludosiralinee., ... S
District, the State of Florida and the Nation as a whole. The Southwest Florida
Water Management District Governing Board requests that no action be taken
on S. 886 by the Subcommittee on Executive Reorganization of the U.S. Senate
Commitee on Government Organization.

EpwArD MEDARD, Chairman.

ResorLuTioN No. 223, SOUTHWEST FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRI(‘I‘ RE-
QUESTING THE SCHEDULING OF HEARINGS TO HEAR OPPONENTS OF S. 886, 90TH
CONGRESS, 1ST SESSION

Vhereas the Governing Board at its meeting on October 11, 1967, was in-
formed that the U.S. Senate Government Operations Committee, Subconimittee
on Executive Reorganization plans to hold hearings on the “Moss Bill”, S. 886,
on October 17,18 and 19, 1967 ; and

‘Whereas the Board has been advised that the scheduled hearings are intended
only for the taking of testimony from sponsors of the legislation and representa-
tives of various Fede gencies ; and

Vhereas the Southwest Fl()l‘ld‘l Water Management District and many other
political subdivisions of the State of Florida have a continuing interest in the
orderly development and maximum beneficial use of the water resources of
Florida ; and

Whereas this District is presently cooperating with the Corps of Engineers
in carrying forward the “Four River Basins, Florida” project in accordance with
the will C“ongrew as expressed in the authorizing legislation in the Flood
Control Act of 1962 ; and

rhavaaa tha “M nw Bill” appears to be a controver elal piece of legislation which

~emssnnm dn ana avasntive




SOUTHWEST FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT
DisTrIicT, BY ITS GOVERNING BOARD.
EpwArp MEDARD, Ohairman.

EXHIBIT 22

WATER USERS ASSOCIATION OF FLORIDA, INC.,
West Palm Beach, Fla., November 2, 1967.
Senator ABRAEAM RIBICOFF,
Chairman, Committee on Hxecutive Reorganization, Commitiee on GQovernmemt
Operations, Washinaton. 1) € eemav s waune UL LY@TIONAl emergency. We
cuusiuer tnls vital to the nation’s defense.

2. The Corps of Engineers, working with local and other agencies on public
works projects affecting Florida’s fresh water, has done an excellent job. Any
transfer of this function of the Corps of Engineers would result in confusion,
delay, and added costs.

8. There are large areas of the Corps’ civil works functions not related to the
national resources of the nation.

4. It is believed that the same adverse effects would apply to the soil conserva-
tion service of the Department of Agriculture now doing an excellent job on small
water shed projects.

5. We do not believe that the creation of a department of such magnitude and
power is in the best interests of the people of the United States. We can see no
benefits accruing from the passage of this bill.

Respectfully submitted.

Ritey S. MILES,
Hweecutive Director and General Manager.
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On the proposal to transfer the civil functions of the Army Corps of Engineers,
The American Waterways Operators, Inc., would like to be recorded as endorsing
the statement made before your subcommittee in the course of hearings in late
October. by Secretary of the Army Stanley R. Resor who so well expressed the
objections which this Association’s members themselves have to the proposal.

We respectfully request-that this letter be made a part of the record of the
hearings held in October 1967; and, further, that if hearings are resumed at a
future date to hear opponents of the legislation that we be given an opportunity
to testify and expand our views on this matter.

Sincerely yours,
BRrAXTON B, CARR, President.

EXHIBIT 24

THE PROPELLER CLUB OF THE UNITED STATES,



deserve. i

The stated purpose of such a transfer would be to provide better coordination
of competing policies as to use, for example, of water resources. In practice, the
proposed coordination would tend to lead to resolution of conflicts between com-
peting views at a level below and obscured from public serutiny and knowledge.
In many instances, such conflicts are too important to be settled without full
public participation. Instead of suppressing them by coordination among minor
officials, they should be exposed for informed and vigorous public review and
debate. In this respect, therefore, The American Waterways Operators, Inc., is
concerned. that, under the proposed organization, the interest of the shipping
public in water resource improvements for navigation be given adequate con-
sideration in favor of all competing interests.

Coordination of water resources policy at a level at which competing views
will not be lost to public sight can, on the other hand, be accomplished through the
use of the organization recently established by the Congress for this very pur-
pose—the Water Resources Council, established by the Act of July 2, 1965, after
many years of consideration and effort. The Council should be given the
opportunity to demonstrate what it can do before the authority and responsibility
assignment to it are withdrawn.

In the debate which has taken place on 8. 886, the viewpoint has been expressed
that the Water Resources Council cannot be other than a weak arrangement
hananea it is a committee rather than an individual and because it is made up

* Y e wiee damartments of government. Under
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By copy of this letter a copy of this Resolution will be furnished to the press.
Sincerely,
Swep T. DAVIS,
Ewxecutive Director-Secretary.

“%'SFEUKJTJR?‘I QF,THE_PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT, OCTOBER 26, 1967
servation and regulation of the waters of the salu vasiu, auw — 4 L& Mivantara

Whereas the Corps of Engineers has at all times manifested a grea interest
in promoting sanitary water supply and the preservation, conservation, storage

" and regulation of the waters of the Pascagoula River Basin for domestie, muniec-

ipal and recreational uses, and is presently engaged in said work and interest for
the basin to insure adequate flood control thereof ; and

Whereas the United States Army Corps of Engineers is now operating under
the Civil Works Program of the Department of the Army to achieve the fore-
going goals of preservation, conservation, storage and regulation of the waters
of the Pascagoula River Basin for domestic, municipal and recreational uses;
and :




enator Robert F. Kenndy.

Senator Fred R. Harris.
Senator Joseph M. Montoya.
Senator Jacob K. Javits

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 157

Government Operations be notified by a certified copy of this Resolution stating
and setting forth the position of the Pat Harrison Waterway District and the
interest of the general public of the Pascagoula River Basin and the interest
of the Pat Harrison Waterway District, and the Bxecutive Director of this
District be directed to furnish a copy of this Resolution'to the members of. the
above Committees, who are Senator Abraham A. Ribicoff, Chairman, Senator
John L. McClellan, Senator Ernest Gruening, Senator Robert F. Kennedy,
Senator Fred R. Harris, Senator Joseph M. Montoya, Senator Jacob K. Javits,
Senator Clifford P. Hansen and Senator Howdrd Baker, and the said Resolution

rds f a Dok Tr-_ . oy .UJ. A',ut‘
%?51311.?: e;l as a part of the.f)“e:?f!}ﬁpfﬂvtn 5?%%1% t%t ﬁ‘arnson Waterway District

A 9 cony ha e
arminate Book € at pages 157-160.
WIINESS my signature on this, the 26th of October, A.D. 1967.

Swep T. Davis, Secretary.

Senator Riercorr. I would also like to include in the record at this
point an article from the Natural Resources Journal of the Uni-
versity of New Mexico Law School, entitled “The Case for a Depart-
ment of Natural Resources.”

(The article referred to follows:)

[Natural Resources Journal, vol. 1, No. 2, November 1961]

EXHIBIT 26
THE CASEFOR A DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

The following article is offered to stimulate discussion of @ con-
troversial subject, and does not nece ily represent the views of
the JOURNAL, or its councils. To guarantee that attention will be
focused on the issues, and not on personalities, the author prefers
to remain anonymous.

MISTER Z

Our growing population, our industrial demands for ravwr smani--t o pusavy 1

commitments ahroad all w-s -
tments I. THE PROBLEM

Present divisions and duplications of authority restrict true comprehensive
development. They pit agencv ag Q v in I1ric al A ~ s _



ply
mvolved Interior; Defenqe (Army Corps of Engineers) ; meaius, wuucae
Welfare; and Agmculture Each Department uses different methods of com-
puting expected costs and benefits from projects; each Department stresses
different aspects of water development; each Department views the others’ ac-
tivities with a suspicion that borders on the paranoid.

This list of conflicts could be extended indefinitely. The Soil -Conservation
Service (Agriculture) is promoting the draining of wetlands in the northern
midwest while the Fish and Wildlife Service (Interior) is trying to maintain
wetlands for waterfowl. The Corps of Engineers is advocating the developmént
of the Potomac River in conflict with the plans of the Park Service for a national
park in the area. Undoubtedly the reader can add many more examples to this
dreary account of intramural feuds.

The good will and devotion of the agencies concerned is not to be questioned.
There are no heroes or villains in this story. The major troubles with present
resource policies stem from the administrative organization of federal activities.

The form in which resource conservation and development planning takes
pl‘we affects the substance of the programs. Irrevocable decisions are made on
major natural resource matters within the framework of laws which restrict
the developing agency to certain purposes, on the basis of agency traditions, and
on the basis of artifically generated political support. Rarely, if ever are these
decisions based on informed judgment about over-all national needs and goals.
The result is that present public policy towards resources is indefensible if
evaluated by economic, political, or social criteria.

The present situation can be summarized in ten propositions. They are:

1. In nature, the resources of soil, w atel forests, wildlife, and minerals are

-~ a alacalv, interrela hol Jonserva ctices igned f T -
and production may %S(llxe“iuaﬁ: Pu viis an Exﬂ m(}S? gn d Or?: ;fg I;rod
a

interrelated parts of the forest management. Many of theqe m‘w take prace si-
multaneously on the same land area. Each of them is related to the programs of
some other agency in a different Department. Despite administrative divisions,
resource management cannot be separated.

2. Natural resource programs of the Federal Government are dispersed and
scattered among separate Departments and agencies, although primarily con-
centrated in Interior. Consider the following list :

Interior

Bureau of Land Management Bureau of Sport Fisheries and Wildlife
National Park Service Bureau of Commercial Fisheries
Geological Survey Bonneville Power Administration
Bureau of Mines Southwestern Power Administration
Bureau of Reclamation Southeastern Power Administration
Bureau of Indian Affairs

Agriculture

Forest Service Agricultural Conservation Program
Soil Conservation Service Rural Electrification Administration
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swan. avuey wowission. The
~ ~wwswvuun vater Kesources Review Commission, and the Tennessee Valley
Authorit

3. The scattering of program responsibility among Departments has resulted
in a welter of confusion and cross-purposes. This applies both to the development
of consistent legislative policy and to program administration. This is especially
important at the local level. This situation is spectacularly inefficient and actually
dangerous to the public interest in our divided water programs. The present re-
sponsibilities of the Federal Government put great strains on the budget. Yet
competition among agencies “to get business” contributes to inefficient water
resource development and waste of public funds. Water resource development,
instead of taking place within a framework of consideration of national obje
tives and resources, takes place as a result of “logrolling” and “pork-barrel” poli-
tics. This is tragic when one considers the expanding demands for water-derived
products as well as for all other natural resources.

4. Many conflicts arise because of the special interests of the yarious agencies
A typical situation in water resource development would find the Corps of Engi-
neers (Defense) concerned with river basin planning and flood control; Soil
Conservation Service (Agriculture) concerned with watersheds; Bureau of
Sport Fisheries and Wildlife (Interior) concerned with fish habitat and
recreation.

Attempts to resolve these conflicts have been made. One popular device has
been the establishment of interagency coordinating committees in Washington
and on local leve Nevetheless, lacking any central authority short of the
President, the member Bureau and Department representatives on these per-
missive committees are unable to resolve basic conflicts of interest. Line-operating

autk Ly S N > reconciled. hv. diganccinn .
autho r; d “tefuf?ai 222;3815%001’1] 3} 8 aécision to offer a Special Message of

[t :
Natural Resources revealed his concern with the problem of coordination. He
said:

This statement is designed to bring together in one message the widely scat-
tered resource policies of the Federal Government. In the past, these policies
have overlapped and often conflicted. Funds were wasted on competing efforts.
Widely differing standards were applied to measure the Federal contribution to
similar projects. Funds and attention devoted to annual appropriations or im-
mediate pressures diverted energies away from long-range planning for national
economic growth. Fees and user charges wholly inconsistent with each other, with
value received and with public policy have. been imposed at some Federal
developments.” ®

The President pledged action in his Special Message to redefine resource re-
sponsibilities within the Executive Office, strengthen the Council of Economic

1 Hoover Comm.—Report on Organization of the Executive Branch of the Government,
267 (1949).

2H.R. Doc. No. 255, 86th Cong., 2d Sess. (1960).

3 Address on Natural Resources, N.Y. Times, Feb. 24, 1961, p. 12, col. 1,
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Advisers for this purpose, and establish a Presidential Advisory Committee on
Natural Resources under the Council of Economic Advisers.

6. Present divisions have no logical justification. With respect to the land
resource agencies now in the Department of Agriculture, the Forest Service and
the Soil Conservation Service, the supposed justification for the former agency
is that “trees are crops,” and for the latter that farm lands suffer the most from
erosion. Neither claim has validity in fact.

Most Forest Service activity is céntered on the management of 180 million
acres of public lands, the national forests; that which is directed towards private
forestry assistance is kept completely separate from all regular farm crop pro-
grams and is not even integrated with Soil Conservation plans on. the same
ownership. At least half of the private for lands on ich assistance is glven
are held by non-farm landowners. Even the Forest Service research function is
separate from the Agricultural Research Service.

The Soil Conservation Service program is also unrelated to other Agriculture
Department efforts. It is concerned with practices for the protection of the basic

il resource, regardless of ownership. It is not integrated with other farm pro-
grams concerned primarily with production, marketing, price, and supply regu-
lation. Some of the most serious erosion problems are connected with new
hmhﬁ‘l vs. and mhurhqn (levelopmentﬁ and have no relationship to farm land.

raplaiy ueveivpiug vwao — Ain at i i "
~oanflintg many_ 1y S W rams
111f1(t10n will 1esu]t in embarmxsmo 5 to the Ad muustrau?q}.ntg with programs

. Lacking any central reeponslblhtv at the cabinet level for resources policy
and management, the Bureau of the Budget is forced into the role of coordina
and arbiter between the various agencies. Probably in no other area of federal
responsibility does the Budget Bureau exercise so strong an influence and lever-
age over programming.

The present role of the Budget Bureau exceeds its normal responsibilities.
Given the present structure of Federal natural resource activities, it has been
the only agency which has any interest in, or capability for, developing a truly
national resource program. This is particularly important for the development
of new programs. New needs require new activities. The evaluation of goals
and means to meet these goals require specialized attention and expert that
cannot be provided by fiscal specialists in the Bureau of the Budget.

8. Natural resource agency appropriations are .developed as a group by
the Bureau of the Budget and (since 1954) the House and Senate Appropriations
Subcommittees, regardless of the fact that functional agencies are scattered
among many Depart: s, The legislative committees in the Congress continue
to divide r ities along old ut 0 tent lines.

9. Federal organization of resource activities is in sharp contrast to the or-
ganization of those states with the most successful ervation programs. These
States, e.g., Michigan, New York, Wisconsin and Minnesota, have single depart-
ments which embrace all phases of resource management un ntral direction.

10. Federal organization of resource activities is also in sharp contrast to the
organization of other major Federal programs. Every other sector of federal
responsibility, e.g., labor, agriculture, health, foreign affair assigned to a

i e govemmentfil Depar ment, which is publ ly understood to have central
--miome of antharitv give citizens a sense of involvement
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The most popular alternative suggestion is to create coordinating and advis-
ory commi . The Congress re 1izies the need for de i i
programs related to national needs rather than to the tradi
of competing agencies. A ‘distinguished group of Democratic Senators in both
the 86th and 87th Congresses have'sponsored legislation to establish a Council
of Resource and Conservation Advisers in the Executive Office of the Pre&l(‘lent
in order to coordinate resource conservation on the ba of national goals.*

This change would go only part of the way towards providing the nece
coordination. The past history of trying to obtain unity through committe
advisory groups illustrates the futility of expecting much from these proposals.
At present, only if the President himself operates as his own becret ry of Natural

Resources (to the ne T clusion of many . other imnowes—s A UB L AL,
nrohlom ia(,L CEITR SRS imperative that our resource man-

agement pr‘o"rams be ac elerated to provide for the increased productivity needed
by an expanding population. A broad resource program involving the application
of specialized techniques and investments of billions of dollars ean be. carried
out only by a well designed and coordinated federal organization. It is clear
that the present clumsy operation of the Government in the natural resources
field will not only result in wasteful duplication, but fail to meet the goals set
forth. Public disillusion will be inevitable. Nor are the alternatives thus far dis-
cussed adequate. A Department of Natural Resources is vital if the Federal
dovernment is to meet its responsibilities for the conservation and development
of natural resources.

Because of the present concentration of resource activities in the D
of the Interior, the easiest way to uhtam a Dep‘lrtment of Natural R
would be to tmn‘s“fer other resource agencie; i

2 been the or

would be affected.

The most adamant group bloeking the way to reorganization of federal water
functions is the Rivers and Harbors Conference, backed by water development
Contxactors who ,stlongly gupport, certain congressiondl relations of the Army

i , 1 Camy dition.
N ‘my oth@r aoen( es havo spec i clientele groups which do not want
their interests disturbed. Few agencies or clientele groups have a direct interest
in the 1mproved efﬁuen( whlch (ould 1esult fxom a reor ani?ation

" s S y o vau Awon
fmesﬁtli?p,“f]n:l “wlnllldr gmups the Len jue of X“ ?H\ent fu a ‘1c- ldnd W 11‘

uukheral resources, in ludmg, prunar e
those which deal with product processing, e nomx(s. etc It is the hr\t phase e
with whwh a Department of Natulal Rexom‘c wnuld be prlmar

2549, 86th Cong., 1st Sess. (1959) ; 239, 87th Cong., 1st Sess. (1960) ; S. 1415,
‘Wth Cong, 1st Sess. (1961).




are SO SIMIAT 1N APPLICALIVULL wo vo aave o .
than to split authority. Further, the goals and objectives of the public ana Privace
programs are so -intertwined that the programs should not be separated
administratively. :

III. HOW IT SHOULD ‘BE DONE

How should reorganization of the federal natural resource agencies take
place? Three possible choices present themselves for centralizing: natural re-
sources responsibilities :

1. Minimum.—Minimum transfer of principal resource agencies and programs
now in other Departments to the Department of the Interior with the exception
of the construction functions of the Army Corps of Engineers. (The. planning
and water research functions would, however, be transferred to a water develop-
ment bureau in the Inte: .

‘This approach would be simply a recognition of the political power of the
Corps of Engineers and a means of avoiding their bare-knuckled pressures, It
would leave unresolved the problem of coordination of water management and
development programs. Although the planning function would be transferred,
the Corps would soon find a way to revive this power. In any case the division
of responsibilities between the two Departments would continue to result in
waste and friction, and inhibit realistic programming in this vital field.

2. Coordinating committees.—Another possibility is to have a Council of Re-
source Advisers and a River Basin Coordinating Council. These are attempts to
obtain unification through compromise by. establishing another “coordinating”
layer between the President and his executive action agencies. Pr mably,
.>]annin£.:,L pe’zseareh, and reconciliation of conflicts would be assigned to river

ment o INdLuLaL aveovusvon. NS A ha cimilar tn t D, i i
: : 9 e Council of Economic
The cleanest and most effective procedure w 1‘1(1 Be }%o(f AUSLEL all’ 1covusvo

functions to Interior and then to concentrate all efforts to gain congressional
acceptance, Offsetting the pressure groups opposed to this transfer will be sev-
eral hundreds of conservation and other organizations which will support
complete reorganization. This will take generalship, strategy, and an effective
information effort during the 60-day period of grace during which Congress
may deny the President’s action.®

The attached organization chart sets forth the “model” or.organization of the
new Department of Natural Resources.” :

The Reorganization Act of 1949% gives the President power to transfer out-
side agencies to Interior by Executive Order. Legislative authority would
needed to change the name of Interior to Department of Natural Resourc

The organization of resource activities resulting from these proposed changes
would centralize all responsibility for development and management of natural
resource programs (except for the T.V.A.) in a Secretary of Natural Resources.
The Secretary would b an Under Secretary and staff assistants for program
coordination, public affairs, and so forth. There would also be an: advisory board
on natural resource policy with the Secretary as chairman. Regional or river

5 Reorganization Act of 1949, 1 U.S.C. § 133z (1949).
S Note 5 supra, § 1332~4,
“See chart appended.

§ supra.
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Senator Risicorr. T
the call of the Chair.,

(Whereupon, at 11 :40 a.m.
call of the Chair.)

he subcommitte will stand adjourned subject to

» an adjournment was taken, subject to the

O
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